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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report includes statements that are, or mayeleened to be, “forward-looking statements.” THese&ard-looking statements can be
identified by the use of forward-looking terminolgdncluding the terms “believes,” “estimates,” taipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,”
“may,” “will” or “should” or, in each case, theiragative or other variations or comparable termigpld@ hese forward-looking statements
include all matters that are not historical fadtsey appear in a number of places throughout ggsnt and include statements regarding our
intentions, beliefs or current expectations conicgrramong other things, our results of operatifingncial condition, liquidity, prospects,
growth, strategies and the industry in which werafee

By their nature, forward-looking statements involigks and uncertainties because they relate totexand depend on circumstances that may
or may not occur in the future. We caution you floatvard-looking statements are not guaranteestafé performance and that our actual
results of operations, financial condition and iitity, and the development of the industry in whieh operate, may differ materially from
those made in or suggested by the forward-lookiatgsents contained in this report. In additiorgrel our results of operations, financial
condition and liquidity, and the development of théustry in which we operate are consistent with forwardlooking statements contained
this report, those results of operations, financtaddition and liquidity or developments may notifgicative of results or developments in
subsequent periods.

Any forward-looking statements we make in this megpeak only as of the date of such statementwandndertake no obligation to update
such statements. Comparisons of results for cuameeshtany prior periods are not intended to expaegsuture trends or indications of future
performance, unless expressed as such, and shdyldeviewed as historical data.




PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

Unless otherwise indicated or the context othenrésgiires, references in the statements to the “@amy”, “we,” “our,” “us,” or "MHGE,"
refer to McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermedialt#oldings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability compaapd each of its consolidated
subsidiaries.

Our Company

We are a learning science company and leading biwbeider of world-class educational materials #aatning solutions that drive outcomes
through adaptive technology targeted to the higldeication (two- and four-year college and univgysind professional markets. We believe
that harnessing technology will enhance learnigh Inside and outside of the classroom, and vei#élgen the connections between students
and educators to empower greater success. Oursiadding of learning is what enables us to buitthit®logy based resources that know how
individuals learn and also adapt to their own nemd$learning styles. We deliver what studentseahutators want: an experience that
combines content and technology from multiple pdevs in a way that is seamless, elegant and tditorpersonal needs. We believe we have
industry-leading content curation capabilities,yano digital platforms, brand recognition and glosedle to be well positioned in the ongoing
industry transformation from print products to thdibased learning solutions. We currently distigbour educational materials and learning
solutions in nearly 60 languages globally.

We are at the forefront of developing and enabdingew model of personalized and dynamic digitatirtsion delivered in a highly interactive
and adaptive environment. Our digital revenue haegeased from $150 million in 2010 to $401 millior2014 , a reflection of the growing
awareness of the value proposition offered by dgital platforms, includingicGraw-Hill Connect, LearnSmart, ALEKSegrityand
McGraw-Hill Create.During 2014, ouMcGraw-Hill Connecfproduct, a digital learning platform for studentslanstructors in Higher
Education, increased unique users by 17% to 3amillvhile deepening engagement levels with 78 mmilstudent assignments submitted (an
increase of 32%) and 7 million instructor assignta@neated (an increase of 52%). In additlagarnSmart the adaptive platform and suite of
products shown to improve course grades by adttitd, served 2 million unique users during 20Minarease of 33%. This growth was dri
by increased familiarity withearnSmar@s well as enhanced functionality and improved esperiences for both faculty and students.

Our digital platforms provide an important extemsio our traditional print portfolio, as we beliethe digital platforms and underlying
technology improve learning outcomes by reinforaingcepts taught in traditional classroom settiriggrint or eBooks. We cannot guaran
that we will be able to maintain or increase ourketishare in the future; however, we have an éxpeed sales force, digital platforms that
are proven to increase learning efficacy and rimttent developed over a century which we beliedkpasition us to increase market share
over time.

In addition to these organic revenue growth opputiees afforded us as a result of the continuiniff st digital solutions, we have also
identified, implemented and realized significanstceavings through various initiatives includingaiieount reductions, facilities rationalizati
and supply chain organization. We continue to ifgopportunities for cost savings and process mapment within our organization via a
dedicated team of individuals focused on operatiereellence.

Our three businesses are:

 MHGE Higher Education( 65% of total revenue for the year ended DecerBheP014 ) Provides post-secondary students and
professors with high-quality adaptive digital leagsolutions, eBooks, custom publishing solutiarg] traditional printed textbook
products. For the year ended December 31, 2014, 88MIGE Higher Education total revenue was derifredh digital solutions,
including homework management and adaptive ditg&ining products that personalize the learninggggpce in real time,




based on individual learning patterns. MHGE HigBducation digital revenue increased from $114 onillin 2010 to $320 million in
2014 .

« MHGE Professiona: ( 9% of total revenue for the year ended Decerlie014 ) Provides subscription-based informatiod
instructional content services for professionald tire education/test prep communities when, whedelarough whichever medium
they prefer. For the year ended December 31, 248%, of MHGE Professional total revenue was derivech digital solutions,
including digital subscription sales which incredé®m $14 million in 2010 to $34 million in 2014.

e« MHGE International: ( 26% of total revenue for the year ended DecerBlhe2014) Leverages our global scale, brand recognitior
extensive product portfolio to serve educational professional markets around the world. For the yaded December 31, 2014, 9%
of MHGE International's total revenue was deriviemhf digital solutions. MHGE International digitawenue increased from $5
million in 2010 to $30 million in 2014.

Our Industry
Higher Educatior

Across the globe, education is a strong and growiagket, with enroliment fueled by a growing middlass population in developing regions
and a shift toward knowledge-based economies #ratmglly demand higher levels of education. Petti& Department of Education’s
National Center for Education Statisti“NCES"), in the United States, 20.6 million studeetrolled in degree-granting postsecondary
institutions during the 2012-2013 school year. Blagk of Montreal ("BMQO") Capital Markets' Educatiand Training Report forecasts
postsecondary enrollment will level off during BB@16-2017 school year to just under 20 million stud. After that period, it projects some
improvement, with growth eventually approachindatsg-term 1.5% annual rate.

The postsecondary education segment generatedlydhg®6 billion in revenue in the 2012-2013 schgedr, according to the NCES. BMO
projects total expenditures should grow roughly &%ually, reaching an estimated $670 billion in2622-2023 school year. Content
providers have historically distributed their protiuand services to post-secondary students throcaigipus bookstores, although they
increasingly sell through online retailers and @igplatforms. We believe the continuing growthdajital content delivery is driven partly by
the proliferation and advancement of enabling tetgy delivery for multiple devices. Enhanced tealogy allows for incrementally richer,
digital user experiences such as embedded videwattive elements and adaptive content, all ottvithprove the value proposition of
existing content beyond that of a simple on-scression of a book.

Adaptive learning solutions function in tandem witile use of print books or eBooks by monitoring amdroving a student’s content retention
and are most often sold bundled with a print or@B&ince these adaptive learning solutions arplsagentary products that do not substitute
for the primary course materials, we believe thegagally do not cannibalize existing sales anceatexpand our addressable market.
Adaptive learning solutions, for example, are usgdnillions of students on a subscription basisigkide prescribed text material.

Custom publishing allows professors to select peakzed content from different sources. Importanthere is little to no secondary market for
digital or custom content, which maximizes the saled profit potential to the incumbent contenwjters on an annual basis. Individual
professors are the primary decision makers in tokiselection, so competing in the market requirsizable sales force possessing deep
relationships with a fragmented customer baseaigands of individual professors. Professors tyfgichioose course materials based
primarily on the reputation and pedagogy of théatis content, and have high re-order rates omaa basis due to the establishment of
teaching curricula and familiarity with certain ¢ent.

Continued robust growth in digital learning soluto eBook, and custom publishing revenues is egddgotmore than offset declines in print
textbooks, driving continued expansion in our oltererket opportunity. While pricing for digital Bgions is typically lower than print, the
shift to digital content presents an opportunitydontent providers to increase revenue and mamgiastime due to the following factors: (i)
eBooks improve sell-through




rates and lead to increased profit through theighiblg cycle since there is no secondary markedligital books, and therefore no used or
rental digital book market to compete with futusées; (ii) adaptive learning solutions generallynid cannibalize existing book sales and
therefore expand the addressable market for theribent content providers, leading to an incremaeta#nue capture opportunity; (iii) digital
content eliminates a large portion of manufactueng delivery costs and provides cash flow benefitduding reduced inventory levels and
plate investment; and (iv) sales may be made dyreziconsumers or institutions, eliminating distrior intermediary margins.

Professiona

U.S. professional publishing is expected to berfiedin the growth of knowledge-based industries. Blieeau of Labor Statistics (“BLS”)
projects that the industries with the largest jotangh will be Professional & Business Services blgdlthcare & Social Assistance, with these
two industries adding 8 million jobs by 2022, mtran all other U.S. industries combined. Job grawtihese industries is expected to incre
demand for professional products. We derive a smlisl portion of our MHGE Professional revenuenirthese two industries. MHGE
Professional revenue related to Professional & Bass Services was $46 million for both the yeadedecember 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively. MHGE Professional revenue relatelddalthcare & Social Assistance was $54 million &6d million for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. OureBsidnal revenues are derived from 19 digital sutisan services, a robust list of more
than 7,700 eBooks and the release of over 508 @ifmually. We expect a continued shift in our nesemix with digital revenue continuing to
grow as end-users continue the transition fromtpamur more dynamic and robust digital subsavipgplatforms. Professional books will see
the fastest migration to digital, with 18% of glbpaofessional books revenue coming from digitalrses in 2013, rising to 36% in 2018, wt
electronic professional books revenue will be $8ligon.

International

The addressable international education markeg¢wueldping regions is increasing due to increasebadization, which encourages use of
English as a universal language, and a burgeoniddlenclass that demands higher quality educafibe. global education and training marl
including K-12, higher education and corporatenirad, is expected to grow from $74 billion in 2065131 billion by 2019 with education
content making up approximately 80% of the totabr&lthan 50% of traditional content providers’ newes are expected to be derived from
digital solutions. The tipping point will be 201B,lwhen the proportion of print revenues will bepassed by digital solutions. Customized
nature of learning systems create opportunitiesdoriculum experts in international markets. Pedblrivate Partnerships are integrated and
holistic solutions sets that incorporate curriculwontent, materials, professional developmentrsmware and inspection programs. Students
of all ages in non-English speaking countries seakprove their English for educational, sociatlgmofessional reasons fueling expected
annual growth in the markets of approximately 258t6rf 2012 to 2017 with the overall market reachiimgost $200 billion by 2017.
Accelerating globalization of professional indussriand their workforce fuels demand for globallgraéd education solutions.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe that we are well-positioned to captuegkmt share in the coming years as a result of etithg advantages driven by a number of
factors, including our portfolio of digital offerys, our internally developed adaptive technologifptms, a marquee brand that resonates in
both developed and emerging markets, near-termepsacnprovement opportunities to bolster MHGE Imd¢ional, limited exposure to the
struggling for-profit education sector, strong costnagement capabilities and a manageable levprafike that will allow continued
investment in high return on investment (“ROI”") idéd) products and talent.




Our competitive strengths include the following:
Premium branded franchise business with global scaland reach

Our business offers customers a portfolio of maedurands and high-value proprietary digital produdelivered via a large, established sales
force with broad global reach. We were the firsbim industry to introduce digital custom publigiitwe generated 25% of our MHGE Higher
Education revenue from disciplines with a #1 mastetre and 49% from titles with #1 or #2 marketraetaBecause of our vast collection of
distinguished authors, no single title accountsiiore than 2% of revenue. We currently distributedpcts with proprietary and exclusively-
owned content and technology in nearly 60 languagesss Asia-Pacific, Europe, India, Latin Ameriteg Middle East, and North America to
users including students, parents, educators arfdgzionals. Approximately 55% of MHGE Internatibrevenue for the year ended
December 31, 2014 was generated in emerging makikethave a global sales force of approximatelpd @perienced professionals, with ar
average tenure in excess of 5 years. Our glob#d scal footprint provides a broad distribution pipe that serves as a competitive advantage
as it could not be replicated easily or inexperigivaoreover, this distribution pipeline positions well to grow revenues and increase marke
share as we leverage this pipeline to distributepoutfolio of digital solutions.

Digital products
Our 125 year history in the development and thesdel of learning content uniquely positions ugdke advantage of the transition to digital.
Our product portfolio has evolved over the yeard mow includes a suite of digital learning soluole deliver students and other end-users

rich content in a format they want, through a uwgrigf digital devices, bundled with custom and itiadal print products.

The chart below shows the digital revenue growtimf2010 to 2014:

MHGE Digital Revenue Trending

(in § millions) o of

2012 2013 2014
We believe the following factors position us at theefront of the digital evolution:
Digital migration benefits established content providers

Digital migration allows us to sell high value-aditteractive and adaptive learning solutions desigto reinforce and test concepts
taught in primary course materials and significamtiprove student and classroom outcomes. Theseldiglutions generally do not
compete with our textbook sales (eBook or print) are instead complementary. Growth in digital 8ohs is driven by the proven
and demonstrable impact of digital solutions onriowg student outcomes, which is being increasimgknowledged and “adopted”
by both students and professors. We believe digihitions expand the addressable market for inemtsbsuch as ourselves, and, as
an example of this mitigation, we often sell teasbd products




bundled with digital solutions such E&Graw-Hill Connect For the year ended December 31, 2014 , we genekditiGE digital
revenue of $401 million.

We believe that our adaptive technology helps sttedgtudy more effectively and efficiently by guidithem through a personalized
experience that continually responds to their iittlial needs and focuses their attention on whattleed to learn the most, at
precisely the time they need to learn it. We b&iMMHGE has long been a leader in adaptive learhieginSmarhas been one of the
most widely used adaptive platforms in higher etlooasince its launch in 2008martBooks the first adaptive reading experience
higher education that leverages the adaptive legraxperienceALEKSoriginated in 1992 with a National Science Fourmatrant
for development based on Knowledge Space TheoryGEH approach to adaptive learning differs fromeottompanies because of
its grounding in the science of learning, and bsedticombines technology with high-quality contérat has been optimized for use
in an adaptive environment.

Attractive digital economics compared to print

We believe that digital products result in supegoonomics over the long term relative to printe Bell-through rates on digital
content are significantly higher than the averagditional print textbook, since our digital sobris are not able to be rented or resolo
legally, thereby reducing supply to the secondagduand rental markets.

For example, in an all-print college course, infing semester of a six-semester publishing cysldstantially all books are the new
edition. In subsequent semesters, however, thésereadily available used and rental alternatieasew print books, resulting in lost
sales to the content provider. Conversely, if ti@ea course is taught in an all-digital formatsalidents must purchase new
SmartBook®ach semester and cannot resell them upon courggetion. SmartBooksire digitized and enhanced versions of MHGE
Higher Education’s print product portfolio with imporated adaptive capabilities that helps guiddesit reading. MHGE Higher
Education textbooks iBmartBooKorm are priced lower than print textbooks, sinteeytare priced to be comparable to the economic
of a one-term print textbook rental, but cost s l® distribute and manufacture, leading to coatgargross margins.

Moreover, our bundling of digital solutions wimartBooksugments the economics of a digital sale and fuithproves the
economics relative to the traditional all-print nebdAs shown below, over the course of a publistiyge, the cumulative economics
of a digital model significantly exceed that of #leprint model.




Illustrative MHGE Cumulative Revenue Print vs. Digital Solutions Offerine for a Single Course with 100 students

(3 in thousands)
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Leading portfolio of digital solutions

Our digital solutions sales trends have demonstratelonged growth in sales volume and price, \adiid) the products’ value
proposition by both students and educators. Wernaato heavily invest in developing our portfotibsophisticated and proprietary
digital products. As a result of this ongoing inwesnt, we believe that we have the most competitoemprehensive and streamlined
set of digital solutions in the industry. MHGE HaghEducation digital revenue increased from $114laniin 2010 to $320 million in
2014.McGraw-Hill Connecstudent unique users grew 17% to 3 million duri@£2while deepening engagement levels with 78
million student assignments submitted (an incred$2%) and 7 million instructor assignments crddsn increase of 52%). This
data indicates that students are increasingly aofditee value and effectiveness offered by thef@iat, which was reflected in the
continued robust growth in 2014earnSmarserved 2 million unique users during 2014, an iaseeof 33%.We believ@martBook
has changed the usability of the static eBookrmeaner that will further disintermediate traditibpeanted textbooks. This data
indicates that students and educators are incigggsiware of the value and effectiveness offerethieyplatform, which was reflected
in the continued robust growth in 2014. As of thed ef 2014 there were approximately 45®artBooksicross more than 175 courses
in our Higher Education business.

In our Professional business, the transition tdataligs favorable in two ways: (i) we price MHGEd®essional eBooks on par with pi
books, which results in equal revenue but greatsfit@as a user transitions from a print book tce®wook, and (ii) the major platforms
in our MHGE Professional digital subscription seed had renewal rates of approximately 93% duririgi2vhich provides a
recurring revenue base. We have achieved an irereddHGE Professional subscription sales from idion in 2010 to $34

million in 2014 , driven by strong renewals of éiig customers coupled with new product expansiahiacreased penetration of our
existing markets. MHGE International digital reverincreased from $5 million in 2010 to $30 millizn2014. In more developed
markets, with a greater prevalence of digital desjenany of our U.S.-developed digital solutionghsasvicGraw-Hill Connect,
ALEKSandLearnSmartare becoming more relevant.




Stable financial performance and strong operating pofile

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we genehaljiedted EBITDA of $409 million, which representadnargin of 32%. Over the same
period, our prepublication costs were $50 millionapproximately 4% of revenue, resulting in Pdstd”Adjusted Cash EBITDA of $359
million. Total capital expenditures totaled $40lmoil, or approximately 3% of revenue. We operatelusiness on an asset-light basis with
modest annual capital expenditure and working abpejuirements. The ongoing transition from ptintligital will yield additional cash flow
benefits over time as digital products require Ipesxerall inventory levels relative to print books.addition, we have identified significant
additional cost savings beyond those included ijugtdd EBITDA that we expect will offset operatiogst increases in during future periods.

Attractive cost savings opportunities

Our comprehensive cost savings program has regualgukcific cost savings, achieved by implementimaye streamlined support functions
and efficient processes, better vendor managennehs@urcing, as well as other initiatives which evielentified and vetted through a rigorous,
bottom-up analysis in partnership with third-paativisors. The comprehensive cost-savings progranitegl in approximately $78 million in
run-rate savings by the end of 2014 (including mgsiof $54 million realized through the incomeextatnt). We continue to implement rrate
cost savings opportunities identified as part ef¢bmprehensive cost savings program that will fiigfugure periods.

Motivated management team and experienced equity spsorship

Our management team consists of experienced piofeds with on average, over 20 years of experiémeerange of industries that include
education, technology and media with various lestiprpositions at UBM, Symbian, Pearson, HarvardiBess School, Sylvan Learning,
Reed Elsevier, Wolters Kluwer, and Gartner as stalit-ups such as Intelligent Solutions and conggsmoiwned by private equity funds
affiliated with firms such as Apollo Global Managent, LLC (together with its subsidiaries, “Apollo'ur management team is backed by
equity sponsorship from funds affiliated with Agmlla global alternative investment manager withrapgmately $160 billion of assets under
management as of December 31, 2014, $41 billiomhi¢h is in private equity capital, and a recordmfesting in education companies sucl
Laureate International Universities, Connectionsdadion, Sylvan Learning and Berlitz.

Our Strategies
The key elements of our strategies are describkevbe
Capitalize on favorable underlying market trends inenrollment growth and the need for better outcome higher education

We intend to capitalize on favorable long term neatkends. We aim to harness addressable marketlghy offering a broader product
portfolio of adaptive and outcome-based digitairiéay solutions that are designed to generate hidigital sell-through and recurring revenue
streams.

Success in the educational market requires expErjenbroad array of competencies (including insimnal design, curriculum development
and alignment to standards), the ability to integthese competencies into cohesive offeringsficieitly deliver solutions at scale, and an
experienced and well-trained sales force. We beligeg are one of the few companies with the capisilio deliver in this market and
capitalize on the need for better outcomes in Higtdcation. There are a number of key trendsatetriving the need for learning solutions
that drive better outcomes:

* InJune 2014, U.S. student loan debt exceededtfilich, with over 7 million debtors in defai
* At most universities, only 19% of students gratgu‘on time”
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« 1.7 million students each year begin collegeemediation, including 50% of students attendirigyear colleg
e Only 1in 10 remedial students will graduate caod
» But college is still worth it; those who havad 4year degrees earn considerably more than thoseowiyha high school degr

These trends demonstrate the challenges that matiutions in higher education are experiencingetain students and improve retention anc
ultimately graduation rates. The increasing pres$urhigher education institutions to be finanei@ble increases the focus on student
retention and improved performance results.

We believe MHE is uniquely positioned to assistieigeducation institutions in solving these chajnbefore them. Our adaptive leaning
experiences drive student engagement and studecgssiand consequently student retention by proyididividualized learning experiences
at a scale that a higher education professor sicaiyot. Additionally, our data-driven digital laarg solutions are also capable of providing
higher education instructors and administrators wisights into which of their students are at néketention early enough in the academic
term so that corrective action can be taken.

Growing International Demand

We expect to leverage our rich content portfolid digital platform capabilities to meet internatiddemand for high quality education.
Growing middle classes in developing regions witftgktionary income and upward socioeconomic meytalie fueling the growth of both
public funding and private spending on educatioith\d strong local presence, valuable strategithpaships and a leading portfolio of cont
and digital solutions, we expect to generate sicgnitt growth in key emerging markets. We also péashorten the lead time required to
repurpose domestic English language content forilgigion internationally via our digital platforms

Evolve to a more asset-light strategy to maximizede cash flow

We are accelerating the evolution of our product mifavor of higher-margin, subscriptidrased digital and custom learning solutions in c
to generate higher recurring revenue. We are atsong to a more agile product development modelctvkhortens time to market and
increases content leverage. We expect that thisveitlireduce print inventory levels and pre-pudaltion investment relative to sales going
forward, consistent with our asset-light operastigtegy.

Our Products
MHGE Higher Education Products

MHGE Higher Education provides a wide range of iegdligital, custom learning solutions and tradiabprint for post-secondary markets
worldwide, with capabilities in adaptive learnitmpmework help, lecture capture and learning managésystems (“LMS”) integration.
Instructional materials include digital and printedts, lab manuals, interactive study guidesirtgshaterials, software and other multimedia
products across the full spectrum of subjects. @utent portfolio is organized into three key didicies: (i) Business, Economics & Career;
Science, Engineering, & Math; and (iii) Humaniti€gcial Science, & Languages. Substantially aMeéfGE Higher Education’s revenue is
generated from our 2,000 individual titles withgingle title accounting for more than 2% of busgesvenue. We have a fragmented custome
base and sell to most two- and four-year collegeke United States through a large sales forddrntexfaces directly with individual
professors. We have longstanding and exclusivéioakhips with many authors and nearly all of orgducts are covered by copyright in
major markets, providing us the exclusive righptoduce and distribute such content in those maudeting the applicable copyright terms.
We have invested significantly in a suite of dib@éad custom learning solutions. According to Masragnt Practice Inc. ("MPI"), we have a
20.5% market share at the end of 2014, up fromea&fithe end of 2012, an improvement of 140 basiistg since 2012.
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MHGE Higher Education’s products consist of thddwing:
e Digital Solutions

MHGE Higher Education’s digital solutions includanong others, online access to electronic texthanime
assessment software, adaptive learning solutiamsse management software, cloud-based classroom
activity capture and replay, and social network emehmunity tools. These solutions form a seamledly, digital
ecosystem that enhances the value and resultgloéhéducation over the entire learning lifecycle.

Our core digital learning platforms include:

McGraw-Hill Connect is a web-based learning suite that allows instmscim integrate digital content into their programfis

instruction, creating a customized and tailoredrigg environment that is accessible by studenysirae and anywhere through their
devices. Students can learn interactively througbexided video, simulations, virtual laboratorieglia programs and online games.
McGraw-Hill Connecttontains a suite of tools, including integrated @B course and assignment set-up tools, gradiddesmuback
tools, learning aids, reporting tools and an abtlitintegrate with outearnSmarandTegrity products to further enhance educational
outcomesMcGraw-Hill Connecis offered for most core freshman and sophomorel leaurses in the United States and serves 3
million unique users across campuses nationwid@@ease of 17% in 2014. We have grown revenuarocglly from $168 million

in 2013 to $203 million in 2014.

LearnSmart is an adaptive learning solution that provides estadent with tailored learning reinforcement basedhe student’s
responses and knowleddezarnSmaris an interactive product that determines whichcepts the student does not know or
understand and then teaches those concepts uperg@nalized plan designed for each student’s sacédl LearnSmarguestions ar
tied to clear learning objectives. Whstudents answer questions, they also rank howdemifithey are in their answers. Based on
student’s response and level of certaihigarnSmarcontinuously adapts the content presented to daderst, so the material is
always relevant and geared towards mastering #raitey objectives. Once a concept is mastdredrnSmarthen identifies the
concepts students are most likely to forget thraughhe term and encourages periodic review torertfiat concepts are truly
retained. According to a study we commissionegirnSmarhas shown to improve student outcomes by one Igtéete.

SmartBooks are digitized and enhanced versions of MHGE Hidfdrcation’s print product portfolio with adaptivepabilities
incorporated. OugmartBooksnd eBooks are designed to be compatible with acorange of devices, including the Kindle and Nool
eReaders, the iPad and other tablets and standsktbg and laptop computers. We believe 8raartBooksvill continue to increase

in popularity as they help make studying more édfit and effective and as the prevalence of thes&es also increaséSmartBooks
offer features not present in traditional printgwots, including adaptive, search/index functidgahote taking capabilities, embed
video, interactive elements and adaptive content.

Our SmartBooksind eBooks contain rights management featuresithatesigned to prevent copying or resale. Stugberytsor

eBooks based on usage for one school term. Therarpaid is designed to be comparable to the coatasfe-term rental of a print
textbook. Therefore, oBmartBooksind eBooks are priced lower than print textbookscbst us less to distribute and manufacture,
leading to comparable gross margin. Moreover, omdbing of digital solutions witfsmartBook&nd eBooks augments the economic:
of a digital sale and further improves the econam@tative to the traditional all-print model. Aktbe end of 2014 there were
approximately 45GmartBooksicross more than 175 courses in our Higher Educhtisiness as well as over several thousand el
across more than 450 courses.

ALEKS s an adaptive learning technology for the highteraation and K-12 education marked& EKSuses research-based, artificial
intelligence to rapidly and precisely determinelesiudent’s knowledge state, pinpointing exacthatdnstudent does and does not
know. ALEKSthen instructs students on the topics they are neasly to learn, constantly updating each studé&nisvledge state and
adapting to the
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student’s individualized learning needs. MHGE haskated and solALEKSfor math in the higher education space for more théa
years.

Tearity is a fully automated lecture capture solution usetaditional, hybrid and online courses to reclactures as well as
supplementary course contenggrityis designed to enhance both on-campus and rdeantging by allowing instructors to efficient
distribute lecture content and allowing studentteton anywhere and everywhere through digital k=ssiWe pricdegritybased on
either lecture hours recorded or number of studsets.

McGraw-Hill Create is a self-service website that enables instrudtodiscover, review, select and arrange contentpetrsonalized
print or electronic course materials, which inclid@00 textbooks, 17,300 articles, 46,500 cas8808&,eadings, 2,100 digital offers
and they can also include their own custom contdoGraw-Hill Createallows the creation of textbooks across a number of
disciplines and study areas, including accountingjness law, economics, finance, management, tidgk@hilosophy, political
science, sociology, world languages, anatomy apdiplogy, chemistry, engineering, biology, psyctyylpEnglish and mathematics.

e Custom publishing

MHGE Higher Education's custom solutions providecadors the ability to weave together various el@secluding digital text, digital
solutions, print, videos, charts and their own malg into a seamless, tailored learning solutrepjacing traditional print textbooks and prir
class materials. Custom materials, by their natumee a higher sell-through and are likely to hidnegr content frequently updated by the
instructor, resulting in frequent new publicatioftsced obsolescence of old editions and more dichie-distribution potential into used or
rental markets. Custom products create strongtipyalus from educators, as they typically invéghgicant time and effort into creating
unique learning solutions tailored to their teagmstyles. Our custom solutions are bundled arraegésrthat require us to attribute value to the
digital component separately. Excluding the digiaiponent, our custom business has grown from d5#tal MHGE Higher Education
sales in 2010 to 29% in 2014.

» Traditional print

MHGE Higher Education continues to provide studevith traditional print textbooks, with a library titles across the full spectrum of
subjects.

MHGE Professional Products

MHGE Professional is a leading provider of medibaisiness, technical and educational content aimirig solutions for students and
professionals when, where and through whicheveriunethey prefer. MHGE Professional’s products inlgwigital product portfolios and
textbooks. MHGE Professional’s digital product jpalib can be broadly categorized into two main gatées -eContent (including eBooks a
related applications) and digital subscription gas.

» Digital Subscription Services

MHGE Professional offers 19 digital subscriptiomvéees, which are platforms that provide searchabl@é customizable digital content
integrated with highly functional workflow tools @mre organized across three broad subject cagsgddiedical, Engineering & Science, and
Test Prep. These products are sold on an annusdidption basis (with a retention rate across mplatforms of approximately 93% for the
year endeDecember 31, 201¥into clinical medical markets worldwide, with av&700 corporate, academic, library and hospitatamers ¢
of December 31, 2014 . The flagship Access linprotiucts provide an integrated digital workspaeg tombines MHGE Professional’s
content, contextualized rich media and high-fumidy workflow tools such as custom curriculum,igfallows instructors to select specific
reference content, videos, and animations, assigtutlents and monitor progress. For examfdegssMedicines an innovative online
resource that provides students, residents, dingiresearchers, and all health professionalsasitess to content from
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more than 90 medical titles, updated content, thods of images and illustrations, interactive asfessment, case files, tisaving diagnosti
and point-of-care tools, a comprehensive seardfopta and the ability to view from and download tamt to a mobile device. Updated
frequently and expanded continuously by world-renegvphysiciansiccessMedicinprovides fast, direct access to the informatioressary
for completing evaluations, diagnoses, and casegement decisions, as well as for pursuing researetlical education, or self-assessment
and board review.

The value proposition of MHGE Professional’s dig#abscription platforms is compelling for our sofisers, and the economics are attractive
and highly scalable for us. Digital subscriptioatfdirms provide a stable, recurring revenue stre@msticky customers and very high annual
re-order rates; benefit from high barriers to ewlng to large volumes of proprietary content depetbover many years (with original use
typically for print products) aggregated and buddigth interactive media features; and are highbfipable due to the low variable cost nature
of these products, with gross margins of approxityed0%.

» eContent (eBooks)

eBooks represent the majority of MHGE Professianalontent offerings. MHGE Professiomsatollection of more than 7,700 eBooks are

on all major eBook retail websites and through MH&Bfessional's own websites. Our eBooks are deslign be compatible with a broad
range of devices, including the Kindle, Nook eReadthe iPad, more than 200 medical, test prephasthess mobile applications for the
iPhone and other tablets and standard desktopagiapl computers. MHGE Professional provides tinaglgt authoritative knowledge to
customers around the world through the release@f 800 titles per year. Our roster of distingutshethors and prestigious brands represent
some of the best-selling professional publicatisunsh adHarrison’s Principles of Internal MedicingPerry’s Chemical Engineers’ Handbook,
andGraham & Dodd’s Security Analysisd are welkegarded globally in both academic and professioasder markets. Our products are :
and distributed worldwide in both digital and priatmat through multiple channels, including resbédibraries and library consortia, third
party agents, direct sales to professional societgnbers, bookstores, online booksellers and otistomers, including directly to individuals.
Our top customers include retail trade (e.g., Amgzacademic and government institutions and cetpmrs.

MHGE I nternational Products

MHGE International sells MHGE Higher Education, MB®rofessional and other products and serviceduoational, professional, and
English language teaching markets in nearly 60Uaggs across Asia-Pacific, Europe, India, Latin Acae the Middle East, and North
America. While the business mix and strategic fafuglHGE International varies from region to regiaccording to local market dynamics,
MHGE International’s business strategy leveragesctintent, tools, services, and expertise frondoumnestic businesses. As a result of the
widespread use of English as a universal languagejority of MHGE International’s revenue duritg tyear ended December 31, 2014 was
generated by selling our unmodified U.S. productsrnationally. Approximately 67% of its revenuesagenerated from such unmodified U.S.
products together with U.S. products with minorioeglly-driven cosmetic changes or translation§/@8. products. Only approximately 33%
of MHGE International’s revenue for the year en@stember 31, 2014 was derived from content craatkatal markets or products
originating from unrelated publishers for distriloutin our international markets.

Although approximately 91% of MHGE Internationa?814 revenue was generated by traditional prindyets, digital offerings are driving
significant international growth. In more developadrkets, with a greater prevalence of digital desj many of our U.S.-developed digital
solutions, such agicGraw-Hill Connect ALEKSandLearnSmartre becoming more relevant. TileGraw-Hill Createplatform allows
instructors to assemble course materials from tlimary of textbooks, articles and business cisdies.

Raw Materials, Printing and Binding

Paper is one of the principal raw materials useglinbusiness. We have not experienced and dontiotpate experiencing difficulty in
obtaining adequate supplies of paper for operatidfeshave contracts to purchase paper
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and printing services that have target volume camenits. However, there are no contractual terntsrétguire us to purchase a specified
amount of goods or services and if significant wadushortfalls were to occur during a contract krtben revised terms may be renegotiated
with the supplier.

Environmental

We generally contract with independent printers lainders for their services. However, it is possithlat we could face liability, regardless of
fault, if contamination were to be discovered ooparties currently or formerly owned, operatedearskd by us or our predecessors, or to
which we or our predecessors have sent waste. BVeatrcurrently aware of any material environmelililities or other material
environmental issues at our properties or arisioghfour current operations. However, we cannotrasthat such liabilities or issues will not
materially adversely affect our business, finanp@dition or results of operations in the future.

Seasonality

Our revenues, operating profit and operating clsirsfare affected by the inherent seasonality efabademic calendar, particularly with
respect to MHGE Higher Education and MHGE Inteiorzdi. In 2014, we realized approximately 36% an® 28 our revenues during the th
and fourth quarters, respectively. This seasonafigcts operating cash flow from quarter to quaated hence there are certain months when
we operate at a net cash deficit from our actisit@hanges in our customers’ ordering patternsaffagt the comparison of our results in a
guarter with the same quarter of the previous ya&an a fiscal year with the prior fiscal year, &vh our customers may shift the timing of
material orders for any number of reasons, inclgdiut not limited to, changes in academic semeséet dates or changes to their inventory
management practices.

Competition

We are one of the largest education companiesinvtirld by revenue. Our product portfolio and costo base span the entire educational
spectrum, and as a result we compete with a vasfetpmpanies in different product offerings. Camger competitors include Pearson and
Cengage. We believe that we are well positionezbtopete with our peer group in the following kegas: digital products, sales force
execution and brand equity.

Our Personnel

As of December 31, 2014, we had more than 2,600am@es worldwide directly supporting our operatiavith approximately 1,400 employ
in the United States. None of our employees inthited States are represented by a union.

Intellectual Property

Our products contain intellectual property delivketierough a variety of media, including digital goiht. We rely on a combination of
copyrights, trademarks, patents, non-disclosureeagents and other agreements to protect our ictigdleproperty and proprietary rights. We
also obtain significant content, materials and nebdbgy through license arrangements with thirdypheensors.

We have registered certain patents, trademarks@mgtights in connection with our publishing busises. We also register domain names,
when appropriate, for use in connection with oubsies and internet addresses. We believe we aittieior have obtained the rights to use
intellectual property rights necessary to provide groducts and services. We believe we have ta@hgcontinue to take, in the ordinary
course of business, appropriate legal steps tegrotur intellectual property in all relevant juistions.

We rely on authors for the majority of the contimtour products. In most cases, copyright owngrslais either vested in us, as a “work made

for hire”, been assigned to us by the original art(®), or the author has retained the copyrightgmadted us an exclusive license to utilize the
work.
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Piracy of intellectual property can negatively affthe value of and demand for our products andses. We attempt to mitigate the risk of
piracy through (1) the implementation of restrietivse mechanisms and other limitations inhereatitgroducts and (2) the use of online
monitoring combined with legal and regulatory acti@nd initiatives.

Some of our products contain inherent usage canénadl other built-in safeguards that reduce theatisl ease of piracy, including: (a)
requirements that users login to their accountk wéer names and passwords; (b) the fact thatnghacicount access for many of our products
would result in an abnormal user experience anctinate grading; (c) use by our eBook providersnoé-based lockouts that allow our
eBooks to be automatically disabled based on sihiger length; and (d) the inherent limitationstive usefulness and ease of copying the tex
of many of our products, due to the adaptive atel@ttive nature of our key content together wéhain limitations on copying and pasting.

We also use a variety of legal actions, regulaboitiatives and online monitoring efforts to furthmitigate piracy concerns, including:
- Online monitoring of piracy-related activities;
- Initiation of litigation against certain infringg both individually and jointly with other domesand foreign publishers;
- Requesting that third parties take down ngimng content;
- Lobbying efforts;
- Monitoring of our digital applications for abnoatload/usage; and
- Anti-piracy educational programs.

Since 2007, we have engaged an outside firm tlest web-based technology to search for active titlasare illegally posted or distributed on
the internet. We also perform other regular searébeillegal use or distribution of our contemtyéstigate notices of illegal postings of our
intellectual property and send take down noticdagatirnet service providers and web sites whemniging material is identified. Over the past
years, we have joined with other educational phblis to engage outside counsel to investigateiEndumerous copyright and trademark s

in federal court against various online sellers distributors of infringing copies of our copyriglt materials. We have partnered with various
trade associations, such as the Association of farePublishers (AAP) and the Software Informatiotustry Association (SIIA), to pursue
joint actions against sources of both print andtetmic piracy, lobby legislative and other govesmofficials in the U.S. and abroad
establish laws and regulations that might assistezd owners in combating piracy. We place a “Repaoacy” button on various internal and
external sites to enable employees, authors ardiphities to report instances of illegal contdstribution, which are investigated and actio
as appropriate.

The Founding Transactions

Pursuant to a Purchase and Sale Agreement, datédNasvember 26, 2012 and as amended on Marchig @he“Purchase and Sale
Agreement”), among MHE Acquisition LLC (“AcquisitiC0”), The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., (“MHC") angbrtain other subsidiaries of
MHC named therein, as sellers (collectively, thell&s”), and McGrawHill Education LLC, AcquisitionCo acquired from tigellers all of th
outstanding equity interests of certain subsidgaoieMHC named in the Purchase and Sale Agreemsel¢tively, the “Acquired Business”).
The Acquired Business included all of MHC’s eduaadl materials and learning solutions businesschvhias comprised of two segments: (i)
the Higher Education, Professional and Internati@raup (the “HPI business”), which included postsndary education and professional
products both in the United States and internatipaad (ii) the School Education Group businesg (1ISEG business”which included schot
and assessment products targeting students irrehldnergarten through secondary school marketréfér to the purchase of the Acquired
Business as the “Founding Acquisition.” As of cosatfan of the Founding Acquisition, Apollo Global adagement, LLC (the “Sponsor”),
certain co-investors and certain members of managedirectly or indirectly owned all of the equityerests of AcquisitionCo.

In connection with the Founding Acquisition, a rasturing (the “Restructuring”) was completed, theult of which was that the HPI business
and the SEG business became held by different tagdles. The HPI business
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became held by McGraw-Hill Global Education HoldngLC (“MHGE Holdings”) and its subsidiaries, whithe SEG business became held
by McGraw-Hill School Education Intermediate Holg& LLC (“MHSE Holdings”),a separate wholly owned subsidiary of MHE US Hadi
LLC (“Parent”), and MHSE Holdings' subsidiaries I{eotively, "MHSE"). The Restructuring took placercurrently with the closing of the
Founding Acquisition.

Concurrently with the closing of the Founding Acsjtion, MHGE Holdings entered into $1,050 millioensor secured credit facilities (the
“Senior Facilities”), which included a $240 milligevolving credit facility (the “revolving credittility”) and a $810 million term loan credit
facility (the “term loan facility”). In addition, MIGE Holdings issued $800 million aggregate princgraount of 9.75% first priority senior
secured notes due 2021 (the “senior secured notdsIBE entered into separate credit facilities. MEHBoldings nor its parent companies
guarantee or provide collateral to the financingM#iSE Holdings, and MHSE Holdings does not guarardr provide collateral to the
financing of MHGE Holdings or its parent companies.

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we ediively refer to the Founding Acquisition, the Resturing, the investment in
AcquisitionCo’s equity, the consummation of theisesecured notes offering and the entry into teri& Facilities as the “Founding
Transactions.”

Iltem 1A. RISK FACTORS

Any of the following risks could materially and adsely affect our business, financial conditiorresults of operation:

Risks Related to Our Business
Introduction of new products, services or technoloigs could impact our profitability.

We operate in highly competitive markets with sfgpaint established competitors that continue tangeato adapt to customer needs. In ord
maintain a competitive position, we must continnéntvest in new offerings and new ways to deliver products and services. These
investments may not be profitable or may be lesfitable than what we have experienced historicafiyparticular, in the context of our
current focus on key digital opportunities, incluglieBooks and adaptive learning products, the méskeeginning to develop and we may be
unsuccessful in establishing or maintaining ourselas a significant factor in any market which ddegelop. New distribution channels, such
as digital formats, the internet, online retailensl mobile delivery platforms (e.g., e-readersdspnt both threats and opportunities to our
traditional publishing models, potentially impactiboth sales volumes and pricing. We expect thatesults in 2015 and beyond may be
adversely impacted if sales from print productd daicline at a rate faster than the increase weatpom digital publications, in part due to
offerings from new competitors.

We could fail to meet our obligations or experiencéhreats to our existing business that could have @egative impact on our financial
results due to the technology environment within with we operate.

We rely on our information technology, such as dases, systems and applications, to support kelupt@nd service offerings. We believe
we have appropriate policies, processes and iriteomérols to ensure the stability of our infornuetitechnology, provide security from
unauthorized access to our systems and maintaindssscontinuity, but our business could be sultgestgnificant disruption and our
operating results may be adversely affected by ticipated system failures, data corruption or uhatized access to our systems.

With regard to our printed textbooks, we compete wth the used textbook market and rental textbook prgrams for sales of our
textbooks, and the growth of the used textbook mart and/or rental textbook programs may adversely déct our business.

The higher education used print textbook marketgnag/n in recent years, driven primarily by mor&aéént distribution of used books and 1
cost of new textbooks. Our print textbook custonagesoften presented with the option to purchasearaused textbooks, and we do not
generate revenues from any sale after the ingilal sf our
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textbooks. In addition, an increasing number ofdstares and online companies are offering textlreokal programs. Historically, the
difficulty in making used textbooks available tadtnts limited the growth of the used textbook raarkhe internet, however, has made the
used textbook market more efficient and has sigaifily increased student access to used textb®bkstental market also increased the
efficiency of the used textbook market by increggime return rate of rented used textbooks, whietrented multiple times. If the supply of
used textbooks or textbook rental programs inceatadents may increasingly look to purchase tesgbiooks or rent textbooks as an
alternative to purchasing our new textbooks. Wenprily compete against used and rental textbookb@masis of supply, price and the
development of customized products. If we are umabkffectively compete with growing competitioregented by the used textbooks and
rental textbook markets, we could experience ailosales and our business, financial positionrasdlts of operations may be adversely
affected.

A significant increase in operating costs and expees could have a material adverse effect on our dit@bility.

Our major expenses include employee compensationing, paper and distribution costs.

*  We offer competitive salary and benefit packagesrder to attract and retain the quality empés/eequired to grow and expand our
business. Compensation costs are influenced byrg@les@nomic  factors, including those affectihg cost of health insurance and
benefits, and any trends specific to  the enmgraskill sets we require.

» Marketplace paper prices fluctuate based omitbhrddwide demand and supply for paper in generdlfanthe specific types of paper
we use. For the year ended December 31, 2014papar costs were approximately 8% of cost of gaodts. Generally, we have
experienced stable paper pricing with majority ofrgstic paper spending (approximately 54% of tgpeht) being stabilized through
contractual limitations on market-based price fhations and international paper spending (approein@6%) fluctuating with the
market. We utilize several methods to try to marthgerisk, including, without limitation, negoted price reductions, long-term
agreements and changing paper types to lower ltesta@ives, but these strategies may not be énsreccessful.

e Our books and ancillary materials are printedHhisd parties and we typically have multi-yeansee contracts for printing of books
and ancillary materials in order to reduce pricetiiations over the contract term.

* We make significant investments in information tealogy and other technology initiatives. Althoughk elieve we are prudent in «
investment strategies and execution of our implaat&m plans, there is no assurance as to theatiimecoverability of these
investments.

An increase in our operating costs and expensdd bawe a material, adverse effect on our profiitgbfinancial position and results of
operations.

Our ability to protect our intellectual property ri ghts could impact our competitive position.

Our products contain intellectual property delivketierough a variety of media, including digital goiht. Our ability to achieve anticipated
results depends in part on our ability to defendioigllectual property against infringement. Opeacating results may be adversely affected b
inadequate legal and technological protectionsrii@llectual property and proprietary rights in sojarisdictions and markets.

We rely on a combination of copyrights, trademapeents, trade secrets and nondisclosure agregtogmtotect our intellectual property and
proprietary rights. Our efforts to protect our itgetual property and proprietary rights may notshéficient. We may also be required to initi
expensive and time-consuming litigation to maintdiefend or enforce our intellectual property. didition, our ability to enforce and protect
our intellectual property rights may be limitedd@rtain countries outside the United States, whiely impact our profitability.

Despite copyright and trademark protection, thiadtips may be able to copy, infringe, illegallytdisute, import or resell or otherwise profit
from our proprietary rights without our authorizati These unauthorized activities may be more\e&esgiilitated by the internet. In addition,
the lack of internet-specific legislation relatitwintellectual property protection creates an taddal challenge for us in protecting our
proprietary rights relating to our digital
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technology. The steps taken by us to protect copnEtary information may not be adequate to prew@sappropriation of our content or
technology. In addition, our proprietary rights met be adequately protected because infringersmotige deterred from misappropriating
our technologies despite the existence of law®aotracts prohibiting it. Furthermore, policing uttaarized use of our intellectual property n
be difficult, expensive and time-consuming (whicayntivert our management from implementing our hess strategy), and we may be
unable to determine the extent of any unauthonized

Competitors may harm our sales by designing pradiett mirror the capabilities of our productsemtinology without infringing our
intellectual property rights. If we do not obtainfficient protection for our intellectual property, if we are unable to effectively enforce our
intellectual property rights, our competitivenessid be impaired, which would limit our growth afhdure revenue.

We may be adversely affected by piracy, unauthorizecopying, file-sharing or other infringements on ar intellectual property,
including our digital content.

As we and our industry transition from providingnprcontent to providing digital content, the riskpiracy, illegal downloading, filsharing o
other infringements of our intellectual propertyymiacrease. An increasing portion of our revenumes from the sale of digital products that
are potentially subject to unauthorized consumeyitw or digital dissemination without an econométurn to us. While we use digital rights
management features to protect our digital solstiono digital rights management system is foolprantl all such systems are subject to
unauthorized tampering or modification. New formfatsour digital solutions, together with the dexsmg cost of electronic and computer
equipment that can potentially be used to copyissaininate our products, may make us more suséefithe unauthorized use of our
products. If we fail to maintain and develop effeettechnological means of protecting our intellattproperty, we could experience a loss in
sales and our business, financial position andtsestioperations may be adversely affected.

Failure to comply with privacy law and/or a data seurity breach may cause reputational damage to anfinancial loss.

We collect, process and store personally identdiabformation (PII) of our employees, customensqd student end users. As we continu
transition from a traditional print textbook pulbles to a digital learning company, we collect atateslarger volumes of sensitive PII of «
users, including PII of students of all ages.

We are subject to a wide array of different privdaws, regulations and standards in the UnitedeStand in foreign jurisdictions where
conduct business, including but not limited tatti@ Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act ("CO®R and state student data privacy lan
connection with access to, collection of, and usBlbof students, (ii) the Health Insurance Poilthband Accountability Act (“HIPAA”) in
connection with our self-insured health plan, (i Payment Card Industry Data Security Stand@dRi3I-DSS”) in connection with collectic
of credit card information from customers, and (@rious EU data protection laws resulting from Elg Privacy Directive. Our failure
comply with applicable privacy laws, regulationgdastandards could lead to significant reputatiatehage and other penalties and ¢
including loss of revenue.

We have enterprise and local policies, processes rdernal controls in place that are designegrevent unauthorized access to Pl ar
comply with applicable local laws, regulations atandards, but there is no guarantee that thedsotowill be adequate to prevent all poss
security threats. If an incident occurs - such adata security breachit could lead to penalties, remediation costs, t&jonal damag
potential cancellation of existing contracts anabitity to compete for future business.

Our brand and customer trust are critical assetsdio Company. In the event of negative publicégarding the Company’s adherence to
applicable privacy laws, regulations, and standarglether valid or not valid -- the resulting régtional damage could reduce demand for ou
products and adversely affect our relationship watichers, educators and institutions. This reactiay have an immediate and/or long term
impact on both new and renewed sales, and maytdesttbrt and/or long term revenue loss.
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We face intense competition in all aspects of ounusiness.

Competition among companies offering education petslis intense and includes a few large indusryigipants. Like us, these competitors
have been in the market for a long period of time eould potentially shift customers away from ust jas we could win customers from them.
Many of our competitors have substantial finanmalources, recognized brands, technological espgeastid market experience. Our
competitors are also continuously enhancing threidpcts and services, developing new products endces and investing in technology.
Some of our competitors are acquiring additionaifesses in key sectors that will allow them t@o# broader array of products and service:
than either they or we currently provide. Somewf@mpetitors have greater resources and lesslubus, and therefore, may be able to
adapt more quickly to new or emerging technologigs changes in customer requirements, or devostggreesources to the development,
promotion and sale of their products than we camaddition, a large number of new and emerging aiitgrs are seeking to capture market
share. This high level of competition could causeauincur unanticipated costs associated with /igireg, marketing, sales, research and
product development. Competition may require uthuce the price of our products and services denadditional capital investments that
would adversely affect our profit margins. Thera ba no assurance that we will be able to competeessfully in the future with existing or
potential competitors in all markets. The actiohewr competitors could therefore have a mateaidlerse effect on our business, financial
position and results of operations.

Declining enrollment at colleges and universitiesatild reduce demand for our products.

U.S. colleges and universities have experiencegent decline in enrollment, and if this declinatawues, it could lead to decreased demand
for our products. Uncertainty about current andf@teconomic conditions, decreases in family incamnet worth and a perception of
uncertain job prospects for recent graduates, amtrey factors, can adversely affect demand fondrigegducation. In addition to these factors,
enrollment levels at colleges and universitiesidatsf the U.S. are influenced by the global armhl@conomic climate, local political
conditions and other factors that make predictorgigin enroliment levels difficult. Our higher edtion business revenues in the U.S.
accounted for approximately 65% of our revenuerduthe year ended December 31, 2014 and we gederdtitional revenue from higher
education globally. Reduced enrollment at colleygs universities could lead to decreased demanalfioproducts, negatively impacting our
business, financial position and results of opereti

We may not be able to continue to attract or retairthe key authors that we need to remain competitivand grow.

We depend on our ability to continue to attract eetdin talented authors and develop long-ternialborative relationships with them. We
operate in a number of highly visible markets wheere is intense competition for successful, @gd authors. Authorship of a market-
leading textbook may increase the market visibiityan author and result in his or her recruitrmmnother publishers or increase the royalties
we must pay such authors. Our rights to exclusie#figr authors’ content is dependent on the authiassfer of copyrights to us through
licensing and assignment agreements. The UnitadsS@opyright Act of 1976, as amended, allows @hauor his or her heirs or estate),
during a 5-year window, to terminate a previousyeigint transfer and thereby regain certain Unitéateés rights to his or her works. For
copyrights transferred on or after January 1, 19785-year window begins 35 years from the dateasisfer, or if the grant provides a right to
publish, the shorter of 35 years from the dateutdlipation or 40 years from the date of transfer. €opyrights transferred before January 1,
1978, the 5-year window begins 56 years from ttie da which the copyright was first secured or dayd, 1978, whichever is later. An
author who terminates the grant of rights to his@rwork could seek to terminate all rights in W@k transferred to us or else negotiate more
favorable economic or other terms. Such terminatialong with our inability to attract new authdts loss of certain of our high profile
authors or increased costs incurred in attractmg@taining authors could harm our business, regifloperations and financial position.
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Increased accessibility of free or relatively inexensive information and materials may reduce demantbr or negatively impact the
pricing of our products and services.

In recent years, more public sources of free atiradly inexpensive information and research mateiave become available, particularly in
digital formats and through the internet, and digiersions of products have been offered at Igwieing than similar products offered in
traditional media such as print. We expect themeds to continue. For example, some governmenthfegulatory agencies have increased th
amount of information they make publicly availafde free and certain educational institutions hanseeased demand for lower priced
educational materials, including eBooks at pricelew the price of print books. Technological changad the availability of free or relatively
inexpensive information and materials have alsecifd changes in consumer behavior and expectaRoibic and private sources of free or
relatively inexpensive information and lower prigifor digital products may reduce demand and imffeeprices we can charge for our
products and services. To the extent that techimabghanges and the availability of free or refally inexpensive information and materials
limit the prices we can charge or demand for oodpcts and services, our business, financial posénd results of operations may be
adversely affected.

If we are unable to hire and retain skilled personel, our business could be adversely affected.

We are dependent on our ability to hire and retaented, highly skilled employees, including enygles with specific areas of expertise.
Accomplishing this may be difficult due to many tiars, including the geographic location of our medmporate and business offices,
fluctuations in global economic and industry coimdis, changes in our management and leadershipftifaetiveness of our compensation
programs and the impact of our restructuring pamemployee morale. If we do not succeed in ratgioiur key employees and in attracting
new skilled personnel, including personnel withcifie areas of expertise, we may be unable to raaestrategic objectives and, as a result,
our business could be adversely affected.

Further, as our strategic direction changes toesidnew opportunities, especially in the fast-chrndigital marketplace, we may not have
employees whose skills fully align with those reqdito achieve our strategic objectives. In sonsesave may need to hire suitably skilled
employees to address strategic issues we may eteconrhe future.

We face risks of doing business abroad and in dewgling markets.

As we continue to expand our overseas businestaeethe increased risks of doing business abipnaldiding inflation, fluctuation in interest
rates, changes in applicable laws and regulatayirements including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Reast Act, the U.K. Bribery Act, export a
import restrictions, tariffs, nationalization, erpriation, limits on repatriation of funds, civihtest, terrorism, unstable governments and legal
systems, and other factors. Adverse developmerasyirof these areas could cause actual resulifféo mhaterially from historical and/or
expected operating results.

In addition, our international operations and amneifgn business expansion we may undertake prasemtrous risks, including: difficulties in
penetrating new markets due to established andresfied competitors; difficulties in developing pwoth and services that are tailored to the
needs of local customers; customers in certairigoreountries may have longer payment cycles; &tiohs in the ability to repatriate funds to
the United States; difficulties in protecting inégltual property, enforcing agreements and cohigateceivables under certain foreign legal
systems; lack of local acceptance or knowledgeauofpooducts and services; and lack of recognitiooun brands.

The conduct of our business, including the souroiihgontent, distribution, sales, marketing andeatising is subject to various laws and

regulations administered by governments aroundvtiiid. Changes in those laws, regulations or gawemt policies, including tax regulations
and accounting standards, may adversely affectubuire financial results.
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In addition, doing business in developing markets & higher relative risk due to political instiipjleconomic volatility, terrorism, corruption,
social and ethnic unrest, and other factors. W4ales in these markets are not currently materialt results, adverse developments related t
the risks associated with these markets may catsalaesults to differ from historical and foretkfuture operating results.

Fluctuations between foreign currencies and the U.Slollar could have an unfavorable impact on our faancial results.

We derived approximately 26% of our total revenuéhie year ended December 31, 2014 from our intiemeal sales operations. The financial
position and results of operations of our inteioradi operations are primarily measured using theido currency in the jurisdiction of
operation of such business as the functional cayreis a result, we are exposed to currency fluaina both in receiving cash from our
international operations and in translating ouaficial results back into U.S. dollars. For examfuegign exchange rates had an unfavorable
impact on our revenue of $6 million for the yeadett December 31, 2014 . We have operations inw&fareign countries where the
functional currency is primarily the local curren&pr international operations that are determiiodae extensions of the parent company, the
United States dollar is the functional currencyr @uncipal currency exposures relate to the AdistnaDollar, British Pound, Canadian Dollar,
Euro, Mexican Peso and Singapore Dollar. Assetdiahiiities of our international operations arartslated at the exchange rate in effect at
each balance sheet date. Our income statementrasare translated at the average rate of exchdunggg the period. A strengthening of the
U.S. dollar against the relevant foreign currerejuces the amount of income we recognize fromragarnational operations. In addition,
certain of our international operations generatemees in the applicable local currency or in auweies other than the U.S. dollar, but purchas
inventory and incur costs primarily in U.S. dollaFsom time to time, we may enter into hedging rrgements with respect to foreign currency
exposures.

We cannot predict the effects of exchange ratduations on our future operating results. As exgearates vary, our results of operations anc
profitability may be materially adversely impactédthe risks we face in foreign currency transactiamng translation may continue to increas
we further develop and expand our internationatatpens, which could adversely affect our businéesancial position and results of
operations.

We rely on third-party distributors, representatives and retailers to sell certain of our products anaur ability to bring products to
market may be adversely affected by the loss or fare of one or more of our distributors.

In addition to our own sales force, we offer ousgarcts through a variety of third-party distriborepresentatives and retailers. We do not
ultimately control the performance of our third{yadistributors, representatives and retailerseidgym as required or to our expectations.
Also, certain of our distributors, representativesetailers may market other products that compette our products. The loss or termination
of one or more of our distributors, representativeretailers, the failure of one or more of owtdbutors or representatives to effectively
promote our products or meet our contractual requénts, or changes in the financial or businesdition of these distributors or
representatives could affect our ability to brimggucts to market. Our failure to bring productsntarket could have a material, adverse effect
on our revenues, profitability, results of operati@nd financial condition.

We generally permit our distributors to return prot they purchase from us. When we record revemeeecord an allowance for sales
returns, which is based on the historical rateestiirn and current market conditions. Should thienesé of the allowance for sales returns vary
by one percentage point from the estimate we usecording our allowance, the impact on operatirapime would be approximately $2
million.

A significant portion of our sales is concentrate@n a small number of customers. Our profitability and
financial results may be impaired if our customers’demand for our products is reduced.

A significant portion of our sales have been tatiekly few customers, which is reflective of contration in our industry and seasonality of
the business. As of December 31, 2014 and 2018 ctistomers comprised
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approximately 31% and 29% of our gross accountsivable, respectively. For the year ended Decer®bgp014, two customers, Barnes and
Noble Inc. and Follet Corporation, accounted fovel@nd 12% of our revenue, respectively. For theogderanuary 1, 2013 to March 22, 20

no single customer accounted for more than 10%upfjooss revenue. For the period March 23, 2013d¢cember 31, 2013, two customers,
Barnes & Noble Inc. and Follett Corporation, acdedrfor 12% and 11% of our gross revenue, respgtifhe loss of, or any reduction in
sales or collections from, a significant custonmuld harm our business and financial results.

Defects in our digital products could decrease mawmkt acceptance of our products and harm our reputatin.

In the fast-changing digital marketplace, demandrfoovative technology has generally resultedhiorslead times for producing products that
meet customer specifications. Growing demand foowation and additional functionality in digitalqotucts increases the risk that our prod
may contain flaws or corrupted data, and thesectlefeay only become apparent after product laupatiicularly for new products and new
features to existing products that are developeldbaought to market under tight time constrainteulr customers have a negative experience
with one of our digital products, they may be lesdined to continue to purchase our products aetmmmend our products to others, which
could result in reduced sales of our products alveisely affect our business, prospects, and sestitiperations.

We may make strategic acquisitions, and these acauitions could introduce significant risks and uncetainties, including risks related to
integrating the acquired businesses and/or achievinbenefits from our acquisitions.

In order to position ourselves to take advantaggredvth opportunities, we may make strategic adtjois that involve significant risks and
uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties ircl(®) the difficulty in integrating newly acquirédisinesses and operations in an efficient ana
effective manner, (2) the challenges in achievinatsgic objectives, cost savings and other argteigh benefits from acquisitions, (3) the
potential loss of key employees of the acquiredriasses, (4) the risk of diverting the attentios@fior management from our operations, (5)
risks associated with integrating financial repagtand internal control systems, (6) difficultiaseixpanding information technology systems
and other business processes to accommodate thiesatusinesses and (7) future impairments of gabdf an acquired business.

We could experience difficulties in integrating gemphically separated organizations, systems asilitiizs, and personnel with diverse
backgrounds. Integration of an acquired businessaly require management resources that othewaigkel be available for development of
our existing business. If an acquired business faibperate as anticipated or cannot be succhssftdgrated with our existing business,
results of operations and financial condition cduddadversely affected.

Changes in governmental programs and private lendig practices may reduce our revenues or profitabilif.

Students comprise a significant portion of our coner base. Many of these students depend on goeetrand private funding, in the form of
loans or grants, to pay for their education, inglgccourse books, digital products and other malerMany of these programs are highly
regulated and subject to frequent and substaritaiges. In recent years, legislative and regulatbaynges have resulted in limitations on and
in some cases, reductions in levels of paymenstuients. Without sufficient government-sponsooath Iprograms, some of these students
may have to forego higher education opportunittesa result, any decreases or delays in governspamnsored student loans or grants could
reduce enrollment and thereby lead to decreasedmt®for our products, negatively impacting our bass, financial position and results of
operations.

We may face intellectual property infringement clams that could be time-consuming and costly to deférand could result in our loss of
significant rights.

Litigation regarding copyrights and other intellegtproperty rights is extensive in the publishindustry, including claims involving the terr
by which text, photographs and other content @enked to us for inclusion in our textbooks an@oproducts. We are currently subject to
such claims and may continue to be in the future. O
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third-party suppliers may also become subject fitnigement claims, which in turn could negativatypact our business.

Litigation is expensive and time-consuming andthaspotential to divert management’s attention fimm business and could have an advers
effect on our business, financial position and ltesaf operations. If there is a successful clafrinfsingement against us, our customers or oul
third party intellectual property providers, we nmayrequired to pay substantial damages to thg piiming infringement, stop selling
products or using technology that contains thegaliy infringing intellectual property or enterantoyalty or license agreements that may not
be available on acceptable terms, if at all. Altltidse requirements could damage our business. &/éave to develop non-infringing
technology and our failure in doing so or to obt&rnses to the proprietary rights on a reasonabtamely basis could have an adverse effect
on our business, financial position and resultsp#rations.

Consolidation in the markets in which we operate add place us at a competitive disadvantage.

Some of the markets in which we operate have espeeid significant consolidation. In particular, dwembinations of traditional media cont
companies and new media distribution companies resudted in new business models and strategigsledly, the consolidation of book
retailers has increased our reliance on certaitomess. We cannot predict with certainty the exterwhich these types of business
combinations may occur or the impact that they fmaye. These combinations could potentially placatwscompetitive disadvantage with
respect to negotiations, scale, resources, andhilitly to develop and exploit new media technoésgiwhich could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial position and resoitsperations.

We entered into shared services agreements to prod MHSE certain services and we may be obligated tmntinue to provide such
services in the event MHSE is unable to pay its altated costs.

As part of the Restructuring, we entered into sthaervices agreements to provide MHSE certain aesvincluding, but not limited to, payroll,
marketing, finance, accounting, legal, procuremiafibtrmation technology, inventory management, piaithn operations, cash management
and human resources, as well as the use of spaeetain of our locations. We allocated costs to3#Hor providing the applicable services
and space, to be settled in cash on a regular. bagie event that MHSE is unable to pay its alted costs for the services provided, including
in connection with a bankruptcy of MHSE, we mayotiigated to continue to provide such servicesymmsto the shared services agreement
without compensation, which could also have a negamnpact on our business, financial position eggllts of operations.

Our business relies on our hosting facilities andlectronic delivery systems and any failures or disrptions may adversely affect our
ability to serve our customers.

We depend on the capacity, reliability and secuwoftgur hosting facilities and electronic delivesystems to provide our online products to our
customers. Use of our electronic delivery systentsather factors such as loss of service from thadies, operational failures, sabotage,
break-ins, and similar disruptions from unauthatizempering or hacking, human error, national déesaspower loss, or computer viruses
could cause our systems to operate slowly or impeitheir availability for periods of time. The liaie of our electronic delivery systems may
result in an interruption in our operations, haootrr reputation and loss of revenue. If disrugjdailures or slowdowns of our electronic
delivery systems occur, our ability to distributer products and services effectively and to setwecastomers may be adversely affected. We
do not currently have a backup facility for allafr online products, and any disruption to our enthosting facilities could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial position and ltssef operations.

Our Sponsor’s interest may conflict with or differ from our interests.

Our Sponsor controls our ultimate parent comparhyclvindirectly owns 100% of our common equity aliidition, representatives of our
Sponsor comprise a majority of our directors. Assult, our Sponsor can control our ability to eiméo significant corporate transactions suct
as mergers, tender offers and the sale of all lostantially all of our assets. The interests of ponsor and its affiliates could conflict with or
differ from our interests. For
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example, the concentration of ownership held bySponsor could delay, defer or prevent a changemtrol of our company or impede a
merger, takeover or other business combination twimay otherwise be favorable for us.

Our ultimate parent company is also the ultimatepacompany of MHSE, which owns the SEG businEksrefore, in addition to controlling
our activities through its control of Parent, opoSsor can also control the activities of MHSE thyle this same ownership and control
structure. There can be no assurance that our 8puatiknot decide to focus its attention and reses on MHSE or on matters relating to
MHSE that otherwise could be directed to our bussrend operations. If our Sponsor determines tasfattention and resources on MHSE
instead of us, it could adversely affect our apil@t expand our existing business or develop nesiness.

Additionally, our Sponsor is in the business of ingknvestments in companies and may, from timgnte, acquire and hold interests in
businesses that compete, directly or indirecthhwis. Our Sponsor may also pursue acquisition dppities that may be complementary to
business, and as a result, those acquisition appties may not be available to us. Additionallyee if our Sponsor invests in competing
businesses through Parent, such investments mapalsiade through MHSE. Any such investment masease the potential for the conflicts
of interest discussed in this risk factor.

So long as our Sponsor continues to indirectly avsignificant amount of the equity of our ultimagrent company, even if such amount is
less than 50%, they will continue to be able tossamtially influence or effectively control our &tyi to enter into any corporate transactions.

Because our equity securities are not registereérute securities laws of the United States @niyn other jurisdiction and are not listed on
U.S. securities exchange, we are not subject taioesf the corporate governance requirements 8f Becurities authorities or to any corporat
governance requirements of any U.S. securitiesangds.

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affectur ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to
react to changes in the economy or our industry angrevent us from making debt service payments.

We are a highly leveraged company. As of DecembePB14 , we had $1,481 million face value of arsing indebtedness (in addition to
$240 million of commitments under our revolvingditeacility of which nil was drawn (without givingffect to letters of credit)), and for the
year ended December 31, 2014, we had total delitegrayment obligations of $166 million (includiagproximately $78 million of del
service relating to fixed rate obligations).

Our substantial indebtedness could have importamtequences to the holders of our notes. For exaitgbuld:

» limit our ability to borrow money for our workincapital, capital expenditures, debt service megoénts, strategic initiatives or other
purposes;

* make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligans with respect to our indebtedness and anyriatio comply with the obligations
any of our debt instruments, including restrictboxvenants and borrowing conditions, could resultrirevent of default under the
agreements governing our indebtedness;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portioausfcash flow from operations to the repaymentwfindebtedness, thereby reducing
funds available to us for other purposes;

« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our operations or busir

« make us more highly leveraged than some of our etitops, which may place us at a competitive disadage

* make us more vulnerable to downturns in our busioeshe econom

» restrict us from making strategic acquisitiomsgaging in development activities, introducing nieehnologies or exploiting business
opportunities;

e cause us to make natrategic divestiture

» limit, along with the financial and other restive covenants in our indebtedness, among otlirgghour ability to borrow additional
funds or dispose of assets; or
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e expose us to the risk of increased interessrate certain of our borrowings, including borroggrunder the Senior Facilities, are at
variable rates of interest.

In addition, the agreements governing our indet#ssgcontain restrictive covenants that will limit ability to engage in activities that may be
in our long-term best interest. Our failure to cdynpith those covenants could result in an everdafault which, if not cured or waived, could
result in the acceleration of substantially albaf indebtedness.

Despite our substantial indebtedness, we may stike able to incur significantly more debt, which cold intensify the risks described
above.

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur snbatandebtedness in the future. Although the ®ohthe agreements governing our
indebtedness contain restrictions on our and dosidiaries’ability to incur additional indebtedness, thesérietfons are subject to a numbe
important qualifications and exceptions, and thieebtedness incurred in compliance with these odistns could be substantial. These
restrictions also will not prevent us from incugiabligations that do not constitute indebtednEss.example, as of December 31, 2014 , we
had approximately $240 million available for adufital borrowing under the revolving credit facilprtion of our Senior Facilities (without
giving effect to letters of credit), all of whichowld be secured. The more leveraged we becomeyahe we, and in turn our security holders,
will be exposed to certain risks described abow#eurrOur substantial indebtedness could adversely affiecability to raise additional capit
to fund our operations, limit our ability to reaotchanges in the economy or our industry and prewe from making debt service payments.”

Our operating results fluctuate on a seasonal andugrterly basis and in the event that we do not gemate sufficient net sales in the
quarter that payment is due on our debt, we may nobe able to meet our debt service obligations.

Our business is seasonal. Purchases of MHGE HIgthecation products are typically made in the thind fourth quarters for the semesters
starting classes in September and January. Wesatlypiealize approximately 36% and 29% of net sdla$ng the third and fourth quarters,
respectively, making third-quarter results matewaull-year performance. This sales seasonaffscés operating cash flow from quarter to
quarter. There are months when we operate at@shbtdeficit from our activities. We cannot maksuaances that our third quarter net sales
will continue to be sufficient to meet our obligats or that they will be higher than net salesiarother quarters. In the event that we do not
derive sufficient net sales in the third quartee, way not be able to meet our debt service reqeinésrand other obligations.

Our debt agreements contain restrictions that willimit our flexibility in operating our business.

The agreements contain, and future indebtednesgrsfwould likely contain, a number of covenants thill impose significant operating and
financial restrictions on us, including restrictsoon our and our subsidiaries ability to, amongpthings: incur additional debt, guarantee
indebtedness or issue certain preferred shares;

* pay dividends on or make distributions in respécborepurchase or redeem, our capital stock deenwdher restricted paymer

» prepay, redeem or repurchase certain

* make loans or certain investme

» sell certain asse

» create liens on certain ass

» consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelafraubstantially all of our asse

* enter into certain transactions with our affilig

» alter the businesses we cond

* enter into agreements restricting our subsidgebility to pay dividends; ar

» designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted sulbisid

As a result of these covenants, we will be limitethe manner in which we conduct our business vemday be unable to engage in favorable
business activities or finance future operationsagpital needs.
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A failure to comply with the covenants under theeggnents governing our indebtedness could resah ievent of default, which, if not cured
or waived, could have a material adverse effeawarbusiness, financial condition and results arafions. In the event of any such default,
the lenders thereunder:

« will not be required to lend any additional amouiatsis

« could elect to declare all borrowings outstagdimgether with accrued and unpaid interest aad, fi® be due and payable and

terminate all commitments to extend further creatit;

» could require us to apply all of our available ctashepay these borrowin
Such actions by the lenders could cause cross ltetmder our other indebtedness. If we were untabiepay those amounts, the holders of
our indebtedness could proceed against the cdlagesinted to them to secure that indebtedness.

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to intest rate risk, which could cause our debt servicebtigations to increase significantly.

Borrowings under the Senior Facilities are at \deaates of interest and expose us to interestrisit. Assuming a one percent change in the
variable rates of interest, the annual intereseasp on indebtedness under the Senior Facilitiesdnatange by approximately $2 million. In
the future, we may enter into interest rate swhpsitivolve the exchange of floating for fixed ratierest payments in order to reduce interest
rate volatility. However, we may not maintain irgst rate swaps with respect to all of our variahte indebtedness, and any swaps we enter
into may not fully mitigate our interest rate riskay prove disadvantageous or may create addititsics.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable
Item 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters are located in leasadipes at Two Penn Plaza, New York, NY 10121. We

lease offices, warehouses and other facilitiesyat 40 locations, of which 10 are in the Unitedt&aln addition, we occupy real property that
we own at 6 locations, of which 2 are in the UniBtdtes. Our properties consist primarily of offspece used by our operating segments, ant
we also utilize warehouse space and book distohutenters. We believe that all of our facilities @ell maintained and are suitable and
adequate for our current needs.

The properties listed in the table below are oungple owned and leased properties:

Location Lease Expiration  Approximate Area Principle Use of Space
Owned Premises:

Blacklick, Ohio Owned 548,14 Warehouse & Office
Whitby, Ontario, Canada Owned 175,65¢ Warehouse & Office
Dubuque, lowa Owned 139,06 Office
Leased Premises:

New York, NY 2020 168,90: Office

Burr Ridge, IL 2018 108,10: Office
Cautitlan, Edomex, Mexico 2015 102,53: Warehouse
Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India 2015 90,50( Warehouse & Office
Maidenhead, United Kingdom 2063 82,92/ Warehouse & Office
Irvine, CA 2019 53,22( Office
Coslada, Madrid, Spain 2015 52,79 Warehouse & Office
Seattle, WA 2021 24,64¢ Office

East Windsor, NJ 2024 23,18 Office

27




In addition, we own and lease other offices thatrast material to our operations.
Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the normal course of business both in the Un8des and abroad, the Company is a defendaarious lawsuits and legal proceedings
which may result in adverse judgments, damagess fim penalties and is subject to inquiries andstigations by various governmental and
regulatory agencies concerning compliance withiagple laws and regulations. In view of the inhedifficulty of predicting the outcome of
legal matters, we cannot state with confidence whetiming, eventual outcome, or eventual judgmeamages, fines, penalties or other
impact of these pending matters will be. We belidased on our current knowledge, that the outcointiee legal actions, proceedings and
investigations currently pending should not haveaderial adverse effect on the Company’s combiireahtial condition.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART I

Iltem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Not applicable
Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents our selected histégoanbined consolidated financial data and opegatisults. We derived the consolidated
historical financial statement data as of Decen3der2014 and 2013 (Successor) and for the yeardeDdeember 31, 2014 (Successor), the
periods March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Ssocgslanuary 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predeceand the year ended December 31,
2012 (Predecessor) from our audited combined cwi#el financial statements included in this AnriReport on Form 10-K. We derived the
combined historical financial statement data aBefember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 (Predecessothdyears ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 (Predecessor) from our audited combimeshéial statements for such years, which are rtudied in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

The selected historical combined consolidated firrlata and operating results presented belowldhme read in conjunction with our
audited combined consolidated financial statemantsaccompanying notes and "Management's Discuasiinalysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" included elsen® in this Annual Report. Our historical combimedsolidated financial information m
not be indicative of our future performance andsoet necessarily reflect what our financial positand results of operations would have |
had we operated as a separate, stand-alone emtibgdhe periods presented, including changesabatrred in our operations and
capitalization as a result of the Founding Trarieast
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Successor Predecessor
Year Ended March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013 Year Ended
December 31, to to December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2014 December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013 2012 2011 2010
Statement of Operations
Revenue $ 1,290,470  $ 1,055,80! $ 186,24. $ 1,258,941 $ 1,33520. $ 1,325,92.
Cost of goods sold 358,73: 460,85( 56,24¢ 387,48! 406,55¢ 409,82:
Gross Profit 931,74 594,95! 129,99 871,46: 928,64« 916,10(
Operating Expenses:
Operating & administration expenses 683,23! 494,56! 129,33t 640,48: 652,38 585,70(
Depreciation 15,45¢ 16,19: 3,87¢ 19,25 16,13( 16,23¢
Amortization of intangibles 103,34 69,23 1,69¢ 6,79¢ 7,23( 4,944
Transaction costs 3,931 27,61 — — — —
Total operating expenses 805,97. 607,60( 134,90¢ 666,54( 675,74¢ 606,88(
Operating (loss) income 125,77: (12,64%) (4,91¢) 204,92: 252,89! 309,22(
Interest expense (income), net 146,12 135,02: 481 (919) (2,88%) (1,229
Other (income) (12,429 (2,125 — (7,48¢) — —
E'a'ggg)o';'?ﬁgfnzom SRS I (7,92 (145,54)) (5,39) 213,32 255,78 310,44:
Income tax (benefit) provision (11,44°) (61,83)) (1,219 86,47( 94,01¢ 112,46:
Net (loss) income 3,52¢ (83,71) (4,189 126,85 161,76° 197,98;
hgﬁi(’)‘ﬁﬁgﬂﬁg'}‘nﬁ'rngsa“”b“tab'e o 29¢ (2259 631 (4,559 4,320 (4,48)
Net (loss) income attributed to
McGraw-Hill Global Education $ 3,828 % (85,967) $ (3,559 $ 122,29 % 157,44  $ 193,50(
Intermediate Holdings, LLC
Successor Predecessor
Dtee(irnlft?edregl, March 23, 2013 to January 1, 2013 to Year Ended December 31,
2014 December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013 2012 2011 2010
Other Financial data
EBITDA $ 321,23 140,76: $ 10,820 % 317,35! % 351,24¢ % 408,57(
Adjusted EBITDA 409,55¢ 416,17: 3,95¢ 411,21! 428,98t 451,39(
Post-Plate Adjusted Cash 359,29: 363,71 (10,179 354,03 383,09 389,12
Capital expenditures 39,58( 6,74¢ 1,911 17,122 15,46¢ 11,38¢
Investment in prepublication costs 50,26 52,45t 14,12¢ 78,28° 73,37¢ 75,57¢
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Successor Predecessor
As of As of

December 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Balance Sheet data
Cash and cash equivalents $ 232,09¢ $ 253,39( 98,18t $ 110,26° $ 104,89
Working capital® 55,39t 89,35¢ 146,62 120,25: 116,55
Total assets 2,286,47. 2,367,19 1,211,52. 1,224,89! 1,296,15:
Long-term debt 1,447,47. 1,483,81! — — —
Equity 261,85¢ 223,26¢ 674,58( 662,50: 680,76!

(1)Working capital is calculated as current assetsdesrent liabilities.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsedrin conjunction with our combined
consolidated financial statements including theoagaanying notes arielected Financial Data'included elsewhere in this Annual Repor
addition to historical information, this discussioontains forward-looking statements that are satltgerisks and uncertainties including, but
not limited to, those described irRIsk Factors" ana@lsewhere in this Annual Report. Actual results mifer substantially from those
contained in any forward-looking statements. Sem ILA."Risk Factors"and"Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements"

Overview

We are a learning science company and leading biwbeider of world-class educational materials é®tning solutions that drive outcomes
through adaptive technology targeted to the higldication (two- and four-year college and univgfsind professional markets. We believe
that harnessing technology will enhance learniiogh Inside and outside of the classroom, and ve#dgen the connections between students
and educators to empower greater success. Ourgatadding of learning is what enables us to buittht®logy based resources that know how
individuals learn and also adapt to their own nesublearning styles. We deliver what studentsexhgtators want: an experience that
combines content and technology from multiple pdevs in a way that is seamless, elegant and tditorpersonal needs. We believe we have
industry-leading content curation capabilities,yeno digital platforms, brand recognition and globedle to be well positioned in the ongoing
industry transformation from print products to tidibased learning solutions. We currently distigbour educational materials and learning
solutions in nearly 60 languages globally.

Our Business
Our three businesses are:

MHGE Higher Education: (65% of total revenue ttoe year ended December 31, 2014) Provides postidary students and
professors with high-quality adaptive digital leagsolutions, eBooks, custom publishing solutiars] traditional printed
textbook products.

« MHGE Professional: (9% of total revenue for ytear ended December 31, 2014) Provides instrudtammdent and subscription-
based information services for professionals aedettucation/test prep communities when, where larodigh whichever medium
they prefer.

« MHGE International: (26% of total revenue foetyear ended December 31, 2014) Leverages ourlgloale, brand recognition
and extensive product portfolio to serve educatiand professional markets around the world.

The Founding Acquisition

On March 22, 2013, AcquisitionCo, a wholly-ownedsidiary of Georgia Holdings, Inc., acquired alltloé¢ outstanding equity interests of
certain subsidiaries of MHC. The acquired subsiégincluded all of MHC'’s educational materials d@arning solutions business, which is
comprised of two elements (i) the HPI business tvimicludes post-secondary education and professwaducts both in the U.S. and
internationally and (ii) SEG business, which in@adchool and assessment products targeting studehe pre-kindergarten through
secondary school market.

AcquisitionCo was formed and is owned by investnfantls affiliated with Apollo Global Management, CL(*Apollo” or the “Sponsor”).The
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary MHGE Hotirwere created to facilitate the Founding AcqaisitThe terms “we,” “our,” and
“us” used herein refer to the Company. In connectiith the Founding Acquisition, the Restructurimgs completed, the result of which was
that the HPI business and the SEG business weagated under two legal entities. The HPI busings®w owned by MHGE Holdings, and
the SEG business is owned by MHSE Holdings, a s¢parholly owned subsidiary of the Parent.
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MHSE Holdings is financed through a separate debtire. Neither MHGE Holdings nor its parent c@mjgs guarantee or provide any

collateral to the financing for MHSE Holdings, aMdHSE Holdings does not guarantee or provide caltdt®e the financing for MHGE
Holdings or its parent companies.

The term “Predecessor” refers to the historical loimed information of MHGE Holdings prior to givirgffect to the consummation of the
Founding Acquisition, but after giving effect teetRestructuring. The term “Successor” refers to keGHill Global Education Intermediate

Holdings, LLC after giving effect to the consumnoatiof the Founding Acquisition. See Notes 1 thro8db the combined consolidated
financial statements for additional information.

Overall Operating Results

The following table sets forth certain historicahtbined consolidated financial information for thear ended December 31, 2014 (Successot
the periods from March 23, 2013 to December 3134&Uccessor) and January 1, 2013 to March 22, @@rERlecessor) and the year ended
December 31, 2012 (Predecessor). The followingetaht discussion should be read in conjunction thighinformation contained in our
historical combined consolidated financial stateta@md the notes thereto included elsewhere irdttitsment. However, our historical results
of operations set forth below and elsewhere indbisument may not necessarily reflect what wouklehazccurred if we had been a separate,
stand-alone entity during the periods presentedhat will occur in the future.

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended through through Year Ended

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013 December 31, 2012
Revenue 1,290,47 $ 1,055,80! 186,24: $ 1,258,94
Cost of goods sold 358,73: 460,85( 56,24¢ 387,48!
Gross profit 931,74 594,95! 129,99: 871,46:
Operating expenses
Operating & administration expenses 683,23! 494,56! 129,33t 640,48:
Depreciation 15,45¢ 16,19: 3,87« 19,257
Amortization of intangibles 103,34 69,23: 1,69¢ 6,79¢
Transaction related expenses 3,931 27,61: — —
Total operating expenses 805,97: 607,60( 134,90¢ 666,54(
Operating (loss) income 125,77- (12,64 (4,91¢€) 204,92:
Interest expense (income), net 146,12- 135,02: 481 (919)
Other (income) expense (12,429 (2,129 — (7,489
(Loss) income from operations before taxes ol
income (7,929 (145,54;) (5,39 213,32
Income tax (benefit) provision (11,44°) (61,83) (1,219 86,47(
Net (loss) income 3,52¢ (83,71) (4,189 126,85:
Less: net (income) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests 29¢ (2,25)) 631 (4,559
Net (loss) income attributable to McGraw-Hill
Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC 382t $ (85,962 (3,559 ¢ 122,29

Revenu

2014 vs. 2013

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014 (Ssmgeperiods from March 23, 2013 to Decembei2813 (Successor) and January 1,
2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) was $1,290,8T®55,805 and $186,242 , respectively, an aszef $48,431 or 4% . The increase in

2014 was primarily due to an increase in MHGE Highducation revenue in addition to purchase acéogradjustments that increased
reported revenues by $1,367 in the
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year endeDecember 31, 2014 compared to decreased repoxtedues by $29,186 in the 2013 Successor periotiaipaoffset by decreases
in MHGE International revenue. Growth in digitalesaof $71,375 and custom print sales of $13,575 peatially offset by decrease in
traditional print sales of $67,608.

2013 vs. 2012

Revenue for the periods from March 23, 2013 to bdamr 31, 2013 (Successor) and January 1, 2013 toh\e2, 2013 (Predecessor) and the
year endeDecember 31, 2012 (Predecessor) was $1,055,805, 312 , and $1,258,946 respectively, a decrea$&@@899 or 1% . This was
primarily due to purchase accounting adjustmergtdicreased reported deferred revenues by $2%48¢ll as decreases in MHGE
Professional and MHGE International revenue, piéyrtidfset by an increase in MHGE Higher Educatierenue. Traditional print sales
decreased $85,809, partially offset by growth witdl sales of $60,674 and custom print sales 6{38B.

MHGE Higher Education
2014 vs. 2013

MHGE Higher Education revenue for the year endededder 31, 2014 (Successor), the periods from M28¢l2013 to December 31, 2013
(Successor) and January 1, 2013 to March 22, ZRiRiécessor) was $840,549 , $664,698 and $10#gsbEctively, an increase of $68,134
or 9%. Increases in MHGE Higher Education revenue weiragrily due to growth in both digital of $58,958dacustom print sales of $13,5
as well as the impact of purchase accounting adgists of $30,555, partially offset by decreasesaditional print sales of $35,560. In
addition, within our digital adaptive learning prads, unique users fdlcGraw-Hill Connectand unique users dearnSmarincreased 17%
and 33%, respectively, for the year ended Dece@bg2014 reflecting increased demand for both prolines. In addition, MHGE Higher
Education revenue increased as a result of the @oygacquisition cdALEKSCorporation in August 2013, a developer of adaptaening
technology for the higher education and K-12 edooanarkets.

2013 vs. 2012

MHGE Higher Education revenue for the periods fidarch 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successoniadg 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013
(Predecessor) and for the year ended Decembe032,(Predecessor) was $664,698 , $107,717 and&¥HGespectively, an increase of
$5,612 or 1% . Increases in MHGE Higher Educaterenue were primarily due to growth in both dig#tales of $45,652 and custom print
sales of $40,363, partially offset by decreasdsaiditional print sales of $50,060 and higher nesuitn addition, within our digital adaptive
learning products, the increase in unique usersfoGraw- Hill Connectand unique users dfearnSmartincreased 51% and 46%,
respectively in 2013 (Successor), which reflectséased demand for both product lines. The incrieeB#HGE Higher Education revenue was
offset by a purchase accounting adjustment to cefaevenue of $25,333, as well as a large one-dimer of approximately $4,289 in 2012
(Predecessor) that did not repeat in 2013 (Sucoes$s@ddition, MHGE Higher Education revenue gased as a result of the Company's
acquisition ofALEKSCorporation in August 2013, a developer of adap&aening technology for the higher education antiZXeducation
markets.

MHGE Professional

2014 vs. 2013

MHGE Professional revenue for the year ended Deee®b, 2014 (Successor), the periods from Marct2@33 to December 31, 2013
(Successor) and January 1, 2013 to March 22, ZRfRiécessor) was $116,774 , $93,988 and $23,1§katively, a decrease of $353 or 0% .

The comparison was relatively flat. Growth in digisales of $3,876 was offset by lower traditiopr@ht sales of $3,856 as well as the impa
purchase accounting adjustments of $440.
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2013 vs. 2012

MHGE Professional revenue for the periods from M&8, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successor), Jaiya013 to March 22, 2013
(Predecessor) and for the year ended Decembe032,(Predecessor) was $93,988 , $23,139 and $1RI&tpectively, a decrease of $4,474
or 4% . The decrease was primarily due to a puschasounting adjustment to deferred revenue of352,&@ well as lower traditional print
sales of $8,834, partially offset by growth in tédisales of $5,712.

MHGE International
2014 vs. 2013

MHGE International revenue for the year ended Ddmar31, 2014 (Successor), the periods from Mar¢t2@83 to December 31, 2013
(Successor) and January 1, 2013 to March 22, ZRiRI€cessor) was $333,764 , $296,353 and $53@f)%:atively, a decrease of $15,598 or
4% . The decrease was primarily due to declinssles in Latin America, Canada, and EMEA drivenrtarket challenges and higher returns.
Traditional print sales decreased $25,808 partifiget by growth in digital sales of $8,540 asIvesl the impact of purchase accounting
adjustments of $437. Foreign exchange rates hasfavorable impact on revenue of $6,436 , $4,88D%ir13 for the year ended

December 31, 2014 (Successor), the periods fronti28, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successor) ancadal, 2013 to March 22, 2013
(Predecessor). This impact refers to constant sayreomparisons estimated by re-calculating cutyeat results of foreign operations using
the average exchange rate from the prior year.

2013 vs. 2012

MHGE International revenue for the periods from a3, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successor), datu2013 to March 22, 2013
(Predecessor) and for the year ended Decembe032,(Predecessor) was $296,353 , $53,009 and $8Y,0éspectively, a decrease of
$21,468 or 6% The decrease was primarily due to a purchaseuatiog adjustment to deferred revenue of $1,118velkas declines in high
education sales, English language training satd®ma sales in Spain, Canada and Mexico, as welledical sales. Traditional print sales
decreased $28,436, partially offset by growth mitel sales of $9,310. Foreign exchange rates hadhéavorable impact on revenue of $4,880
$113 and $12,680 for the periods from March 2332@1December 31, 2013 (Successor), January 1, 20¥arch 22, 2013 (Predecessor)
for the year ended December 31, 2012 (Predecessspgctively. This impact refers to constant quzyecomparisons estimated by re-
calculating current year results of foreign openadi using the average exchange rate from the ye#n.

Cost of Goods Sold
2014 vs. 2013

Cost of goods sold for the year ended Decembe2@1l4 (Successor), the periods from March 23, 26I3ecember 31, 2013 (Successor) and
January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessor}p@s8,731 , $460,850 and $56,249 , respectivelis d&crease was primarily due to the
purchase accounting step-up to fair market valuewantory of $141,100 for the Successor periodhfidarch 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013
As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods solthéoyear ended December 31, 2014 (Successor)ethap from March 23, 2013 to
December 31, 2013 (Successor) and January 1, 80#idrch 22, 2013 (Predecessor) were 28% , 44% 3@, respectively. Manufacturing
costs as a percentage of revenue for the the yel@deDecember 31, 2014 (Successor), the periodsNtarch 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013
(Successor) and January 1, 2013 to March 22, Z@fRiécessor) were 13%, 21% and 13%, respectiviile voyalty expenses as a percent

of revenue for the year ended December 31, 201dc€Ssor), the periods from March 23, 2013 to Degrih, 2013 (Successor) and January
1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) were 18%, @hd 13%, respectively. The variance in the peage for cost of goods sold is
impacted by purchase accounting, the transitiomfpoint to higher margin digital products and tlkduction in the royalty percentage reflects
the acquisitions oALEKSand Area 9.

35




Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

2013 vs. 2012

Cost of goods sold for the periods from March ZBL.2to December 31, 2013 (Successor), JanuarylB, 20March 22, 2013 (Predecessor)
and for the year ended December 31, 2012 (Predsgesss $460,850, $56,249 and $387,485, respegtiVéis increase was primarily due to
the purchase accounting step-up to fair marketevafiinventory of $141,100 as of March 23, 2013tiply offset by the decline in revenue
and favorable manufacturing costs and royalty rdtesto product mix. As a percentage of revenust, @ogoods sold for the periods from
March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successoryaig 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) anthé year ended December 31, 201
(Predecessor) was 44%, 30% and 31%, respectil@nufacturing costs as a percentage of revenudaéoperiods from March 23, 2013 to
December 31, 2013 (Successor), January 1, 201&tohR2, 2013 (Predecessor) and for the year ebdedmber 31, 2012 (Predecessor) \
21%, 13% and 15%, respectively, while royalty exg@nas a percentage of revenue for the periodshtaroh 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013
(Successor), January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013l@eessor) and for the year ended December 31, (Bo&édecessor) were 20%, 13% and
13%, respectively.

Operating & Administration Expenses
2014 vs. 2013

Operating & administration expenses for the yealeedrDecember 31, 2014 (Successor), periods froneiM28, 2013 to December 31, 2013
(Successor) and January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2BdRiécessor) were $683,239 , $494,565 and $129r@3pectively. The increase in 2014
was primarily as a result of higher physical sefianacosts, costs to action cost savings initiatitaken in 2014 partially offset by a more
favorable cost structure as a stand-alone compesg. percentage of revenue, operating & administragxpenses for the year ended
December 31, 2014 , the periods from March 23, 26 13ecember 31, 2013 and January 1, 2013 to M22¢cR013 were 53% , 47% and 69%
respectively.

2013 vs. 2012

Operating and administration expenses for the geritom March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (SwoegsJanuary 1, 2013 to March 22,
2013 (Predecessor) and for the year ended Dece3ib@012 (Predecessor) were $494,565, $129,336&41@]484, respectively. The decreas
in the 2013 periods was primarily as a result efréstructuring actions taken in 2012 and a moreréble cost structure as a stand-alone
company, partially offset by restructuring actidaken in 2013. In addition, a change in capitaiarapolicy on some components of digital
development costs impacted year-over-year comgayalm the year ended December 31, 2012 (Predecishese costs were capitalized;
however, during in the 2013 periods, these coste wepensed resulting in a $8,978 unfavorable meeian operating and administrative
expense. As a percentage of revenue, operatingdmaistration expenses for the periods from M&8h2013 to December 31, 2013
(Successor), January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013l@eessor) and for the year ended December 31, (Bo&édecessor) were 47%, 69% and
51%, respectively.

Depreciation & Amortization of Intangible
2014 vs. 2013

Total depreciation and amortization expenses ferygar ended December 31, 2014 (Successor), pérazddMarch 23, 2013 to December 31,
2013 (Successor) and January 1, 2013 to March®2 @Predecessor) were $118,803 , $85,423 and $5/88pectively. This increase was
primarily due to increases in the fair value ofidiéé-lived intangible assets of $998,007 , $40,Z066d $44,800 related to the Founding
Acquisition,ALEKSand Area 9 acquisitions respectively.

2013 vs. 2012

Total depreciation and amortization expenses fermpriods from March 23, 2013 to December 31, Z&U&cessor), January 1, 2013 to Marct
22, 2013 (Predecessor) and for the year ended Deredi, 2012
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(Predecessor) were $85,423, $5,573 and $26,05&kategely. This was primarily due to an increaséhia fair value of definite-lived intangible
assets related to the Founding Acquisition AhBKSacquisition, respectively.

Transaction related expenses

Transaction related expenses for the year endedritmer 31, 2014 (Successor) and period from Marcl2@B3 to December 31, 2013
(Successor) were $3,931 and $27,64&spectively. There was no transaction relatgutese recorded in the Predecessor period in 201the
year entDecember 31, 2012 (Predecessor). These amounesesprithe transaction costs associated with thedog Acquisition which
include external legal and consulting expenses.

Interest expense, n

Interest expenses, net, for the year ended DeceBih@014 (Successor), periods from March 23, 20I3ecember 31, 2013 (Successor),
January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessorjhengkar ended December 31, 2012 (Predecessa)$dd6,124 , $135,022 , $481 and
income of $913, respectively. This is primarilyesult of the debt incurred to finance the Foundiaguisition. The interest expenses, net in
2014 was favorably impacted by the voluntary ppatpayment of the term loan facility of $35,00@&81,000 on March 24, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively, and the refingnofrthe term loan facility to the aggregate ppratiamount of $687,925 on March 24, 2C
As discussed in Note 2 - The Founding Transactiorse combined consolidated financial statementsFounding Acquisition was financed
by borrowings consisting of an initial $810,000 &ay senior secured term loan credit facility, &ivbich was drawn at closing, $240,000 5-
year senior secured revolving credit facility, dfish $35,000 was drawn at closing, and an issuah$800,000, 9.75% fir-priority senior
secured notes.

Provision for Taxes on Incon

Taxes on income for the year ended December 34 @iccessor), periods from March 23, 2013 to Déegrl, 2013 (Successor), January
1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) and thegreied December 31, 2012 (Predecessor) were teak$i11,447 , $61,831 , $1,213, and
a provision of $86,470, respectively. The Predemress provisions and related deferred tax assetdiabilities were determined for the
Company was a separate taxpayer. For the year éelsgimber 31, 2014 (Successor), the periods M&8cAM® 3 to December 31, 2013
(Successor), January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013l@esssor), the effective tax rate was 144.5% 942.82.5% , and 40.5% , respectively.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Net Income Reconciliation to EBITDA, Adjusted EBAT&Nd Pos-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA

EBITDA, a measure used by management to assesatiogeperformance, is defined as income from caitign operations plus interest,
income taxes, depreciation and amortization, inalgidmortization of prepublication costs (“plateéstment”). Adjusted EBITDA is defined
as EBITDA adjusted to exclude unusual items andratldjustments required or permitted in calculatiogenant compliance under the
indenture governing our senior secured notes amdfionew senior secured credit facilities. PostePhdjusted Cash EBITDA reflects the
impact of cash spent for plate investment. Platestment costs, reflecting the cost of developithgcation content, are capitalized and
amortized. These costs are capitalized when tleeigiexpected to generate probable future econbenefits and are amortized upon
publication of the title over its estimated usdifid of up to six years. Pofttate Adjusted Cash EBITDA reflects EBITDA as defirin the Firs
Lien Credit Agreement and the Bond Indenture.

Each of the above described EBITDA-based meassmstia recognized term under U.S. GAAP and doepurport to be an alternative to
income from continuing operations as a measurgefaiing performance or to cash flows from operetias a measure of liquidity.
Additionally, each such measure is not intendeldet@a measure of free cash flows available for mamagt's discretionary use, as it does not
consider certain cash requirements such as inteagstents, tax payments and debt service requirsmgach measures have limitations as
analytical
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tools, and you should not consider any of such oreasn isolation or as substitutes for our resadtseported under U.S. GAAP. Managemen
compensates for the limitations of using non-GAARcial measures by using them to supplement GAR\P results to provide a more
complete understanding of the factors and trenféstiig the business than U.S. GAAP results alBeeause not all companies use identical
calculations, these EBITDA-based measures mayacbmparable to other similarly titted measurestbér companies.

Management believes EBITDA is helpful in highligigitrends because EBITDA excludes the results cbbs that are outside the contro
operating management and can differ significantynf company to company depending on long-termegiaidecisions regarding capital
structure, the tax rules in the jurisdictions iniethcompanies operate, and capital investmentgddiition, EBITDA provides more
comparability between the historical operating Itssand operating results that reflect purchasewatting and the new capital structure.

Management believes that the inclusion of suppleargradjustments to EBITDA applied in presentingusted EBITDA and Post-Plate
Adjusted Cash EBITDA are appropriate to provideitoltal information to investors about certain mi@tlenon-cash items and about unusual
items that we do not expect to continue at the dexat in the future.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Post-Plate Adjusted G&BITDA are calculated as follows:

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013 Year Ended
December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2013 to March 22, 2013 December 31, 2012
Net income (loss) $ 3,52¢ % (83,71) (4,189 126,85:
Interest (income) expense, net 146,12- 135,02: 481 (919)
Provision for (benefit from) taxes on income (11,44 (61,83)) (1,219 86,47(
Depreciation, amortization and plate investmel
amortization 183,03: 151,28: 15,73¢ 104,94t
EBITDA 321,23 140,76: 10,82: 317,35!
Deferred revenue (a) 10,87 62,18 (12,92¢) 21,23«
Restructuring and cost savings implementation
charges (b) 30,60( 21,93 2,765 24,38t
Sponsor fees (c) 3,50( 87t — —
Elimination of corporate overhead (d) — — — 58,19¢
Purchase accounting (e) (2,600) 141,10( — —
Transaction costs (f) 3,931 27,61. — —
Acquisition costs (g) 2,83¢ 4,29¢ — —
Physical separation costs (h) 24,20: 4,10( — —
Other (i) 14,97¢ 13,31( 3,29: (9,959
Adjusted EBITDA 409,55 416,17. 3,95¢ 411,21!
Plate investment cash costs (j) (50,26%) (52,45Y) (14,129 (78,28
Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA prior to
stand-alone cost savings 359,29: 363,71 (10,177 332,92¢
Stand-alone cost savings for implemented
initiatives (k) — — — 21,10:¢
Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA $ 359,29: $ 363,71 $ (10,179  $ 354,03:
Annualized cost savings for initiatives
implemented or that will be implemented (1) 27,00( 42,00( — 24,00(
Pre-acquisitiorALEKS Post-Plate Adjusted
EBITDA (m) — 5,00( — —
Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA after
annualized cost savings and pre-acquisition
ALEKS $ 386,29. $ 410,71 $ (10,179 $ 378,03:
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Notes:

(&) We receive cash for certain digital produgtdront but recognize revenue over time. We reeolidbility for deferred revenue when we receive thsh. This adjustment
represents the net effect of converting deferredmees (inclusive of deferred royalties) on digiales to a cash basis assuming the collectiolh igfcivable balances. For
the year ended December 31, 2014 , this adjustment12,242 , and there was also purchase accguatjnstments that increased reported revenues,Bg%.

(b) Represents run-rate cost savings, non-regusererance and other expenses associated withcweraeductions and other cost savings initiate20i13 and 2014 as part of
our formal restructuring initiatives to create aitiér and more agile organization.

(c) Beginning in 2014, $3,500 of annual managerfes® was recorded and payable to the Sponsorarfibent recorded in the Successor period from M282013 to
December 31, 2013 was $875.

(d) The general corporate allocations represent exexatanagement costs incurred by MHC and they wetenger incurred beginning in Q1 20

(e) Represents the effects of the applicatioruofipase accounting associated with the acquisitiodiHC's educational materials and learning sohgibusiness on March 22,
2013, driven by the step-up of acquired inventditye deferred revenue adjustment recorded as & ofquirchase accounting has been considered idefegred revenue
adjustment.

(f) The amount represents the transaction costs atmeiith the acquisition of MHC's educational meterand learning solutions business on March 223

(g) The amount represents costs incurred for acquisittaibsequent to the Founding Acquisition includihgKS and Area ¢

(h) The amount represents costs incurred to physisefiarate our operations from MHC. These physigersgion costs were incurred subsequent to thediogr\cquisition

(i) For the year ended December 31, 2014 , theuabmepresents (i) cash distributions to noncoliiginterest holders of $169 ; (ii) non-cash intbes compensation expense;
(iii) elimination of non-cash gain of $7,329 in Ar®; and (iv) other adjustments permitted and/quired under the indentures governing MHGE's natesthe credit
agreement governing MHGE's senior credit facilitiear the year ended December 31, 2013 and 204 2ntiount represents (i) cash distributions to noimobing interest
holders (excluding special dividends) of $5,470 $686 , respectively; (ii) the elimination of a 488 benefit realized in 2012 as a result of a chkanghe Company’s
vacation policy; (iii) non-cash incentive compeimaiexpense recorded directly beginning in Q118 @n) other adjustments permitted and/or requireder the indentures
governing MHE's existing notes and the credit ages® governing MHE's senior credit facilities.

() Represents cash spent for plate investment dunmgérioc

(k) Represents stand-alone cost savings to reflacéxpectation that costs incurred on a standeal@sis will be lower than costs historically edited to McGraw-Hill
Education, LLC by The McGraw-Hill Companies, Indh€Be allocations were primarily related to servaras expenses including (i) global technology ojpena and
infrastructure; (i) global real estate occupar(@i);employee benefits; and (iv) shared serviasshsas tax, legal, treasury, and finance.

() Represents the run-rate impact of cost savatggbutable to initiatives implemented and thegebelieve can be implemented in the next twelvating) but does not reflect
the estimated costs we expect to incur to implerttese savings. These cost savings relate printar8ypply chain initiatives, vendor managementigased utilization of
outsourcing arrangements as well as continuedrstiiag of our operations as a stand-alone entity.

(m) Represents the pre-acquisition impacAbEKSbusiness which was acquired on August 2

Debt and Liquidity

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents $ 232,09¢ $ 253,39( $ 98,18¢
Current portion of long-term debt 6,88( 8,10( —
Long-term debt 1,447,47. 1,483,81 —

Historically, we have generated operating cashgl¢and with respect to the Predecessor, receimaddial support from MHC) sufficient to
fund our seasonal working capital, capital requiats, expenditure and financing requirements. Véeous cash generated from operating
activities for a variety of needs, including amaigers: working capital requirements, investmentglate investment, capital expenditures an
strategic acquisitions.
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Our operating cash flows are affected by the infteseasonality of the academic calendar. This sedigpalso impacts cash flow patterns as
investments are typically made in the first halflod year to support the strong selling period ditaurs in the second half of the year. As a
result, our cash flow is typically lower in thedithalf of the year and higher in the second half.

Going forward, we may need cash to fund operatatiyiies, working capital, capital expendituresiasirategic investments. Our ability to
fund our capital needs will depend on our ongoibijtg to generate cash from operations and ouess¢o the bank and capital markets. We
believe that our future cash flow from operatidongiether with our access to funds on hand andalap#rkets, will provide adequate resource
to fund our operating and financing needs for ast¢he next twelve months. We also expect our ingr&apital requirements to decrease as &
result of our migration from print products to dajiproducts.

If our cash flows from operations are less tharreggiire, we may need to incur debt or issue eqHitym time to time we may need to access
to the long-term and short-term capital marketshtain financing. Although we believe we can cutigefinance our operations on acceptable
terms and conditions, our access to, and the &if#ijeof, financing on acceptable terms and coiodis in the future will be affected by many
factors, including: (i) our credit ratings, (ii)eHiquidity of the overall capital markets and)(tiie current state of the economy. There can be r
assurance that we will continue to have accedsetadpital markets on terms acceptable to us.

The Acquisition was financed by:

e Borrowings under MHGE Holdings senior secureztidrfacilities (the “Senior Facilities”), consisgj of a $810,000 , 6-year senior
secured term loan credit facility (the “term loaifity”), all of which was drawn at closing an&240,000 , 5-year senior secured
revolving credit facility (“revolving credit faciy”), $35,000 of which was drawn at closing;

e Issuance by MHGE Holdings and McGraw-Hill Glolealucation Finance, Inc., a wholly owned subsid@riMHGE Holdings
(together with MHGE Holdings, the “Issuers”), of388000 , 9.75% first-priority senior secured natas 2021 (the “Notes”); and

»  Equity contribution of $950,000 from Parent feddy the Sponsor, davestors and managems

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had cashastdequivalents of $232,098 and $253,390 , resedetiThe cash held by foreign
subsidiaries as December 31, 2014 and 2013 wag%3l&nd $65,169 . These cash balances held ottsidée. S. will be used to fund
international operations and to make investmentsiael of the U.S. In the event funds from intermadil operations were needed to fund
operations in the U.S., we would provide for taxethe U.S., if any, on the repatriated funds.

Senior Facilities

In connection with the Founding Transactions, ord&2, 2013 MHGE Holdings, our wholly owned subsidiary, tdget with the Compan
entered into the Senior Facilities, which is goeeriby a first lien credit agreement as amendedestdted, with Credit Suisse AG, as
administrative agent and the other agents and tenuaty thereto, that provided senior securedhfiiry of up to $1,050,000 , consisting of:

» term loan facility in an aggregate principal ambof $810,00@vith a maturity of six years; a

» revolving credit facility in an aggregate pripal amount of up to $240,000 with a maturity okfiyears, including both a letter of
credit sub-facility and a swingline loan sub-fagili

On December 31, 2013 the Company made a voluntargipal payment of 10% of the $810,000 term loacility outstanding under its First
Lien Credit Agreement against remaining installrsehereunder in reverse order of maturity. This,88Q voluntary principal payment is in
addition to the Company’s scheduled quarterly remayt of $2,025 that was paid on the same date.
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On March 24, 2014, the Company made a voluntancpgal payment of $35,000 and refinanced the tean Facility in the aggregate princi
of $687,925. The revised terms reduce the LIBORrffoom 1.25% to 1.0% and the applicable LIBOR nirafgom 7.75% to 4.75%. The
maturity date did not change but quarterly princgsyments were reduced from $2,025 to $1,720, maimimg the amortization rate at ¥4 of :
of the refinanced princial amount.

The interest rate on the borrowings under the 3dtdoilities is based on LIBOR or Prime, plus apleable margin. The interest rate at
December 31, 2014 was 5.75% for the term loanifiaeihd there were no borrowings outstanding uniderevolving credit facility. The term
loan facility and the revolving credit facility weeissued at a discount of 3% and 2% , respectiit issuance costs and the discount are
amortized to interest expense over the term ofebpective facility. The amount of amortizationlumed in interest expense was $12,705 and
$10,800 for the year ended December 31, 2014 (Sscpeand for the period from March 23, 2013 toddeber 31, 2013 (Successor),
respectively. There was no amortization expenserded in the Predecessor period in 2013.

The term loan facility requires quarterly amortieatpayments totaling 1% per annum of the origpratcipal amount of the facility, with the
balance payable on the final maturity date. Thetean facility also includes custom mandatory psepents requirements based on certain
events such as asset sales, debt issuances ameddefiels of free cash flows.

All obligations under the Senior Facilities are gardeed by the Parent, the Company, and each of MH@dings existing and future direct
and indirect material, wholly owned domestic sulasids and are secured by first priority lien obstantially all tangible and intangible assets
of MHGE Holdings and each subsidiary guarantoropfMHGE Holdings capital stock and the capitakcgtof each subsidiary guarantor and
65% of the capital stock of the first-tier foreignbsidiaries that are not subsidiary guarantorsagh case subject to exceptions.

The revolving credit facility includes a springifigancial maintenance covenant that requires MHGllHgs net first lien leverage ratio no
exceed 7.00 to 1.00 (the ratio of consolidateddebt secured by first-priority liens on the coltateo EBITDA, as defined in the First Lien
Credit Agreement). The covenant will be tested tpirwhen the revolving credit facility is moreathh 20% drawn (including outstanding
letters of credit), beginning with the fiscal quarended June 30, 2013, and will be a conditiadrawings under the revolving credit facility
(including for new letters of credit) that wouldstdt in more than 20% drawn thereunder. As of Ddman31, 2014 the borrowings under the
revolving credit facility were less than 20%, adise covenant was not in effect.

PostPlate Adjusted Cash EBITDA as presented earli¢ectf EBITDA as defined in the First Lien Creditr&gment. Solely for the purpose
calculating the springing financial covenant, plateestments should be excluded from the calculatioEBITDA.

9.75% First-Priority Senior Secured Notes due 2021

In connection with the Founding Acquisition, on Mar22, 2013 , the Issuers issued $800,000 in pahemount of the Notes in a private
placement. The Notes bear interest at a rate 688 Jer annum, payable serannually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 oftegear,
commencing on October 1, 2013. The Notes were dsatia discount of 1.36% . Debt issuance costdtadiscount are amortized to interest
expense over the term of the Notes using the effegiterest method. The amount of amortizationuded in interest expense was $2,838 anc
$4,644 for the year ended December 31, 2014 (Ssagesnd for the period from March 23, 2013 to Deloer 31, 2013 (Successor),
respectively. There was no amortization expenserded in the Predecessor period in 2013.

The Issuers may redeem the Notes at its optiowhisle or in part, at any time on or after April2D16, at certain redemption prices.

On March 24, 2014, the Company began paying arinental 0.25% interest rate on the 9.75% Firstrigyi&enior Secured Notes because a
registration statement for an exchange offer tdharge the initial Notes for registered Notes hadbeen declared effective prior to that date.
The incremental interest continued to accrue timilexchange offer had been consummated. The Corspagistration statement for the
exchange offer was
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declared effective on May 14, 2014, and the excbanffgr was completed on June 19, 2014 endingnitremental 0.25% accrual on that date.

The Notes are fully and unconditionally guarantbgdhe Parent, the Company and each of MHGE Hotddmmestic restricted subsidiaries
that guarantee the Senior Facilities. In addittbe,Notes and the related guarantees are securf@gtiyyriority lien on the same collateral that
secure the Senior Facilities, subject to certaaiusions.

The Senior Facilities and the Notes contain certastomary affirmative covenants and events ofudefm addition, the negative covenants in
the Senior Facilities and the Notes limit MHGE Holgs and its restricted subsidiaries’ ability tmang other things: incur additional
indebtedness or issue certain preferred sharesediens on certain assets, pay dividends or grpaor debt, make certain loan, acquisitions
or investments, materially change its businessagadnto transactions with affiliates, conduct asates, restrict dividends from subsidiarie
restrict liens, or merge, consolidate, sell or otlige dispose of all or substantially all of MHGBIHings assets.

The Parent and the Company are not bound by aapdial or negative covenants in the Senior Faedlitind the Notes, other than, in the case
of the Company prior to an IPO, with respect taimence of liens on and the pledge of MHGE Holdioggital stock and with respect to the
maintenance of its existence.

Scheduled Principal Payments

The scheduled principal payments required undetettms of the Senior Facilities and the Notes d3axfember 31, 2014 were as follows:

Successor
December 31, 2014

2015 6,88(
2016 6,88(
2017 6,88(
2018 6,88(
2019 653,52!
2020 and beyond 800,00(
1,481,04!

Less: Current portion 6,88(
$ 1,474,16!

Other Transactions and Arrangements

On July 17, 2014 the Company'’s parent company, MHR@Eent, LLC (“MHGE Parent” and, together withstsbsidiaries, “McGraw-Hill
Global Education”) and MHGE Parent Finance, InMKIGE Parent Finance” and, together with MHGE Partr “Issuers”)jssued $400,0C
aggregate principal amount of Senior PIK Toggledsatue 2019 (the “Notes”) in a private placemehe Motes were issued at a discount of
1%. The proceeds from this private offering weredu® make a return of capital to the equity halddrMHGE Parent and pay certain related
transaction costs and expenses.

The Notes bear interest at 8.5% for interest paithsh and 9.25% for in-kind interest, “PIK”, bgiraasing the principal amount of the Notes
by issuing new notes. Interest is payable semi-aliynan February 1 and August 1 of each year, conuimg February 1, 2015. The first semi-
annual interest payment due must be paid in caglwas paid on February 2, 2015. The determinatsoio avhether interest is paid in cash or
PIK is determined based on restrictions in the Camy{s borrowing agreements for payments to the Gomig parent. Interest paid in cash
will be funded by the Company via a distributiorM&iGE Parent. PIK may be paid either 0%, 50% oraQf the
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amount of interest due, dependent on the amouatyfestriction. The Notes are junior to the ddlalbof the Company's subsidiaries, are not
guaranteed by any of the parent company’s subsdiand are a contractual obligation of MHGE Parent

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents were $232,098 , $252/39$98,188 as of December 31, 2014 (Successargnilger 31, 2013 (Successor) and
December 31, 2012 (Predecessor), respectively.

Cash flows from operating, investing and financangjvities are presented in the following table:

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended December 31 Year Ended
2014 through through December 31, 2012

December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013
Cash flows from operating activities $ 211,11  $ 365,08 $ 29,747 % 209,47:
Cash flows from investing activities (134,10) (1,823,80) (49,129 (94,71¢)
Cash flows from financing activities (95,65() 1,693,88: (57,729 (129,639

Net cash flows from operating activities consispuadfit after tax, adjusted for changes in net vimgkcapital and nc-cash items such as
depreciation, amortization and write-offs, and nroeats in provisions and pensions. For the yearc&bBdeember 31, 201(&uccessor), peric
March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successanada 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) lamgie¢ar ended December 31, 2012
(Predecessor), respectively:

Cash flows provided by operating activitieshe yyear ended December 31, 2014 was $211,117 .floashprovided by operating
activities for the periods from March 23, 2013 tede@mber 2013 and January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2@18 $365,087 and $29,747 ,
respectively. The cash provided by operating a@widecreased as a result of lower contributioo® fworking capital and higher
payment for interest.

Cash flow provided by operating activities for fheriods from March 23, 2013 to December 31, 201BJamuary 1, 2013 to March
22, 2013 were $365,087 and $29,747 respectivempaned to $209,474 for the year ended Decembe&@D. The increase in 2013
was primarily depreciation, amortization of intdnigs, prepublication costs and deferred financogicand stockased compensati
expense. The cash provided by operating activitie®ased as a result of positive changes in wgrkapital due to the timing of
vendor payments and related expense management.

Cash flows used in investing activities in tleayended December 31, 2014 , was $134,107 , piymeflected payments of $56,453
for Area 9 and Ryerson acquisitions as well as ydsbgation investment of $50,263 . Cash flows uiseidvesting activities for the
periods from March 23, 2013 to December 2013 (Sssm® and January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Pexdec) were $1,823,8@4hc
$49,128 , respectively. Cash used in the 2013 Ssocgeriod primarily reflected the Founding Tramisen andALEKSacquisition.
Cash used in the 2013 Predecessor period wereduésdion of the non-controlling interest in thpesating company in India and the
20% investment in Area 9. Cash flows used in inagsactivities in 2012 primarily as a result of @stment in plant investment and
other projects.

Cash flows used in financing activities in yeaded December 31, 2014 , were $95,650 primariyy @sult of payment of term loan
of $41,880 and payment of deferred purchase poicAlfEEKSof $53,500 . Cash flows provided by financing atig for the period
from March 23, 2013 to December 2013 (Successos)$43693,883 which reflected the Founding Transacprimarily as a result of
the borrowings and equity contribution partiallyseft by the funds allocated to MHSE Holdings angnpant of transaction costs.
Cash flows used for financing activities during fregiod from January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013dEcessor) was $57,724 .
primarily as a result of transfers to MHC. Castwsoused for financing activities in 2012 was $124,@rimarily as a result of
transfers to MHC and dividend payment.
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Capital Expenditure and Plate | nvestment
Part of our plan for growth and stability includisciplined capital expenditures and plate investime

An important component of our cash flow generatsoour prepublication efficiency. We have been &mmlion optimizing our plate investment
to generate content that can be leveraged acrogalbrange of products, maximizing long-term netwn investment. Plate investments,
principally external preparation costs, are amedifrom the year of publication over their estindatiseful lives, one to six years, using either
an accelerated or straight-line method. The mgjafithe programs are amortized using an accektratthodology. We periodically evaluate
the amortization methods, rates, remaining livasracoverability of such costs. In evaluating remmability, we consider our current
assessment of the market place, industry trendisthemprojected success of programs. Our platestments were $50,263 , $52,455 and
$14,128 for the year ended December 31, 2014 (Ssock the periods from March 23, 2013 to Decer3tie2013 and January 1, 2013 to
March 22, 2013, respectively. The decline is duiemoroved management of prepublication investmedtfavorable timing.

Capital expenditures include purchases of propetant and equipment and additions to technologyepts. Capital expenditures were
$39,580 , $6,749 and $1,911 the year ended Dece3ib@014 and for the periods from March 23, 2@ Bécember 31, 2013 and January 1,
2013 to March 22, 2013, respectively.

Our planned capital expenditures and plate investsneill require, individually and in the aggregas@nificant capital commitments and, if
completed, may result in significant additionale@eues. Cash needed to finance investments anctzraj@rently in progress, as well as
additional investments being pursued, is expeadmbtmade available from operating cash flows ancedit facilities. See Debt and
Liquidity for further information.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As December 31, 2014 we did not have any relatigsshith uncombined entities, such as entitiesrofeferred to as specific purpose or
variable interest entities where we are the printemyeficiary, which would have been establishedHerpurpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrolimited purposes. As such we are not exposedydiaancial liquidity, market or credit ris
that could arise if we had engaged in such relatigns.

Contractual Obligations

We typically have various contractual obligatiowkjch are recorded as liabilities in our combinedsvlidated balance sheets, while other
items, such as certain purchase commitments arm eecutory contracts, are not recognized, buisctosed herein. For example, we are
contractually committed to acquire paper and ofiigrting services and make certain minimum leaserents for the use of property under
operating lease agreements.

The following table summarizes our significant caotual obligations and commercial commitmentsfd3ewember 31, 2014 , over the next
several years that relate to our continuing opanati

Payments due by Period

Total 2015 2016-2017 2018-2019 2020 and beyond
Long-term debt, including current porti® $ 1,481,04 $ 6,88( $ 13,76( $ 660,40' $ 800,00(
Interest on lon-term deb® 675,23: 117,30t 235,27( 205,65: 117,00(
Operating lease obligatio|(3) 127,49¢ 21,69¢ 38,91¢ 25,857 41,02,
Paper and printing servic®® 99,40( 52,00( 47,40( — —
Purchase obligation and ott® 70,40( 40,30( 30,00( 10C —

@ Amounts shown include principle on Senior Faciitand the Note.
@ Amounts shown include interest on Senior Facilitied the Note.
® Amounts shown include taxes and escalation paymelztted to our operating lease obligations.
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®We have contracts to purchase paper and printingcss that have target volume commitments. Howebere are no contractual terms that
require us to purchase a specified amount of goodsrvices and if significant volume shortfallsrevéo occur during a contract period, then
revised terms may be renegotiated with the supplieese obligations are not recorded in our contbamnsolidated financial statements until
contract payment terms take effect.

®"Other" consists primarily of commitments for gldbechnology support and enhancement activity eglab the Oracle ERP system.

Effective January 1, 2013, in connection with tlankactions, MHGE Holdings, our wholly owned sulzsig entered into transition services
agreement with MHC, pursuant to which MHC providdHGE Holdings and us with certain corporate servjdecluding corporate
accounting, treasury, global procurement and matwfimg, facilities, human resources and infornratiechnology during 2013. The transition
services agreement with MHC ended during 2014.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Critical accounting policies are those that reqtliee Company to make significant judgments, eséisiat assumptions that affect amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompgnybtes. On an on-going basis, we evaluate oimasts and assumptions, including, but
not limited to, revenue recognition, allowance doubtful accounts and sales returns, inventoriegublication costs, accounting for the
impairment of long-lived assets (including othaamgible assets), goodwill and indefinite-livedcaingible assets, stock-based compensation,
income taxes and contingencies. The Company besgslgments, estimates and assumptions on cdeetst historical experience and vari
other factors that the Company believes to be redde and prudent under the circumstances. Actisalts may differ materially from these
estimates. For a complete description of our sigailt accounting policies, see Note 1 of NotesamBined Consolidated Financial Statem:
included in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Sep@ntary Data.”

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Reti

The allowance for doubtful accounts and sales mstugserves methodology is based on historicaysisak review of outstanding balances
current conditions. In determining these resemmesconsider, among other factors, the financiad@&@mn and risk profile of our customers,
areas of specific or concentrated risk as wellpgsieable industry trends or market indicators. BHewance for sales returns is a significant
estimate, which is based on historical rates afrreand current market conditions. The provisianstales returns is reflected as a reduction to
“Revenues” in our combined consolidated statemehtgperations. Sales returns are charged agaieseterve as products are returned to
inventory. Accounts receivable losses for bad debtcharged against the allowance for doubtful aetsowhen the receivable is determined tc
be uncollectible.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting principally of books, atated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) market value. The majority of our inventories
relate to finished goods. A significant estimale teserve for inventory obsolescence, is refleictegberating and administration expenses. In
determining this reserve, we consider managemeunttent assessment of the marketplace, industngs¢rand projected product demand as
compared to the number of units currently on hand.

Prepublication Cost

Prepublication costs include both the cost of deviely educational content and the developmentsdsssnent solution products. Costs
incurred prior to the publication date of a titierelease date of a product represent activitissaated with product development. These may
be performed internally or outsourced to subjedtenapecialists and include, but are not limitededitorial review and fact verification,
graphic art design and layout and the processmfarsion from print to digital media or within vats formats of digital media.
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Accounting for the Impairment of Lc-Lived Assets (Including Other Intangible Assets)

We evaluate londjved assets for impairment whenever events or gésin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof an asset may r
be recoverable. Upon such an occurrence, recoVigyadfiassets to be held and used is measuredimparing the carrying amount of an asse
to current forecasts of undiscounted future neh €lasvs expected to be generated by the asséte I€arrying amount of the asset exceeds its
estimated future cash flows, an impairment chasgecdognized equal to the amount by which the oagrgmount of the asset exceeds the fair
value of the asset. Long-lived assets held for aadavritten down to fair value, less cost to dediir value is determined based on market
evidence, discounted cash flows, appraised valuesoagement’s estimates, depending upon the nafttine assets.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Gooduwill represents the excess of purchase prideelated costs over the fair value of identifiaddsets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination. Indefinite-lived intangibésets consist of the Company's acquired brandsdv@tb@nd indefinite-lived intangible
assets are not amortized, but instead are testénhpairment annually during the fourth quartertegear, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asggttiné impaired. We have three reporting units higeducation, Professional and
International with goodwill and indefinite-livedtamgible assets that are evaluated for impairment.

We initially perform a qualitative analysis evalingtwhether there are events or circumstancegptioatde evidence that it is more likely than
not that the fair value of any of our reportingteror indefinite-lived intangible assets are |éssttheir carrying amount. If, based on our
evaluation we do not believe that it is more likégn not that the fair value of any of our repagtunits or indefinite-lived intangible assets are
less than their carrying amount, no quantitativpairment test is performed. Conversely, if the itssaf our qualitative assessment determine
that it is more likely than not that the fair valoieany of our reporting units or indefinite-livéntangible assets are less than their respective
carrying amounts we perform a two-step quantitativgairment test.

During the first step, the estimated fair valuehaf reporting units are compared to their carryialye including goodwill and the estimated
value of the intangible assets is compared to teeitying value. Fair values of the reporting uaits estimated using the income approach,
which incorporates the use of a discounted freh fla® analysis, and are corroborated using theketaapproach, which incorporates the use
of revenue and earnings multiples based on magktat @he discounted free cash flow analyses ardbas the current operating budgets and
estimated long-term growth projections for eactorépg unit. Future cash flows are discounted based market comparable weighted
average cost of capital rate for each reporting, adjusted for market and other risks where apjmtg Fair values of indefinite-lived
intangible assets are estimated using avoidedtsogtedcounted free cash flow analyses. Signifigadgments inherent in these analyses inc
the selection of appropriate royalty and discoates and estimating the amount and timing of exgokfttture cash flows. The discount rates
used in the discounted free cash flow analysesatthe risks inherent in the expected future ¢asts generated by the respective intangible
assets. The royalty rates used in the discounésddash flow analyses are based upon an estimtte adyalty rates that a market participant
would pay to license the Company's trade namegraddmarks.

If the fair value of the reporting units or indéfatlived intangible assets are less than theiryaag value, a second step is performed which
compares the implied fair value of the reporting’argoodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets the carrying value. The fair value of the
goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets istedrmined based on the difference between thedikie of the reporting unit and the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilitiegla# reporting unit or carrying value of the indétf-lived intangible asset. If the implied fair
value of the goodwill or indefinite-lived intangéhssets is less than the carrying value, therdifte is recognized as an impairment charge.
Significant judgments inherent in this analysiduide estimating the amount and timing of futurehc@ws and the selection of appropriate
discount rates, royalty rate and long-term grovatie mssumptions. Changes in these estimates antdtgens could materially affect the
determination of fair value for each reporting wamd indefinite-lived intangible asset and for sarhéhe reporting units and indefinite-lived
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intangible assets could result in an impairmentgdawhich could be material to our financial piasitand results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company issues stock options and other stos&ebeompensation to eligible employees, directodscansultants and accounts for these
transactions under the provisions of Accountingn@ads Codification ("ASC") 71&ompensation - Stock Compensatiéior equity awards,
total compensation cost is based on the grantfdmtealue. For liability awards, total compensatimost is based on the fair value of the awarc
on the date the award is exercised and deliveradp&rformance-based options issued, the valueeoinstrument is measured at the grant dat
as the fair value of the common stock and expensedthe vesting term when the performance ta@ret€onsidered probable of being
achieved. The Company recognizes stock-based caati@m expense for all awards, on a stralgig-basis, over the service period require
earn the award, which is typically the vesting peri

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue is recognized as it is earned when goedshiwped to customers or services are rendereddngder amounts to be earned once
evidence of an arrangement has been obtainedcesraie performed, fees are fixed or determinaidecallectability is reasonably assured.

Arrangements with multiple deliverables

Revenue relating to products that provide for ntbes one deliverable is recognized based uporetaéve fair value to the customer of each
deliverable as each deliverable is provided. Regarlating to agreements that provide for more thamservice is recognized based upon the
relative fair value to the customer of each serecim@ponent as each component is earned. If thedhie to the customer for each service is
not objectively determinable, we make our beshesti of the services’ stand-alone selling priceraedgnize revenue as earned as the
services are delivered. Because we determine #is fm allocating consideration to each deliveegtrimarily on prices experienced from
completed sales, over time the portion of constitarallocated to each deliverable in a multipléw@gable arrangement may increase or
decrease depending on the most recent selling pfiaeeomparable product or service sold on a stdme basis. For example, as the demanc
for, and prevalence of, digital products increasgsmay be required to increase the amount of dersiion allocable to digital products
included in multiple deliverable arrangements bseahe fair value of such products or services imergase relative to other products or
services bundled in the arrangement. Conversetpdrevent that demand for our print products desas, thereby causing us to experience
reduced prices on our print products, we may baired to allocate less consideration to our priadpicts in our arrangements that include
multiple deliverables.

Subscription-based products

Subscription income is recognized over the relatdscription period that the subscription is avdédaand is used by the customer.
Subscription revenue received or receivable in adeaf the delivery of services or publicationsiduded in deferred revenue. Incremental
costs that are directly related to the subscriptewenue are deferred and amortized over the dphisarperiod. Included among the underly
assumptions related to our estimates that impaatebognition of subscription income is the petiwat our subscriptions are accessed by our
customers, the extent of our responsibility to jtewaccess to our subscription-based productsthenextent of complementary support
services customers demand to access our products.

Service arrangements
Revenue relating to arrangements that provide fmmerthan one service is recognized based uporelative fair value to the customer of each
service component as each component is earned.g8tastgements may include digital products bundiid traditional print products,

obligations to provide products and services inftitere at no additional cost, and periodic tragnpertinent to products and services previo
provided. If the fair value to the customer forteaervice is not objectively determinable, we makebest estimate of the services’ stahoiae
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selling price and recognize revenue as earnedeasetivices are delivered. Losses on contracteaognized in the period in which the loss
first becomes foreseeable. Contract losses areurezghas the amount that the estimated total cosismplete the contract exceed the estinr
total revenues that will be generated by the cohtra

Income Taxe

We determine the provision for income taxes usirggasset and liability approach. Under this apgrpdeferred income taxes represent the
expected future tax consequences of temporaryreiftees between the carrying amounts and tax basssets and liabilities.

Valuation allowances are established when managetie¢ermines that it is more-likely-than not thatne portion or all of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized. Management evaluatesviight of both positive and negative evidencadtermining whether a deferred tax asset
will be realized. Management will look to a histarfylosses, future reversal of existing taxablegerary differences, taxable income in
carryback years, feasibility of tax planning stgiés, and estimated future taxable income. Theatialn allowance can also be affected by
changes in tax laws and changes to statutory tas.ra

We prepare and file tax returns based on managé&sietarpretation of tax laws and regulations. Aghwall businesses, our tax returns are
subject to examination by various taxing authasit®uch examinations may result in future tax @ssests based on differences in
interpretation of the tax law and regulations. Wpist our estimated uncertain tax positions resebased on audits by and settlements with
various taxing authorities as well as changesxrawas, regulations, and interpretations. We recgmterest and penalties on uncertain tax
positions as part of interest expense and operatipgnses, respectively.

Recent Accounting Standar

For a detailed discussion, see Note 1 "Recent Atouy Standards" in our accompanying consolidaiteahicial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE AB OUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Exchange Ris

Our exposure to market risk includes changes isidorexchange rates. We have operations in vafiwagn countries where the functional
currency is primarily the local currency. For imtational operations that are determined to be sides of the parent company, the United
States dollar is the functional currency. Our pipfecurrency exposures relate to the Euro, Briisind, Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar,
Singapore Dollar and Mexican Peso. From time t@time may enter into hedging arrangements witheetgp foreign currency exposures.

Interest Rate Ris

We have issued fixed and floating-rate debt antibeilsubject to variations in interest rates irpees of our floating-rate debt. Borrowings
under our Senior Facilities will accrue interestatiable rates, and a 100 basis point increatfeeifIBOR on our debt balances outstanding a
of December 31, 2014 would increase our annualaéatexpense by $1,758. While we may enter inteexgents limiting our exposure to
higher interest rates, any such agreements magffestcomplete protection from this risk.

In the future we may use interest rate hedges tagmthe mix of our debt between fixed and variadie instruments. We do not purchase or
hold any derivative financial instruments for tnaglipurposes.

From time to time we may enter into hedging arramgets with respect to LIBOR borrowings under ouni8eFacilities.

48




Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of McGral&iobal Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of McGrawdill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLCdhaubsidiarie
(the “Company”)as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the relateioed consolidated statements of operations, pemepsive incon
(loss), changes in equity (deficit), and cash fldarsthe year ended December 31, 2014, the perad March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2
(Successor), the period from January 1, 2013 tacMap, 2013 (Predecessor), and the year ended Dece&h, 2012 (Predecessor). Our al
also included the financial statement scheduledigéh Note 22. These financial statements and stbede the responsibility of the Company’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements and schedukedbas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait afidhe Companys internal control over financial reporting. Ourdés includet
consideration of internal control over financiapogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion onetffiectiveness of the Compasyinternal control over financial reporting. Accmgly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesniximg, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the finan
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by management,esatliating the overall financ
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecbove present fairly, in all material respedts, tonsolidated financial position of McGraw
Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLCdarubsidiaries at December 31, 2014 and 2013, lmddmbined consolidated result:
their operations and their cash flows for the yaated December 31, 2014, the period from Marct2@33 to December 31, 2013 (Succes
the period from January 1, 2013 to March 22, 20&@decessor) and the year ended December 31, Pédd@etessor), in conformity with U
generally accepted accounting principles. Alsaun opinion, the related financial statement scheeduhen considered in relation to the b
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty faiall material respects the information setlicherein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 30, 2015
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries
Combined Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Dollars in thousands)

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended ded
December 31, to to Year Ende
2013 March 22, 2013

Revenue $ 1,290,47¢ $ 1,055,80 | $ 186,24: $ 1,258,941
Cost of goods sold 358,73: 460,85( 56,24¢ 387,48!

Gross profit 931,74 594,95! 129,99: 871,46:
Operating expenses
Operating & administration expense 683,23¢ 494 56! 129,33t 640,48:
Depreciation 15,45¢ 16,19: 3,87 19,257
Amortization of intangibles 103,34 69,23: 1,69¢ 6,79¢
Transaction costs 3,931 27,61: — —

Total operating expenses 805,97: 607,60( 134,90¢ 666,54(

Operating (loss) income 125,77: (12,645 (4,916 204,92:
Interest expense (income), net 146,12 135,02: 481 (913)
Other (income) expense (12,429 (2,125 — (7,48¢)

(Loss) income from operation:

before taxes on income (7,92)) (145,54 (5,399 213,32:
Income tax (benefit) provision (11,44°) (61,83) (1,219 86,47(

Net (loss) income 3,52¢ (83,71) (4,189 126,85
Less: Net (income) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests 29¢ (2,25)) 631 (4,559
Net (loss) income attributable to
McGraw-Hill Global Education ) ) )
Intermediate Holdings, LLC $ 382t $ (85,969 | $ (3,559 $ 122,29:

See accompanying notes to the combined consolifiatattial statements
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries
Combined Consolidated Statements of Comprehensivadome (Loss)
(Dollars in thousands)

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended to to Year Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2012
December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013

Net (loss) income $ 3,52¢ $ (83,71) | $ (4,18) $ 126,85:
Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Foreign currency translation adjustmer (16,67¢) (9,94¢) (1,376 6,147

Unrealized gain on investments, net of

of $167, $51 and ($500) for the periods

March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013

(Successor), January 1, 2013 to March

2013 (Predecessor) and the year ended

December 31, 2012, respectively — (263) 79 (2,936

Comprehensive (loss) income (13,150 (93,920 (5,48)) 130,06:

Less: Comprehensive (income) loss
attributable to noncontrolling interest 29¢ (2,25)) 631 (4,559
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable
to McGraw-Hill Global Education . )
Intermediate Holdings, LLC $ (12,85) $ (96,17) | $ (4,850 $ 125,50-

See accompanying notes to the combined consolifiatattial statements

51




McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries

Current assets
Cash and equivalents

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Dollars in thousands)

Successor

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#ittounts of
$13,957 and $16,213 and sales returns of $181,92%568,383 a
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplgctive

Due from related party

Inventories, net

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets

Prepublication costs, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Investments
Deferred income taxes non-current
Other non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued royalties

Accrued compensation and contributions to retirerpéans

Deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Due to related parties
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Equity
Member's equity
Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Parent company equity

Total equity - noncontrolling interests

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$ 232,09t $ 253,39(
204,07. 225,45
— 27,36
76,99: 80,28¢
31,53¢ 37,40¢
30,74 25,55
575,41 649,45
80,98( 96,40¢
91,92¢ 100,68t
477,32 314,27
906,66t 1,051,71
9,21¢ 23,60
43,44( 25,83:
101,51 105,22:
$ 2,286,47. $ 2,367,19:
130,46! $ 131,42
101,82" 94,03(
66,24: 77,398
124,55 121,77
6,88( 8,10(
88¢ —
89,16( 127,38:
520,01 560,10:
1,447 AT 1,483,81!
8,28¢ 34,58¢
48,83 65,42t
2,024,61! 2,143,931
370,88: 295,94
(82,137 (85,967)
(26,88%) (10,209)
261,85¢ 199,77¢
— 23,49(
261,85¢ 223,26t
$ 2,286,47. $ 2,367,19:

See accompanying notes to the combined consolifiatattial statements
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries
Combined Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2014 to to December 31, 2012
December 31, 2013 | March 22, 2013
Operating activities
Net (loss) income including noncontrolling intesest $ 3,52¢ $ (83,71) | $ (4,189) $ 126,85:
Adjustments to reconcile net loss including
noncontrolling !r}terests to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation (including amortization of technolc
projects) 15,45¢ 16,19: 3,87¢ 19,25°
Amortization of intangibles 103,34° 69,23 1,69¢ 6,79¢
Amortization of prepublication costs 64,23 65,85¢ 10,16¢ 78,89(
Loss (gain) on sale of PP&E — 90 5 492
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 2,587 3,93¢ (39 (4,505
Deferred income taxes (20,99¢) (88,219 (17¢) 24,44¢
Stock-based compensation 7,28¢ 4,88¢ 3,29¢ 15,16¢
Amortization of debt discount 4,31¢ 4,19¢ — —
Amortization of deferred financing costs 11,22¢ 11,24¢ — —
Restructuring charges 24,02¢ 7,34¢ — 17,28¢
Other 7,67¢ 6,941 — 14,05t
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, nétief
effect of acquisitions
Accounts receivable 14,77¢ (123,25) 117,94: (15,809
Inventories (16,809 150,30 (10,829 (21,439
Prepaid and other current assets 7,78¢ 3,72¢ (19,209 (2,149
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (23,620 179,67¢ (50,12() (39,97)
Deferred revenue 81z 80,70¢ (26,435 18,86¢
Other current liabilities (7,437 12,82 8,221 (30,919
Net change in prepaid and accrued income taxes (3,319 3,77(C (8,075 7,611
Net change in operating assets and liabilities 16,22¢ 39,33( 3,607 (5,470
Cash provided by (used for) operating activities 21111 365,08 29,747 209,47:
Investing activities
Investment in prepublication costs (50,269 (52,459 (14,12%) (78,28)
Capital expenditures (39,58() (6,749 (1,917 (17,129
Acquisitions (56,459 (1,764,64)) (33,089 —
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,304 — — —
Proceeds from dispositions 8,88¢ 46 — 692
Cash provided by (used for) investing activit (134,10) (1,823,80) (49,129 (94,71¢)
Financing activities
Net transfers (to) from Parent — — (55,910 (117,00
Borrowings on long-term debt — 1,609,79! — —
Payment of term loan (41,880 (87,07Y — —
Payment of revolving facility — (35,000 — —
Equity contribution — 950,00( — —
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries

Combined Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in thousands)

Payment of acquisition costs on behalf of Parent
Distribution to Parent

Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests
Payment of deferred purchase price

Dividend on restricted stock units

Payment of deferred loan acquisition costs

Cash provided by (used for) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period

Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance $

Supplemental disclosures
Cash paid for interest expense
Cash paid for income taxes

— (28,675 — —

— (628,85 — —
(16¢) (526) (1,819 (12,627)
(53,500) — | —
(101) (1,411) — —
— (84,37%) — —
(95,65() 1,693,88; (57,729 (129,63
(2,657) (1,409) (1,450) 2,797
(21,297 233,75 (78,55%) (12,079
253,39( 19,63: 98,18¢ 110,26°
232,09t $ 253,39( 19,63: 98,18¢
126,10° 100,64( — —
15,24¢ 11,76: 3,85¢ 13,85’

See accompanying notes to the combined consolifiatattial statements
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries

Combined Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equi(Deficit)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Member's
Equity/Parent

Company Accumulated Accumulated Other Total Parent Noncontrolling
Successor Investment Deficit Comprehensive Loss Company Equity Interests Total Equity
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 295,94¢  $ (85,967) $ (10,209 $ 199,77¢ 2349C $ 223,26t
Comprehensive loss, net of tax — 3,82t (16,67¢) (12,85) (686, (13,537
Capital contribution 42,50( — — 42,50( — 42,50(
Georgia Holdings shares for acquisition
earn out 8,50( — — 8,50( — 8,50(
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (4,81%) — — (4,81%) (22,63%) (27,45()
Stock-based compensation 7,28¢ — — 7,28¢ — 7,28¢
Dividend on restricted stock units (2,189 — — (1,189 — (1,189
Non-cash capital contribution 22,64¢ — — 22,64¢ — 22,64¢
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests = = — — (169 (169)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 370,88. $ (82,13) $ (26,88) $ 261,85¢ — % 261,85¢
Balance at March 23, 2013 $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — — $ —
Equity contribution 950,00( — — 950,00( — 950,00(
Non-controlling interest acquired in th
Acquisition — — — — 22,22t 22,22t
Comprehensive loss, net of tax — (85,967 (10,209 (96,177) 1,791 (94,38()
Distribution to Parent (628,854 — — (628,85¢) — (628,85¢)
Payment of acquisition costs on behalf
of MHE Acquisition, LLC (28,67:) — — (28,672 — (28,67
Stock-based compensation 4,88¢ — — 4,88¢ — 4,88¢
Dividend on restricted stock units (1,41) — — (1,41) — (1,41)
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests — — — — (526) (52€)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 295,94¢ $ (85,967 $ (10,209 $ 199,77t 23,490 $ 223,26¢
Predecessor
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 72427:  $ —  $ (74,429 $ 649,84! 24,73 674,58(
Comprehensive loss, net of tax $ — 3 (3,559 % 1,29 $ (4,850 631 $ (5,487)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (14,677) — — (14,677 (10,379 (25,04¢)
Dividends — — — — (1,819 (1,819
Stock-based compensation 3,294 — — 3,294 — 3,29¢
Net decrease in Parent company
investment (56,41%) — — (56,41¢) — (56,41%)
Balance at March 22, 2013 656,47¢ (3,559 (75,72¢) 577,19t 11,91¢ 589,11!
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries
Combined Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equi(Deficit)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Member's
Equity/Parent

Company Accumulated Accumulated Other Total Parent Noncontrolling Total
Predecessor Investment Deficit Comprehensive Loss  Company Equity Interests Equity
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 694,55 % — % (64,61) $ 629,94! $ 32,55¢ $ 662,50
Comprehensive loss, net of tax 122,29: — 3,211 125,50 4,55¢ 130,06:
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest — — — — (12,62Y) (12,627
Stock-based compensation 15,16¢ — — 15,16¢ — 15,16¢
Net decrease in Parent company investn (107,747 — (13,029 (120,77() 24t (120,52}
Balance at December 31’ 2012 $ 724,27‘ $ — $ (74,425) $ 64-9,84l $ 24,735 $ 674,58(

See accompanying notes to the combined consolifiatattial statements
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Combined Consolidated Financial Stateamts
(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policit

On March 22, 2013, MHE Acquisition, LLC (“AcquisitiCo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Holgsn Inc., acquired all of the
outstanding equity interests of certain subsidgaofeThe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“MHC") for $84,071 in cash (the “Acquired
Business”). The Acquired Business included all di®s educational materials and learning solutionsitess, which is comprised of two
elements (i) the Higher Education, Professional, laternational Group (the “HPI business”), whicdksludes post-secondary education and
professional products both in the U.S. and intéonatly and (ii) the School Education Group bustéibe “SEG business”), which includes
school and assessment products targeting studtetits pre-kindergarten through secondary schooketathe purchase price was allocated a
$1,711,348 and $472,723 to the HPI business an8H@ business, respectively based on their fairemlWe refer to the purchase of the
Acquired Business as the “Founding Acquisition”.

As of completion of the Founding Acquisition, ApmiGlobal Management, LLC (the “Sponsor”), certavrimvestors and certain members of
management directly or indirectly owned all of #epuity interests of AcquisitionCo. McGraw-Hill GlabEducation Intermediate Holdings,
LLC (the “Company,” “the Successor” or “MHGE Inteediiate”) and its wholly owned subsidiary McGrawi{HBlobal Education Holdings,
LLC (“MHGE Holdings”) were created to facilitateal-ounding Acquisition. In connection with the Fding Acquisition, a restructuring (the
“Restructuring”) was completed, the result of whiehs that the HPI business and the SEG businessrigeleeld by different legal entities. The
HPI business became held by MHGE Holdings, whigeSEG business became held by McGraw-Hill Schoakkton Intermediate Holdings,
LLC (“MHSE Holdings”), a separate wholly owned sighiary of MHE US Holdings LLC, our direct parentarent”). In addition,

concurrently with the closing of the Founding Adjtion, MHGE Holdings entered into certain creditifities which are described in Note 2 -
The Founding Transactions. MHSE Holdings is finahtteough separate credit facilities. MHGE Holdimgs its parent companies guarantee
or provide any collateral to the financing for MHSIBIdings, and MHSE Holdings does not guarantgeravide collateral to the financing of
MHGE Holdings or its parent companies. The terms,"Wour,” and “us” used herein refer to the Compan

Successor Basis of Presentation

The accompanying combined consolidated financé&kstents present separately the financial positesults of operations, cash flows and
changes in invested equity for the Company on &¢8ssor” basis (reflecting the Company’s ownerblifunds affiliated with Apollo) and
“Predecessor” basis (reflecting the Company’s ostmigrby MHC). The financial information of the Coeny has been separated by a vertica
line on the face of the combined consolidated faiarstatements to identify these different bagescoounting.

Predecessor Basis of Presentation

MHGE Holdings is our predecessor for accountingopees (the “Predecessor”). Historically, the Predsor did not operate as an independel
standalone company. The Predecessor’'s combineacfadastatements have been carved-out of the legataombined financial statements of
McGraw-Hill Education, LLC for the periods prior the Founding Acquisition. In connection with theuRding Acquisition, all of the HPI
business’s assets and liabilities were reviseéftaat their fair values on the date of the Fougdhtquisition, based upon an allocation of the
overall purchase price to the underlying net asseqsiired.

These combined consolidated financial statemefiecteour financial position, results of operaticarsd cash flows in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thedéhStates of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The combinathficial statements of the Predecesso
includes certain assets and liabilities that hastfhically been held at the McGraw-Hill Companibg; (“MHC”) corporate level but are
specifically identifiable or otherwise attributatiteus.

Intercompany transactions between the Company ad@ khat have been included in the Predecessor'domd financial statements are
considered to be effectively settled for cash smdbmbined consolidated financial statements atitte the transaction is recorded. The total
net effect of the settlement of these intercompany
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McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Combined Consolidated Financial Stateamts
(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

transactions is reflected in the Predecessor’'stiisi combined consolidated statements of casksflas a financing activity and in the
Predecessor’s combined consolidated balance sheé&Barent company investment.”

The Predecessor’s historical combined financidkstants include expense allocations for: (1) certarporate functions historically provided
by MHC including, but not limited to, finance, ldgeax, treasury, information technology, humaroreses, and certain other shared services;
(2) employee benefits and incentives; (3) shmesed compensation; and (4) occupancy. These expeamse allocated to the Predecessor @
basis of direct usage when identifiable, with tbeainder allocated on a prata basis of square feet occupied for occupansiscoonsolidate
sales, operating income, headcount or other messtine basis on which the expenses were allocateshisidered to be a reasonable refle

of the utilization of services provided to or thenkfit received by the Predecessor during the gefoesented. The allocations may not,
however, reflect the expense we have incurred atéhaur as a stand-alone company for the perjpdsented. Actual costs that may have
been incurred if the Predecessor had been a stand-eompany would depend on a number of factocduding the chosen organizational
structure, which functions were outsourced or penfl by employees and strategic decisions madeasauch as information technology
infrastructure.

Principles of Combination and Consolidation

The accompanying combined consolidated financé&éstents have been prepared in accordance withGASP and all significant
intercompany transactions and balances have beeimaled. In the opinion of management, the accaowipg audited combined consolidated
financial statements include all adjustments (csiirgl of normal recurring accruals) considered sgeagy for a fair presentation.

We record non-controlling interest in our combimedsolidated financial statements to recognizentmerity ownership interest in certain
subsidiaries. Non-controlling interest in the eagsi and losses of these subsidiaries represeshére of net income or loss allocated to our
combined entities.

Seasonality and Compar ability

Our revenues, operating profit and operating ckwstisfare affected by the inherent seasonality efatademic calendar, which varies by
country. Changes in our customeosdering patterns may impact the comparison ofresults in a quarter with the same quarter of tegipus
year, or in a fiscal year with the prior fiscal yeahere our customers may shift the timing of materders for any number of reaso
including, but not limited to, changes in acades@mester start dates or changes to their inventanagement practices.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make estand assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements andrapanying notes. Actual results could differ frdrose estimates.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimatesssumptions, including those related to revenuegrtion, allowance for doubtful accou
and sales returns, inventories, prepublicationss@stcounting for the impairment of long-lived dsgecluding other intangible assets),
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assetgdt-based compensation, income taxes and contirggemdanagement further considered the
accounting policy with regard to the purchase paibecation to assets and liabilities to be critiddnis accounting policy, as more fully
described in Note 3, encompasses significant judgsrend estimates used in the preparation of fireesecial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include ordinary ban&siespand highly liquid investments with originaatarities of three months or less that
consist primarily of money market funds with unrieséd daily liquidity and fixed term time deposifhe balance also includes cash that is
held by the Company outside the United Statesrid faternational operations or to be reinvesteaidetof the United States. The investments
and bank deposits are stated at cost, which appedgs market value and were $232,098 and $2538380@ecember 31, 2014
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(Successor) and December 31, 2013 (Successorgctasgly. These investments are not subject toifségnt market risk.
Accounts Receivable

Credit is extended to customers based upon anai@uof the customer’s financial condition. Acctaireceivable are recorded at net
realizable value.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Returns

The allowance for doubtful accounts and sales mettgserves methodology is based on historicaysisak review of outstanding balances
current conditions. In determining these resemw@sconsider, among other factors, the financiad@gmn and risk profile of our customers,
areas of specific or concentrated risk as wellpgdi@able industry trends or market indicators. BHewance for sales returns is a significant
estimate, which is based on historical rates afrreand current market conditions. The provisianstales returns is reflected as a reduction to
“Revenues” in our combined consolidated statemehtperations. Sales returns are charged agaieseterve as products are returned to
inventory. Accounts receivable losses for bad debtcharged against the allowance for doubtful aetsowhen the receivable is determined tc
be uncollectible. The change in the allowance tartadful accounts is reflected as part of operaéind administrative expenses in our comb
consolidated statement of operations. The allowémcdoubtful accounts was $13,957 and $16,213sathek returns was $181,927 and
$168,383 at December 31, 2014 (Successor) and exedt, 2013 (Successor), respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

As of December 31, 2014 (Successor) two custonmrpased approximately 31 the gross accounts receivable balance, whicbflisctive
of concentration in our industry. As of Decembey 3113 (Successor), two customers accounted faoajppately 29% of our gross accounts
receivable.

The Company has one customer that accounted foradf2Zr gross revenues for the year ended DeceBihe2014 (Successor), the period
March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successonjhengear ended December 31, 2012 (Predecessspgatdvely, which is included within
the MHGE Higher Education and MHGE Professionahsexgt revenues. In addition, the Company has a semastomer that accounted for
12% , 11% and 11% of our gross revenues for thegme@ded December 31, 2014 (Successor), the peradhiv3, 2013 to December 31, 2013
(Successor) and the year ended December 31, 28d@e@ssor), respectively, which is included withim MHGE Higher Education and
MHGE International segment revenues. For the peladiary 1, 2013 to March 23, 2013 (Predecessosingle customer accounted for more
than 10% of our gross revenue. The loss of, oradyction in sales from, a significant customedeterioration in their ability to pay could
harm our business and financial results.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting principally of books, atated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) market value. The majority of our inventories
relate to finished goods. A significant estimale teserve for inventory obsolescence, is refleictegberating and administration expenses. In
determining this reserve, we consider managemeunttent assessment of the marketplace, industngsrand projected product demand as
compared to the number of units currently on hdit reserves for inventory obsolescence were $3&86€ $45,548 as @fecember 31, 201
(Successor) and December 31, 2013 (Successorgctasyly.

Prepublication Costs

Prepublication costs include both the cost of dapielg educational content and the developments#sssnent solution products. Costs
incurred prior to the publication date of a titlerelease date of a product represent activitissa@ated with product development. These may
be performed internally or outsourced to subjedtenapecialists and include, but are not limitededitorial review and fact verification,
graphic art design and layout and the processmfarsion from print to digital media or within vatis formats of digital media. These costs
are capitalized when the costs can be directlibatable to a project or title and the title is egfed to generate
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probable future economic benefits. Capitalizedssast¢ amortized upon publication of the title ov®estimated useful life of up to six years ,
with a higher proportion of the amortization tygigdaken in the earlier years. Amortization expesifor prepublication costs are charged as ¢
component of operating & administration expensegvaluating recoverability, we consider managetaenirrent assessment of the
marketplace, industry trends and the projectedesscof programs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation as of December 31, @lietessor) and December 31, 2013
(Successor). Depreciation and amortization arerdecbon a straight-line basis, over the assetshastd useful lives. Buildings have an
estimated useful life, for purposes of depreciatafrtwenty-eight years. Furniture, fixtures andipenent are depreciated over periods not
exceeding seven years . Leasehold improvementmaoetized over the life of the lease or the liféhad assets, whichever is shorter. The
Company evaluates the depreciation periods of ptppalant and equipment to determine whether esventircumstances warrant revised
estimates of useful lives.

Royalty Advances

Royalty advances are initially capitalized and sgjoently expensed as related revenues are earmgtearthe Company determines future
recovery is not probable. The Company has a losigphyi of providing authors with royalty advancesd dt tracks each advance earned with
respect to the sale of the related publicationtdiiisally, the longer the unearned portion of tdgance remains outstanding, the less likely it i
that the Company will recover the advance throinghsiale of the publication, as the related royaki@rned are applied first against the
remaining unearned portion of the advance. The Gmyppplies this historical experience to its éxgsbutstanding royalty advances to
estimate the likelihood of recovery. Additionaltile Company’s editorial staff reviews its portfoibroyalty advances at a minimum quarterly
to determine if individual royalty advances are remtoverable for discrete reasons, such as thé déan author prior to completion of a title
tittes, a Company decision to not publish a tpleor market demand or other relevant factors tbakdcimpact recoverability. Based on this
information, the portion of any advance that weewa is not recoverable is expensed. The net anwfuwolalty advances was $3,927 and
$6,831 as of December 31, 2014 (Successor) andhiere31, 2013 (Successor), respectively.

Deferred Technology Costs

We capitalize certain software development and itelmplementation costs. Capitalized costs onghide incremental, direct costs of
materials and services incurred to develop thevsoé after the preliminary project stage is congaefunding has been committed and it is
probable that the project will be completed andduseperform the function intended. Incrementaks@se expenditures that are out-of-pocket
to us and are not part of an allocation or exiséirgense base. Software development and websiterireptation costs are expensed as
incurred during the preliminary project stage. @aljzied costs are amortized from the year the sofvis ready for its intended use over its
estimated useful life, three to seven years , usiagtraight-line method. Periodically, we evaduthie amortization methods, remaining lives
and recoverability of such costs. Capitalized safendevelopment and website implementation costiatuded in other non-current assets in
the consolidated balance sheets and are presegtteflaccumulated amortization. Gross deferredrteldyy costs were $42,030 and $20,130
as of December 31, 2014 (Successor) and Decemb2032 (Successor), respectively. Accumulated grativn of deferred technology costs
were $12,433 and $5,586 as of December 31, 201et€Ssor) and December 31, 2013 (Successor).

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets (Including Other Intangible Assets)
We evaluate londjved assets for impairment whenever events or gésin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof an asset may r
be recoverable. Upon such an occurrence, recoVigyadfiassets to be held and used is measuredimparing the carrying amount of an asse

to current forecasts of undiscounted future neh lasvs expected to be generated by the asséte I€arrying amount of the asset exceeds its
estimated future cash flows, an
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impairment charge is recognized equal to the ambwnthich the carrying amount of the asset excéleelair value of the asset. Long-lived
assets held for sale are written down to fair valkess cost to sell. Fair value is determined basetharket evidence, discounted cash flows,
appraised values or management’s estimates, deygeapgon the nature of the assets. There were naiiments of long-lived assets for the
year endedDecember 31, 2014 (Successor), the periods Mar¢h B&cember 31, 2013 (Successor) and Januaryiatoh 22, 2013
(Predecessor) and the year ended December 31 (R8ddecessor).

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived | ntangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase pridealated costs over the fair value of identifiaddsets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination. Indefinite-lived intangibésets consist of the Company's acquired brandsdv@bb@nd indefinite-lived intangible
assets are not amortized, but instead are testénhpairment annually during the fourth quartertegear, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asggttiné impaired. We have three reporting units higeducation, Professional and
International with goodwill and indefinite-livedtamgible assets that are evaluated for impairment.

We initially perform a qualitative analysis evalingtwhether there are events or circumstancegptioatde evidence that it is more likely than
not that the fair value of any of our reportingteror indefinite-lived intangible assets are |éssttheir carrying amount. If, based on our
evaluation we do not believe that it is more likéign not that the fair value of any of our repgagtunits or indefinite-lived intangible assets are
less than their carrying amount, no quantitativpaimment test is performed. Conversely, if the ltssaf our qualitative assessment determine
that it is more likely than not that the fair valofeany of our reporting units or indefinite-livétangible assets are less than their respective
carrying amounts we perform a two-step quantitativgairment test.

During the first step, the estimated fair valuetaf reporting units are compared to their carryialye including goodwill and the estimated
value of the intangible assets is compared to teeitying value. Fair values of the reporting uaits estimated using the income approach,
which incorporates the use of a discounted freh fla® analysis, and are corroborated using theketaapproach, which incorporates the use
of revenue and earnings multiples based on magktat @he discounted free cash flow analyses ardbas the current operating budgets and
estimated long-term growth projections for eactorépg unit. Future cash flows are discounted based market comparable weighted
average cost of capital rate for each reporting awdljusted for market and other risks where apjmts Fair values of indefinite-lived
intangible assets are estimated using avoidedtsogiesdcounted free cash flow analyses. Signifigadgments inherent in these analyses inc
the selection of appropriate royalty and discoat¢s and estimating the amount and timing of exgkfttture cash flows. The discount rates
used in the discounted free cash flow analysesatthe risks inherent in the expected future dlasts generated by the respective intangible
assets. The royalty rates used in the discounésddash flow analyses are based upon an estimtte adyalty rates that a market participant
would pay to license the Company's trade namegraddmarks.

If the fair value of the reporting units or indéfatlived intangible assets are less than theiryaag value, a second step is performed which
compares the implied fair value of the reporting’argoodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets the carrying value. The fair value of the
goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets istedrmined based on the difference between thediie of the reporting unit and the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilitiesha# reporting unit or carrying value of the indéf-lived intangible asset. If the implied fair
value of the goodwill or indefinite-lived intangéhbssets is less than the carrying value, therdifte is recognized as an impairment charge.
Significant judgments inherent in this analysidude estimating the amount and timing of futurehci@ws and the selection of appropriate
discount rates, royalty rate and long-term growatie mssumptions. Changes in these estimates amd@tgans could materially affect the
determination of fair value for each reporting wamd indefinite-lived intangible asset and for sarhéhe reporting units and indefinite-lived
intangible assets could result in an impairmentgdawhich could be material to our financial piasitand results of operations.
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Foreign Currency Trandation

We have operations in many foreign countries. Fostrinternational operations, the local currenaphésfunctional currency. For international
operations that are determined to be extensiotisedf).S. operations or where a majority of reveamd/or expenses is USD denominated, the
United States dollar is the functional currencyr IBoal currency operations, assets and liabildiestranslated into United States dollars using
end-of-period exchange rates, and revenue and sgpeame translated into United States dollars us&ightedaverage exchange rates. Fort
currency translation adjustments are accumulatedseparate component of equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company issues stock options and other stos&ebeompensation to eligible employees, directodscansultants and accounts for these
transactions under the provisions of Accountingn@ads Codification ("ASC") 71&ompensation - Stock Compensatiéior equity awards,
total compensation cost is based on the grantfdmtealue. For liability awards, total compensatimost is based on the fair value of the awarc
on the date the award is exercised and deliveradp&rformance-based options issued, the valueeoistrument is measured at the grant dat
as the fair value of the common stock and expensedthe vesting term when the performance ta@ret€onsidered probable of being
achieved. The Company recognizes stock-based carati@n expense for all awards, on a stralgig-basis, over the service period require
earn the award, which is typically the vesting peri

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as it is earned when goedshiwped to customers or services are rendereddngder amounts to be earned once
evidence of an arrangement has been obtainedcesraie performed, fees are fixed or determinaidecallectability is reasonably assured.

Arrangements with multiple deliverables

Revenue relating to products that provide for ntbes one deliverable is recognized based uporetaéwve fair value to the customer of each
deliverable as each deliverable is provided. Regarlating to agreements that provide for more thamnservice is recognized based upon the
relative fair value to the customer of each serecim@ponent as each component is earned. If thedhie to the customer for each service is
not objectively determinable, we make our beshesti of the services’ stand-alone selling priceraedgnize revenue as earned as the
services are delivered. Because we determine #is fm allocating consideration to each deliveegtrimarily on prices experienced from
completed sales, over time the portion of constitarallocated to each deliverable in a multipléwdgable arrangement may increase or
decrease depending on the most recent selling pfiaeeomparable product or service sold on a stdme basis. For example, as the demanc
for, and prevalence of, digital products increasesmay be required to increase the amount of dersiion allocable to digital products
included in multiple deliverable arrangements bseahe fair value of such products or services imergase relative to other products or
services bundled in the arrangement. Conversetpdrevent that demand for our print products desas, thereby causing us to experience
reduced prices on our print products, we may baired to allocate less consideration to our priadpicts in our arrangements that include
multiple deliverables.

Subscription-based products

Subscription income is recognized over the relatdscription period that the subscription is avdédaand is used by the customer.
Subscription revenue received or receivable in adeaf the delivery of services or publicationsiduded in deferred revenue. Incremental
costs that are directly related to the subscriptewenue are deferred and amortized over the spheorperiod. As of December 31, 2014
(Successor), no significant changes have been toatie underlying assumptions related to estimatesvenue or the methodologies applied.
Included among the underlying assumptions reladexlit estimates that impact the recognition of stipgon income is the period that our
subscriptions are accessed by our customers, thatexX our responsibility to provide access to suipscription-based products, and the exter
of complementary support services customers dertwaadcess our products.
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Service arrangements

Revenue relating to arrangements that provide fmmerthan one service is recognized based uporelative fair value to the customer of each
service component as each component is earned.g8tastgements may include digital products bundiid traditional print products,
obligations to provide products and services inftitere at no additional cost, and periodic tragnpertinent to products and services previa
provided. If the fair value to the customer forteaervice is not objectively determinable, we makebest estimate of the services’ stahoiae
selling price and recognize revenue as earnedeasetivices are delivered. Losses on contracteaognized in the period in which the loss
first becomes foreseeable. Contract losses areurezghas the amount that the estimated total cosismplete the contract exceed the estinr
total revenues that will be generated by the cohtra

Shipping and Handling Costs

All amounts billed to customers in a sales tranisadbr shipping and handling are classified aene. Shipping and handling costs are also
component of cost of goods sold. We incurred $6,86083 and $7,665 in shipping and handling clostthe year ended December 31, 2014
(Successor), December 31, 2013 (Successor) andribecs31, 2012 (Predecessor), respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company'’s operations are subject to UnitedeStideral, state and local income taxes, andgioiecome taxes. In several jurisdictions,
the Predecessor's operations have historically imetuided in MHC's income tax returns. In preparthg Predecessor's combined financial
statements, the tax provision was determined aparate company basis. In this Predecessor pén@iicome tax provision considered net
operating loss carryback and carryforward ruleseurgbplicable tax laws. To the extent that theseperating losses existed only as a rest
these separate company financials, they were de@ntszldistributed to MHC as of the balance shagt.dSubsequent to the Acquisition, the
Company (Successor) files as a consolidated gradpruGeorgia Holdings, Inc. In the Successor penetloperating losses and other tax
attributes are characterized as realized or rddéizsy MHGE Holdings when the attributes are wiizy the consolidated Federal group
following the Company'’s “Benefits-for-Loss” allodah method.

We determine the provision for income taxes usirggasset and liability approach. Under this apgrpdeferred income taxes represent the
expected future tax consequences of temporaryreiftees between the carrying amounts and tax basssets and liabilities.

Valuation allowances are established when managetie¢ermines that it is more-likely-than not thatne portion or all of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized. Management evaluatesviight of both positive and negative evidencadtermining whether a deferred tax asset
will be realized. Management will look to a histarfylosses, future reversal of existing taxablegerary differences, taxable income in
carryback years, feasibility of tax planning stgigs, and estimated future taxable income. Theati@ln allowance can also be affected by
changes in tax laws and changes to statutory tas.ra

We prepare and file tax returns based on managé&srietgrpretation of tax laws and regulations. Athvall businesses, our tax returns are
subject to examination by various taxing authasit®uch examinations may result in future tax assests based on differences in
interpretation of the tax law and regulations. Vilgust our estimated uncertain tax positions resebased on audits by and settlements with
various taxing authorities as well as changesxrawas, regulations, and interpretations. We recgmterest and penalties on uncertain tax
positions as part of interest expense and operatipgnses, respectively.

Contingencies

We accrue for loss contingencies when both (aymétion available prior to issuance of the finahstatements indicates that it is probable
that a liability had been incurred at the dateheffinancial statements and (b) the amount ofdassreasonably be estimated. When we accru
for loss contingencies and the reasonable estiofdbe loss is within a range, we record its besingate within the range. We disclose an
estimated possible loss or a
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range of loss when it is at least reasonably ptesHilat a loss may have been incurred. Neithercarual nor disclosure is required for losses
that are deemed remote.

Recent Accounting Standards

In December 2014, the Financial Accounting Stansl@&wolard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Upd&&U”) No. 2014-17 (Topic
805) -Business Combinationsvhich provides an acquired entity with an optiorapply pushdown accounting in its separate firsnc
statements upon occurrence of an event in whicrcgnirer obtains control of the acquired entity. daguired entity may elect the option to
apply pushdown accounting as a change in accouptingipal in the reporting period in which the alga in control event occurs and use the
new basis to measure its assets, liabilities aniyed he guidance is effective on November 18,£28td will not have any impact on
consolidated financial position or results of opierss. The Company will consider this guidanceifefuture acquisition related activities.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-“Thsclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Aibjlto Continue as a Going Concern,”
to provide guidance on management’s responsibiligvaluating whether there is substantial doubual company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide related footnote dmales. This update is effective for the annuebpesnding after December 15, 2016, and
for annual periods and interim periods thereaffarly application is permitted. The adoption obtguidance will not have a material impac
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014d@mpensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Adoayfor Share-Based Payments
When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Perfonadrarget Could Be Achieved after the RequisiteiGePeriod(a consensus of the
FASB Emerging Issues Task Force). This ASU clasifteat a performance target that affects vestinigtiaat could be achieved after the
requisite service period be treated as a performaandition. A reporting entity should apply exigtiguidance in Topic 718 as it relates to
awards with performance conditions that affectingsto account for such awards. As such, the perdoice target should not be reflected in
estimating the grant-date fair value of the aw&uwoimpensation cost should be recognized in the gémiavhich it becomes probable that the
performance target will be achieved and shouldesgmt the compensation cost attributable to thegys) for which the requisite service has
already been rendered. This ASU may be applie@re{d) prospectively to all awards granted or nmiedibfter the effective date or

(b) retrospectively to all awards with performataeyets that are outstanding as of the beginnirtetarliest annual period presented in the
financial statements and to all new or modified misahereafter. The amendments in this updatefteetige for annual periods and interim
periods within those annual periods beginning ditecember 15, 2015. Earlier adoption is permitt€de Company is evaluating the impact
that this update will have on its consolidated fficial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-Bgyvenue from Contracts with Customenghich supersedes most of the current revenue
recognition requirements. The core principle & tiew guidance is that an entity should recogrezernue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the consideration to which the entity expdotbe entitled in exchange for those good:
or services. New disclosures about the nature, amtiming and uncertainty of revenue and cash $lawising from contracts with customers
are also required. This guidance is effective lier Company in the first quarter of 2017 and egplyliaation is not permitted. Entities must
adopt the new guidance using one of two retrospeetpplication methods. The Company is currentbluating the standard to determine the
impact of its adoption on the consolidated finahsiatements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-88:porting Discontinued Operations and DisclosureBisposals of Components of an
Entity, which changes the criteria for determining whicspaisals can be presented as discontinued operationsodifies the related
disclosure requirements. Under the new guidandesantinued operation is defined as a disposal@mponent or group of components that
represents a strategic shift that has, or will hawmajor effect on an entity's operations andnione results. The revised guidance is effective
for annual fiscal periods beginning after Decenitier2014 . Early adoption is permitted. The Compiargvaluating the impact the revised
guidance will have on our consolidated financiatetents.
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In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 20134thtome Taxes (Topic 74Q@yhich prescribes that a liability related to anegagnized tax
benefit would be offset against a deferred taxtafssa net operating loss carryforward, a simiéat loss or a tax credit carryforward if such
settlement is required or expected in the evenuttoertain tax position is disallowed. In situaan which a net operating loss carryforward,
similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward ig agailable at the reporting date under the taxdéw jurisdiction or the tax law of a jurisdiction
does not require it, and the Company does notdntemise the deferred tax asset for such purplbeejrirecognized tax benefit should be
presented in the financial statements as a liglalitd should not be combined with deferred taxtassé the beginning of our 2014 fiscal year,
we adopted ASU 2013-11 and it did not have a meteripact on our combined consolidated financialeshents.

2. The Founding Transaction:
As discussed in Note 1, the Founding Acquisitiors wampleted on March 22, 2013 and financed by:

» Borrowings under MHGE Holdings senior secureztldrfacilities (the “Senior Facilities”), consisg of a $810,000 , 6 -year senior
secured term loan credit facility (the “term loacifity”), all of which was drawn at closing anc240,000 , 5 -year senior secured
revolving credit facility (“revolving credit facity”), $35,000 of which was drawn at closing;

e Issuance by MHGE Holdings and McGraw-Hill Gloleaducation Finance, Inc., a wholly owned subsid@rMHGE (together with
MHGE Holdings, the “Issuers”) of $800,000 , 9.75%stfpriority senior secured notes due 2021 (theté&d”); and

»  Equity contribution of $950,000 from Parent feddoy the Sponsor, davestors and manageme
The Founding Acquisition occurred simultaneouslthvihe closing of the financing transactions anditggnvestments described above.

The Founding Acquisition, related financing and payt of any costs related to these transactionsddiectively herein referred to as the
Founding Transactions.

3. The Founding Acquisition

The Founding Acquisition was accounted for as an@ss combination in accordance with ASC 83siness CombinationsThe Founding
Acquisition and the determination of fair valuetloé¢ assets acquired and liabilities assumed wasded as of March 22, 2013 based on the
purchase price of $1,711,348 . As a result of tending Acquisition, goodwill of $350,050as recorded on the Successor's balance shet
Company has finalized the allocation of goodwilktach of its reporting units.
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The sources and uses of funds in connection wéh-thunding Transactions are summarized below:

Sources

Proceeds from term loan facility $ 785,70(
Proceeds from revolving credit facility 35,00(
Proceeds from Notes 789,09t
Proceeds from equity contributions 950,00(
Total sources $ 2,559,79
Uses

Equity purchase price $ 1,711,34
Transaction fees and expenses 131,33¢
Cash to balance sheet 88,25
Distribution to Parent 628,85:
Total uses $ 2,559,79i

Purchase Price

The Founding Acquisition has been accounted farguie acquisition method of accounting which reggiassets acquired and liabilities
assumed to be recognized at their fair values #seodicquisition date, with any excess of the paselprice attributed to goodwill. The fair
values have been determined based upon assumplated to the future cash flows, discount ratesasset lives utilizing currently available
information. On October 16, 2013 the working cdm@justment was finalized with MHC and the Comparshare of the proceeds of the
working capital adjustment was $28,099 .

The table below summarizes the fair values of #sets acquired and liabilities assumed at theafaequisition:

Cash and equivalents $ 19,63
Accounts receivable and other current assets 132,75(
Inventory 235,60:¢
Prepublication costs 109,06«
Property, plant and equipment 102,83
Identifiable intangible assets 998,00
Other noncurrent assets 56,22¢
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (143,079
Deferred revenue (42,339
Other current liabilities (49,767
Deferred income tax liability (15,846
Other long-term liabilities (29,579
Noncontrolling interests (22,225
Goodwill 350,05(
Purchase price $ 1,711,34

Residual goodwill consists primarily of intangitassets related to the knowhow and design of thep@ayis products that do not qualify for
separate recognition as well as assembled worlk forc
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The fair values of the finite acquired intangib&sets will be amortized over their useful livesjehhs consistent with the estimated useful life
considerations used in determining their fair valu@ustomer and technology intangibles are amartirea straight-line basis while Content
intangibles are amortized using the sum of thesydaits method.

Fair Value Useful Lives
Brands $ 283,00t Indefinite
Customers 140,00( 11 - 14 years
Content 566,00° 8 - 14 years
Technology 9,00( 5 years

The Founding Acquisition was a taxable acquisitbthe assets of domestic subsidiaries and a nabla acquisition of the stock of
international subsidiaries for U.S. income tax msgs. Deferred income tax liability of $15,846 haen provided for the difference in fair
value of international assets and liabilities aber carryover tax basis.

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet asadber 31, 2014 and consolidated statement ohtipes for the year ended December
31, 2014 reflect the effects of immaterial corret to property, plant and equipment, net, goodadltounts payable, deferred taxes, related
party receivable and depreciation expense. Thisisesult of finalizing the valuation of assetguced in the Founding Acquisition, the re-
allocation of certain property, plant and equipmegtiveen MHGE and MHSE and a correction to thedot®pany transactions between
MHGE and MHSE.

Distribution to Parent

The total amount of $628,854 allocated to MHSE kiwld includes purchase price as well as the workamital adjustment made at closing
and is classified as "Distribution to Parent" ie tombined consolidated financial statements. MH8HEings is not included in these
combined consolidated financial statements.

Acquisition of Non-Controlling I nterest

On March 15, 2013 the Company acquired the remgi8#% interest in its joint venture in India andwowns all of the outstanding shares of
the joint venture. The aggregate purchase priceappsoximately $25,046 . The excess of the purchéase over the book value of the non-
controlling interest of $14,672 was recognizedrmaa@justment to additional paid-in capital.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The following unaudited pro forma results of opienas give effect to the Founding Transactions dlsaf had occurred on January 1, 2012 .
This unaudited pro forma financial information stibnot be relied upon as necessarily being indieadf the historical results that would have
been obtained if the Founding Transactions hadadgtaccurred on that date, nor the results of afens in the future.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
As reported Pro forma As reported Pro forma
Revenue $ 1,242,04 $ 1,241,210 $ 1,258,941 $ 1,229,44
Net income (loss) (89,519 (190,807 122,29: (134,82)

The above amounts have been calculated after adjubte amounts reported in our audited finanditiesnents to reflect increased inventory
costs, additional amortization expense of intargéssets, decrease in deferred revenue and addlititerest expense, all of which would have
been recorded assuming the fair value adjustments t
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inventory, intangible assets, debt and deferredireg have been recorded from the beginning ofrthaa periods being reported on, as we
the income tax impact of these pro forma adjustment

4. ALEKS Acquisition

On August 1, 2013, the Company acquired all ofdlstanding shares of ALEKS Corporation, a devalopadaptive learning technology for
the higher education and K-12 education markeier Ry the acquisition, the Company had a long-teoyralty-based partnership with ALEKS
where ALEKS technology solutions were incorpordted the Company’s Higher Education’s products.

ALEKS was acquired for a purchase price of $103,500which $50,000 was paid in cash at closinge Témaining $53,500 was paid one
year after closing on August 1, 2014 of wh$15,000 was held in escrow for six months. As e€@mber 31, 2013, $53,500 was included in
other current liabilities in the combined consal&thbalance sheet. The Company has finalized ttegrdmation of the fair values of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed upon acquisit@mOctober 31, 2013, the working capital adjustnvess finalized and the Company's share
of the proceeds of the working capital adjustmeas %1,422 . The $50,000 paid at closing and sulesggayments were financed by a
combination of cash on hand and borrowing undergkielving credit facility. Costs incurred in coratien with the acquisition for the year
ended December 31, 2013 were $2,549 and are intindgperating and administrative expenses in dmlined consolidated statements of
operations.

Subsequent to the closing, the Company enterediinéseller agreement with MHSE Holdings, which Eeparate wholly owned subsidiary of
our Parent, granting MHSE Holdings exclusive rigbtsell ALEKS products in the K-12 market. MHSEI#iags paid $25,500 to the
Company for the exclusivity provision, which is hgirecognized over five years and renewable faxdditional fee after five yearsand paid
royalty advance of $12,500 . The royalty rate i%1&n net sales.

The companies received a fairness opinion fronird frarty valuation firm on the terms of the tractgan.

The table below summarizes the estimated fair watfi¢he assets acquired and liabilities assuméukeadate of acquisition:

Tangible assets 9,36¢
Identifiable intangible assets 40,70(
deferred revenue (1,149
Other liabilities (23,087
Goodwill 77,66
Purchase price $ 103,50(

Residual goodwill consists primarily of intangitaesets related to the knowhow and design of thep@ayis products that do not qualify for
separate recognition as well as assembled worlk fdiee amount of goodwill is not considered dediletior tax purposes.

The fair values of the acquired intangible asséliidye amortized on a straight-line basis over thesieful lives which is consistent with the
estimated useful life considerations used in detgng their fair values.

Fair Value Useful Lives
Trade Name $ 5,30( 10 years
Customers 7,10( 7 years
Technology 28,30( 7 years

Amortization expense of $3,101 was recorded iryrsr ended December 31, 2014 (Successor). Amaotizexpense of $4,814 was recorded
for the period from March 23, 2013 to DecemberZ,3 (Successor). There wasarmortization expense recorded in the Predecessiodpie
2013.
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5. Area 9 Acquisition

On February 6, 2014 the Company acquired the rengaB0% that it did not already own of Area 9, ani3a Company and developer of
adaptive learning technology for the higher educatharket for total consideration of $80,292 . Priothe acquisition, the Company had a
long-term royalty-based relationship with Area 8sTCompany had purchased the other 208ke in Area 9 in January 2013. Consideratio
the acquisition of the remaining 80% was $29,008ash at closing, with the remainder in shareS@drgia Holdings common stock, includi
shares held in escrow, and shares subject to aroeaibased on several financial measures which wedaxo be met and therefore all earn
shares have been valued in member's equity.

Pursuant to the purchase agreement, consulting gxagnare due to the founders of Area 9 of $9,80@ fitesignated project and deliverable, o
which $2,700 is contingent upon a successful cotigul®f a project deliverable and $5,000 expensabrarsement over a four year period.
These costs are expensed as incurred.

There is a gain of $7,329 in other income reflectrfair value adjustment based on the purchase pfithe additional 80% interest on the
original 20% stake which fair value is $15,866 king the total transaction value equal to $96,158e Company determined the acquisition
date fair value of the previously held equity ietgrin Area 9 using the income approach, includmgsideration of a control premium, which
requires the Company to make estimates and assuamptgarding future cash flows. The Company hasampleted the final analysis of the
fair values and will continue its review during tmeasurement period. On July 18, 2014, the workapital adjustment was finalized and the
Company's payment for the working capital adjustimess $959 .

The table below summarizes the estimated fair watdi¢he assets acquired and liabilities assuméutkadate of acquisition:

Tangible assets $ 2,19¢
Identifiable intangible assets 44,80(
Other liabilities (2,627%)
Goodwill 51,79
Purchase price $ 96,15¢

Residual goodwill consists primarily of intangitassets related to the knowhow and design of thep@ayis products that do not qualify for
separate recognition as well as assembled worl fdiee amount of goodwill is not considered dediletior tax purposes.

The fair values of the acquired intangible asséliso& amortized on a straight-line basis over tthusieful lives of 4 and 7 years , which is
consistent with the estimated useful life consitlens used in determining their fair values. Anmmation expense of $6,09€as recorded in tt
year endeDecember 31, 2014 (Successor).

6. Ryerson Acquisition

On June 17, 2014, the Company acquired the rentpB0#6 interest in McGraw-Hill Ryerson, its Canadéabsidiary, and now owns all of the
outstanding shares of the operation. The aggremathase price was approximately $27,450 . Thessxakthe purchase price over the value
of the non-controlling interest of $4,815 was ratagd as an adjustment to member's equity. The @ayngdetermined the fair value of the
previously held equity interest in Ryerson usingaative market price on the date of acquisition.

7. Other Income
In the forth quarter of 2012, we recorded a pregfaix of $7,488 within other income in the combiséatement of operations related to a
change in our vacation policy. The change in owatian policy modified the number of days that emypks are entitled to for unused vacatiol

time upon termination of employment as they willyoloe paid for vacation days equivalent to whaythave earned in the current year.
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8. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

Successor
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Raw materials $ 1,16C $ 1,60¢

Work-in-progress 3,38( 2,22(

Finished goods 111,34! 122,01.

115,88! 125,83t

Reserves (38,899 (45,549

Inventories, net $ 76,99 $ 80,28t

9. Property, Plant and Equipment
Successor
Useful Lives December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Furniture and equipment 2-7years $ 49,48¢ $ 39,46¢
Buildings and leasehold improvements 7-28 years 59,39: 65,98(
Land and land improvements 3,89( 6,46:
112,77: 111,91:
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (20,849 (11,229
Total Property, plant and equipment, net $ 91,92t § 100,68t

Depreciation expense related to property, planteapdpment was $9,622 , $11,223 , $2,336 and $4Xfgfthe year endeldecember 31, 201
(Successor), the periods March 23, 2013 to DeceBihe2013 (Successor) and January 1, 2013 to Me#tcB013 (Predecessor) and the year
ended December 31, 2012 (Predecessor).

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset:

Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of purchase prideelated costs over the value assigned to theangible and identifiable intangible assets o
businesses acquired. The Company performs an aimpairment test of goodwill and intangible asseith indefinite lives during the fourth

guarter and also between annual tests if an exenire or if circumstances change that would mdedylithan not reduce the fair value of a
reporting unit or an indefinite-lived intangiblesas$ below its carrying value.
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The following table summarizes the changes in #reying value of goodwill by reporting segment:

MHGE Higher
Education MHGE Professional MHGE International Total

Balance as of March 23,

2013 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Adjustment to goodwiill 285,41: 25,99¢ 2,86¢ 314,27!
Balance as of December 3:

2013 $ 285,41 25,99¢ 2,866 $ 314,27"
Adjustment to goodwiill 150,74! 11,08: 1,22 163,04¢
Balance as of December 3:

2014 $ 436,15¢ $ 37,07¢ $ 408 $ 477,32

Goodwill additions/dispositions in the table reltdeacquisitions discussed in Note 3 - Apollo Aaifipns, Note 4 - ALEKS Acquisition and
Note 5- Area 9 Acquisition and includes $2,183 impachirforeign exchange.

Other Intangible Assets

The following information details the carrying anméséland accumulated amortization of the Compamyanigible assets:

Successor
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Accumulated Foreign Accumulated

Useful Lives Gross amount  amortization exchange Netamount Gross amount amortization Net amount
Customers 11 14 years 140,00( (17,98¢) — 122,01: 461,00( (21,067 439,93(
Content 8 14 year: 566,00 (137,120 — 428,88 172,40° (43,35() 129,05°
Brands Indefinite 283,00( — — 283,00! 429,00( — 429,00(
Technology 5 years 9,00( (3,195 — 5,80¢ — — —
Other
intangibles 4 to 10 year 85,50( (14,275 (4,262 66,96 58,54 (4,814 53,721
Total $ 108350 $ (172,579 $ (4,269 $ 906,66 $ 1,120,94! $ (69,23) $ 1,051,71

The fair values of the definite-lived acquired imjéble assets are amortized over their useful Jiwmddch is consistent with the estimated usefu
life considerations used in determining their fafues. Customer intangibles are amortized onaégétiine basis while content and technoli
intangibles are amortized using the sum of thesydaits method. The intangibles weighted averagertization period is 12.9 years .
Amortization expense was $103,347 , $69,231 , Rl68 $6,799 for the year ended December 31, 2Bddcessor), the periods March 23,
2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successor), JanuaylB, & March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) and the yatadeDecember 31, 201Predecessoi
respectively. The Company's expected aggregateahamortization expense for existing intangiblestssubject to amortization for each of
the years, 2015 through 2019 and thereafter, assuna further acquisitions or dispositions, is suamzed on the following schedule:
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Expected
amortization expense
2015 92,97¢
2016 86,87(
2017 80,20t
2018 72,717
2019 66,09¢
2020 and beyond 229,30:

There were no impairments of goodwill and indeéHived intangible assets for the year ended Deeei®b, 2014 (Successor), the periods
March 23 to December 31, 2013 (Successor) and dafiia March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) and the ye@#@dDecember 31, 2012 .

11. Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

Successor
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Term loan facility $ 663,55! $ 701,76
Notes 790,79t 790,15:
Less current portion of long term debt (6,880 (8,100
Long Term Debt (1) $ 1,447,47. $ 1,483,81!

(1) Long term debt balances reflect face valueatiftdess the unamortized discount.
Senior Facilities

In connection with the Founding Transactions, ord&2, 2013, MHGE Holdings, our wholly owned sulieiy, together with the Company,
entered into the Senior Facilities, which are goedrby a first lien credit agreement as amendedestdted, with Credit Suisse AG, as
administrative agent, and the other agents ancelsrhrty thereto, that provided senior securezhfimg of up to $1,050,000 , consisting of:

» the term loan facility in an aggregate princiaalount of $810,000 with a maturity of six yeaes

» the revolving credit facility in an aggregaténgipal amount of up to $240,000 with a maturityfig€ years , including both a letter of
credit sub-facility and a swingline loan sub-fagiliThe amount available under the revolving créatitlity at December 31, 2014 was
$239,961 .

On December 31, 2013 the Company made a voluntargipal payment of 10% of the $810,000 term loacility outstanding under its First
Lien Credit Agreement. This $81,000 voluntary pijrat payment is in addition to the Company'’s schiedguarterly repayment of $2,025 that
was paid on the same date.

On March 24, 2014, the Company made a voluntancjpal payment of $35,008hd refinanced the term loan facility in the aggtegrincipe
of $687,925 . The revised terms reduce the LIB@Rrffrom 1.25% to 1.0% and the applicable LIBOR girafrom 7.75% to 4.75% . The
maturity date did not change but quarterly princgeyments were reduced from $2,025 to $1,720 ntaming the amortization rate at ¥4 of
1% of the refinanced principal amount.

The interest rate on the borrowings under the $dtdoilities is based on LIBOR or Prime, plus aplegable margin. The interest rate was
5.75% at the year ended December 31, 2014 foethe lban facility and there were
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no outstanding borrowings under the revolving dratiility. The term loan facility and the revolgrecredit facility were issued at a discount of
3% and 2% , respectively. Debt issuance coststadiscount are amortized to interest expensetbegierm of the respective facility. The
amount of amortization included in interest expeneee $12,705 and $10,800 for the year ended Deee8ih 2014Successor) and the per
ended March 23, 2013 through December 31, 2013€380r), respectively. There was no amortizatigreese recorded in the Predecessor
period in 2013.

The term loan facility requires quarterly amortiaatpayments totaling 1% per annum of the refindrqméncipal amount of the facility, with
the balance payable on the final maturity date. fE€h@ loan facility also includes custom mandafamgpaymentsequirements based on cert
events such as asset sales, debt issuances, ametldef/els of free cash flows.

All obligations under the Senior Facilities are gardeed by the Parent, the Company and each of MH@®&ngs existing and future direct ¢
indirect material, wholly owned domestic subsidiarand are secured by first priority lien on sutitsddly all tangible and intangible assets of
MHGE Holdings and each subsidiary guarantor, athefMHGE Holdings capital stock and the capitatktof each subsidiary guarantor and
65% of the capital stock of the first-tier foreignbsidiaries that are not subsidiary guarantorsagh case subject to exceptions.

The revolving credit facility includes a springifigancial maintenance covenant that requires MHGllHgs net first lien leverage ratio no
exceed 7.00 to 1.00 (the ratio of consolidateddebt secured by first-priority liens on the coltateéo EBITDA, as defined in the First Lien
Credit Agreement, of MHGE Holdings and its consalet subsidiaries). The covenant will be testedtgtlg when the revolving credit facili
is more than 20% drawn (including outstanding tettd credit), beginning with the fiscal quarteded June 30, 2013, and will be a condition
to drawings under the revolving credit facility ¢inding for new letters of credit) that would résnlmore than 20% drawn thereunder. As of
December 31, 2014 (Successor), the borrowings uheeaevolving credit facility were less than 20%nd so the covenant was not in effect.

PostPlate Adjusted EBITDA reflects EBITDA as definedtire First Lien Credit Agreement. Solely for thegmse of calculating the springil
financial covenant, plate investments should béduebed from the calculation of EBITDA.

The fair value of the term loan facility was approately $677,640 and $733,769 as of December 314 2Buccessor) and December 31, 201
(Successor), respectively. The Company estimatefathvalue of the term loan facility utilizingehmarket quotations for debt that have qu
prices in active markets. Since the term loan itgtailoes not trade of a daily basis in an activekaet the fair value estimates are based on
market observable inputs based on borrowing rataemtly available for debt with similar terms aankerage maturities, based on fair value
hierarchy established in accordance with authargajuidance for fair value measurements (LeveA8)of December 31, 2014 (Successor),
the remaining contractual life of the term loanilfgcis approximately 4.25 years.

9.75% First-Priority Senior Secured Notes due 2021

In connection with the Founding Acquisition, on Mar22, 2013 , the Issuers issued $800,000 in pahemount of the Notes in a private
placement. The Notes bear interest at a rate 688 Jer annum, payable semi-annually in arrearsgnil A and October 1 of each year,
commencing on October 1, 2013. The Notes were dsatia discount of 1.36% . Debt issuance costdtadiscount are amortized to interest
expense over the term of the Notes using the effegiterest method. The amount of amortizatioruded in interest expense was $2,838 anc
$4,644 for the year ended December 31, 2014 (Ssagesnd for the period from March 23, 2013 to Deloer 31, 2013 (Successor),
respectively. There was no amortization expenserded in the Predecessor period in 2013.

The Issuers may redeem the Notes at its optiowhisle or in part, at any time on or after April2D16, at certain redemption prices.

The Notes are fully and unconditionally guarantbgdhe Parent, the Company and each of MHGE Ho®ddamestic restricted subsidiaries
that guarantee the Senior Facilities. In addittbe,Notes and the related guarantees are securf@gtiyyriority lien on the same collateral that
secure the Senior Facilities, subject to certatiusions.
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The Senior Facilities and the Notes contain certastomary affirmative covenants and events ofudefm addition, the negative covenants in
the Senior Facilities and the Notes limit MHGE Haolgs and its restricted subsidiaries’ ability tmang other things: incur additional
indebtedness or issue certain preferred sharesediens on certain assets, pay dividends or grepaor debt, make certain loans, acquisiti
or investments, materially change its businessagadnto transactions with affiliates, conduct asates, restrict dividends from subsidiarie
restrict liens, or merge, consolidate, sell or otlige dispose of all or substantially all of MHGBIHings assets.

The Parent and the Company are not bound by aawdial or negative covenants in the Senior Fagdliind the notes, other than, in the case
of the Company prior to an IPO, with respect tauimence of liens on and the pledge of MHGE Holdioggital stock and with respect to the
maintenance of its existence.

On March 24, 2014, the Company began paying aeimental 0.25% interest rate on the 9.75% Firstryi8enior Secured Notes because a
registration statement for an exchange offer tdhharge the initial Notes for registered Notes hacbeen declared effective prior to that date.
The incremental interest continued to accrue timtilexchange offer had been consummated. The Carspagistration statement for the
exchange offer was declared effective on May 1442@nd the exchange offer was completed on Jun20l®9 ending the incremental 0.25%
accrual on that date.

The fair value of the Notes was approximately $800,and $882,000 as of December 31, 2014 and Deze®ibh2013 (Successor),
respectively. The Company estimates the fair vafuts Notes based on trades in the market. Sineé\btes do not trade on a daily basis in al
active market, the fair value estimates are basedarket observable inputs based on borrowing @teently available for debt with similar
terms and average maturities (Level 2). As of Ddmem31, 2014 (Successor), the remaining contratifaaf the term loan facility is
approximately 6.25 years.

Scheduled principal Payments

The scheduled principal payments required undetattmes of the Senior Facilities and the Notes d3exfember 31, 2014 were as follows:

Successor
December 31, 2014

2015 $ 6,88(
2016 6,88(
2017 6,88(
2018 6,88(
2019 653,52!
2020 and beyond 800,00(
1,481,04!

Less: Current portion 6,88(
$ 1,474,16!

12. Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with authoritative guidance for f@lue measurements, certain assets and liabiiteesequired to be recorded at fair value. Fai
value is defined as the amount that would be reckio sell an asset or transfer a liability in atleoly transaction between market participants
A fair value hierarchy has been established whéjuires us to maximize the use of observable irgudsminimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The three legélaputs used to measure fair value are as follows

» Level 1 -Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilitie
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» Level 2 -Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgauated prices for similar assets or liabilitigspted prices in markets ti
are not active; or other inputs that are observabten be corroborated by observable market datsubstantially the full term of the
asset or liabilities.

» Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are suppdsietittle or no market activity and that are sfipant to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities.

As of December 31, 2013 (Successor), we held agsinvent in an equity security classified as aviglidr-sale that was adjusted to fair value
on a recurring basis. The fair value of our avaddbr-sale investment of $10,844 was determineédguguoted market prices from daily
exchange traded markets and classified within L& the valuation hierarchy as of December 31,32(Buccessor). On April 23, 2014
(Successor), the available-for-sale investmentweamtarily delisted from a registered securitigstange with no longer publicly available
guoted market prices. As a result, the Companywatsdor this investment at cost. Investments aglcbst are subject to a periodic impairn
review whereby the Company records an impairmeatgghwhen the decline in fair value is determireele other-than-temporary. As of
December 31, 2014 (Successor), the investmenttsanas $7,721 .

There were neither any instruments categorizedeaell2 or 3 nor any reclassifications between Layé, or 3 during the the year ended
December 31, 2013 (Successor).

Other financial instruments, including cash anchaaguivalents and short-term investments, are decbat cost, which approximates fair value
because of the short-term maturity and highly liguature of these instruments.

13. Segment Reporting

The Company manages and reports its businessies following four segments:

« MHGE Higher Education : Provides instructional content, adaptive learnaggessment and institutional services to students,
professors, provosts and presidents in the collegegersity and postgraduate markets in the Urfiedes and around the world.

« MHGE Professional: Provides content and subscription-based informat@nices for the professional business, medieahrtical
and education/test-preparation communities, indgdior professionals preparing for entry into graiguprograms.

« MHGE International : Leverages our global scale, brand recognition atehsive product portfolio to serve educational and
professional markets around the world. MHGE Intéameal pursues numerous product models to drivevtiroranging from reselling
primarily MHGE Higher Education and MHGE Professibafferings to creating locally developed prodsugites customized for each
region.

« MHGE Other : Includes certain transactions or adjustmentsdbatChief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) coneid to be
unusual and/or non-operational.

The Company’s business segments are consistenhaithmanagement views the markets served by thep@oym The CODM reviews their
separate financial information to assess performamd to allocate resources. We measure and evaluateportable segments based on
segment Cash Revenues and FRiate Adjusted Cash EBITDA and believe they prowddditional information to management and investo
measure our performance and evaluate our abilisgteice our indebtedness. We include the chandeferred revenue to GAAP revenue to
arrive at Cash Revenues. We exclude from segmesttfRate Adjusted Cash EBITDA: interest expenseq(ine), net, income tax (benefit)
provision, depreciation, amortization and prepuwdilam amortization and certain transactions or stdjents that our CODM does not consider
for the purposes of making decisions to allocaseweces among segments or assessing segment part@rflthough we exclude these
amounts from segment Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EB)Tiey are included in reported consolidated nebme (loss) and are included in the
reconciliation below.
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Cash Revenues and P&3ate Adjusted Cash EBITDA are not presentationdama accordance with U.S. GAAP and the use ofehas, Cas
Revenues and Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA, ¥&nen others in our industry. Cash Revenues asttPlate Adjusted Cash EBITDA
should be considered in addition to, not as a gubsfor, revenue and net income (loss), or otheasures of financial performance derived in
accordance with U.S. GAAP as measures of operggénprmance or cash flows as measures of liquidity.

Segment asset disclosure is not used by the CODdhasasure of segment performance since the segwvedngtion is driven by Post-Plate
Adjusted Cash EBITDA. As such, segment assetsatrdisclosed in the notes to the accompanying coetbconsolidated financial
statements. The following tables set forth inforimaabout the Company’s operations by its four sexgfist

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended to to Year Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, December 31, 2012
2013 March 22, 2013
Cash Revenues:
MHGE Higher Education $ 838,31( $ 718,07t $ 93,28¢ $ 779,78!
MHGE Professional 127,29¢ 99,42° 25,73¢ 128,04:
MHGE International 335,74 300,48 54,28¢ 372,35
Total Cash Revenues (1) 1,301,35. 1,117,99 173,31¢ 1,280,18I
Change in deferred revenue (10,879 (62,185 12,92¢ (21,239
Total Consolidated Revenue $ 1,290,470 $ 1,055,80° | $ 186,24: $ 1,258,94i

(1) The elimination of inter-segment revenues wassignificant to the revenues of any one segment.

Segment Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA:

MHGE Higher Education $ 293,100 % 280,95( | $ (6,045 $ 279,53:
MHGE Professional 37,88: 29,24¢ 2,93 29,62
MHGE International 37,60: 50,95¢ (8,630 47,47
MHGE Other (9,299 2,56( 1,571 (2,609
Total Segment Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA $ 359,29] § 363,71 | $ (10,179 $ 354,03:
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Reconciliation of Segment Post-Plate Adjusted 8B DA to the consolidated statements of operatisres follows:

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2014 to to December 31, 2012
December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013

Total Segment Post-Plate Adjusted Cash EBITDA 359,29. $ 363,71 | $ (10,179 $ 354,03:
Interest (expense) income, net (146,12¢) (135,02) (481) 913
Benefit (provision) for taxes on income 11,447 61,83! 1,21z (86,470)
Depreciation, amortization and plate investment
amortization (183,039 (151,28) (15,739 (104,946
Deferred revenue (10,87%) (62,185 12,92¢ (21,239
Restructuring and cost savings implementation
charges (30,600 (21,939 (2,767) (24,38¢)
Sponsor fees (3,500 (87%) — —
Elimination of corporate overhead — — — (58,199
Purchase accounting 2,60( (141,100 — —
Transaction costs (3,93)) (27,617 — —
Acquisition costs (2,837 (4,29¢€) — —
Physical separation costs (24,20 (4,100 — —
Other (14,97¢) (23,310 (3,299 9,95¢
Plate investment cash costs 50,26 52,45t 14,12¢ 78,28
Stand-alone cost savings — — — (21,109
Net (loss) income 3,52¢ (83,71) (4,189 126,85.
Less: Net (income) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests 29¢ (2,252) 631 (4,559
Net (loss) income attributable to McGraw-Hill ) ) )
Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC ~ $ 382t § (85,969 | $ (3,559 $ 122,29

The following is a schedule of revenue and longdiassets by geographic region:

Revenue (1)

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended March 23, 2013to  January 1, 2013 to Year Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013 December 31, 2012
United States $ 953,53: $ 754,52t $ 133,09° $ 883,73t
International 336,94 301,27 53,14¢ 375,21
Total $ 1,290,47: $ 1,055,80! $ 186,24: $ 1,258,941
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Long-lived Assets (2)
Successor
As of December 31, 2013

As of December 31, 2014

United States $ 191,74 $ 186,20:
International 19,66 39,74«
Total $ 211,41: $ 225,94

(1) Revenues are attributed to a geographic regiordbas¢he location of custom
(2) Reflects total assets less current assetslvgbointangible assets, investments, deferredrditing costs and non-current deferred tax

assets.
14. Employee Benefit:

Defined Contribution Plans

A majority of employees of McGrawill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLCegparticipants in voluntary 401(k) plans sponsdrg
the Company under which the Company may match graploontributions up to certain levels of compensat

Pension Plans

A majority of employees of the Company were papticits in various defined benefit pension plans elsag post-retirement plans

administered and sponsored by MHC. Benefits urtiepension plans are based primarily on yearsrgicgeand employees’ compensation.
The Company has no liability for these plans.

15. Taxes on Incomi

Income before taxes on income that resulted fromesic and foreign operations is as follows:

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended to '32) DYe?:aernEbnedresgl
December 31, 2014 ’
December 31, 2013 | March 22, 2013 2012
Domestic operations $ (19,905 $ (179,33() | $ 2,76¢ $ 148,35:
Foreign operations 11,98« 33,78¢ (8,16¢€) 64,97(
Total income (loss) before taxes $ (7,92) $ (145,54) | $ (539) $ 213,32
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The provision for taxes on income consists of thkfing:

Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended to to Year Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2012
December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013
Federal:
Current $ — 3 — 3,48: $ 27,56
Deferred (15,16¢) (62,75 — 28,49!
Total federal (15,16¢€) (62,759 3,48 56,05"
Foreign:
Current 11,55 10,60: (1,177 25,14¢
Deferred (4,567) 284 — (4,327)
Total foreign 6,991 10,88t (1,177 20,82;
State and local:
Current 25 371 (3,519 5,59:
Deferred (3,297 (20,329 — 3,99:
Total state and local (3,272 (9,95¢) (3,519 9,58¢
Total provision (benefit) for taxes $ (11,44) $ (61,83) (1,219 $ 86,47(
A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory tate to our effective income tax rate for financgpborting purposes is as follows:
Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended to to Year Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2012
December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013
U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
Effect of state and local income taxes 27.C 4.3 42.4 2.6
Meals and entertainment (9.2 0.3 (4.2 0.8
Foreign rate differential 22.t 1.€ (12.9) (3.0
U.S. tax cost of foreign earnings 23.7 (1. (36.€) 2.€
Inventory contribution 30.4 0.5 — (0.5
Valuation allowance on foreign tax credit (54.9) — — —
Research & development credit 5.C 0.2 — —
Area 9 gain 32.¢ — — —
Equity method investment - Maxen (4.9 (0.3 — —
Return to provision - MHGE Holdings 15.2 — — —
Return to provision - foreign tax credit 14.5 — — —
Other - net 7.C 2.€ (1.4 2.7
Effective income tax rate(1) 1445 % 42.5% 22.L% 40.5%

(1) Effective tax rate is a benefit against a losdfiftancial reporting purposes, for the year endedebwber 31, 2014, periods March 23, 2013 to Deceibe2013 (Successor)
and January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessspectively.
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The principal temporary differences between theaoting for income and expenses for financial répgrand income tax purposes as of
December 31, 2014 (Successor) and 2013 (Successoas follows:

Successor
December 31,
2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory and prepublication costs $ — % 9,457
Doubtful accounts and sales return reserves 16,46 21,64
Accrued expenses 9,64 5,09:
Employee compensation 11,71¢ 7,95(
Deferred revenue 29t —
Fixed assets and intangible assets — 3,951
Loss carryforwards 44 57¢ 12,72¢
Other 1,937 4,01z
Total deferred tax assets 84,63: 64,83
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets and intangible assets (615) —
Investment in subsidiaries (10,529 (33,000
Deferred revenue — (2,452
Other (1,509 —
Total deferred tax liabilities (12,647) (35,457
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) befor&uation allowance 71,99¢ 29,38!
Valuation allowance (5,30%) (784)
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) $ 66,69( $ 28,59°
Reported as:
Current deferred tax assets $ 31,53¢ $ 37,40¢
Current deferred tax liabilities — (52
Non-current deferred tax assets 43,44( 25,83:
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (8,28¢) (34,58¢)
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) $ 66,69 $ 28,59

In the Predecessor period, because portions d@dinepany’s operations are included in MHC'’s tax mety payments to certain tax authorities
were made by MHC, and not by the Company. Withetkeeption of certain dedicated foreign entities, @ompany did not maintain taxes
payable to/from MHC and were deemed to settle timaal current tax balances immediately with thelegx-paying entities in the respective
jurisdictions. These settlements are reflectechasges in Parent company investment. During thee&asor periods endDecember 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013 , we made net state, loddioagign income tax payments of $15,244 and $121, #&spectively.

In the Predecessor period, on a separate compaig; tiee income tax provision considers net opegdtiss carryback and carryforward rules
under applicable federal, state and internaticaralaws. To the extent that these net operatingelsxist only as a result of these separate
company financials, they were deemed to be didedbto MHC as of the balance sheet date.

Subsequent to the Acquisition, the Company (Succkfites as a consolidated group under Georgialligk, Inc. In the Successor period, net
operating losses and other tax attributes are ctaized as realized or realizable by
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MHGE Holdings when the attributes are utilized bg tonsolidated Federal group following the ComfmfBenefits-for-Loss” allocation
method.

As of December 31, 2014 (Successor), MHGE Holdheys U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwafdg8@,638 which are subject to
expiration in 2033-2034 and charitable contributanryforwards of $8,827 which are subject to eapiin in 2018 - 2019 . The Company also
has carryovers for Federal research and developenedit of $1,036 which are subject to expiratior2033 - 2034 and for foreign tax credit of
$5,839 which is subject to expiration in 2023 - 202

We record valuation allowances against deferredrimetax assets when we determine that it is mkedylthan not based upon all the current
evidence that such deferred income tax assetsatilbe realized. The Company incurs withholdingetagn royalties and operating taxes of
international branches. In the year ended DeceBhe?014 , MHGE Holdings established a partial atibn allowance of $4,314 on foreign
tax credit carryforwards due to foreign source medimitations. As of December 31, 2014 , valuaitiowances of $992 have been recorded
against net operating losses in subsidiaries in Buétralia, India, China, Argentina, and Malaysia.

We have not recorded deferred income taxes apjdi¢atundistributed earnings of foreign subsidisitigat are

indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations (“Usttibuted Earnings”). The Undistributed Earninggaling $17,040 at December 31, 2014
(Successor), will be used to fund internationalrapens and to make investments outside of the Q8antification of the deferred tax
liability, if any, associated with these Undistribd Earnings is not practicable. In the event thdiktributed Earnings were needed to fund
operations in the U.S., we would provide for akds in the U.S., if any, on the repatriated amaunts

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Successor Predecessor
Years ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year 1,14C 32,217 % 28,16¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theesir
year 30C 137 3,591
Additions for tax positions of prior years 60 15 57C
Reduction for tax positions of prior years (336 (31,229 (119
Balance at end of year $ 1,16¢ $ 1,14C $ 32,21%

The total amounts of federal, state and local,faneign unrecognized tax benefits as of DecembeRB14 (Successor), 2013 (Successor) anc
2012 (Predecessor) were $1,164 , $1,140 and $32/2%pectively, exclusive of interest and pensltiibstantially all of which, if recognized,
would impact the effective tax rate. We recognizeraed interest and penalties related to unrecedrtax benefits in interest expense and
operating expense, respectively. In addition toutiecognized tax benefits, as of December 31, 2Blidcessor), 2013 (Successor) and 2012
(Predecessor), we had $1,158 , $2,685 and $6 #3pectively, of accrued interest and penaltiesc@ated with uncertain tax positions.Prior to
March 22, 2013, the education divisions and subsek joined with MHC and filed separate incomerttarns in the U.S. federal, state and
local, and foreign jurisdictions which are routineinder audit by different tax authorities. Undweg terms of the Founding Acquisition, MHC
contractually liable for income tax assessment$fedecessor periods through March 22, 2013. Aenmdfication receivable from MHC of
$1,825 and $3,688 has been recorded in non-cuassets as of December 31, 2014 (Successor) andnbec81, 2013 (Successor),
respectively, for the unrecognized tax benefigiast, and penalties related to controlled foreigporations as taxpayers of record.

During 2013 and 2014, MHC made U.S. federal inctemepayments in settlement of an issue relatedd@tiucation business for tax years
2007 through 2010 and for tax years 2011 and 20A€ subject of the settlement is not an issue fBiISE Holdings in Successor periods.
MHC’s U.S Federal audits for 2013 and 2014 are in pgodauring 2014, MHC completed the federal incoaxeaudit for 2012 and complet
various state and local and
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foreign audits. MHC, with few exceptions, is noden subject to federal or state and local examanatby tax authorities for the years before
2006.

Georgia Holdings, Inc. is under examination byltiternal Revenue Service as part of the Complidsseirance Program for tax years 2013
and 2014.

We believe that our accrual for tax liabilitiesaidequate for all open audit years based on ansamseasof past experience and interpretatiol
tax law. This assessment relies on estimates anoigions and may involve a series of complex juelgimabout future events. Until formal
resolutions are reached with tax authorities, #temnination of a possible audit settlement ranijle Kspect to the impact on unrecognizec
benefits is not practicable. On the basis of presgormation, it is our opinion that any assesstaeasulting from the current audits will not
have a material adverse effect on our combinechéiizh statements. The uncertain tax liabilitie®aBecember 31, 2014 (Successor) are
$2,321 of which $1,825 is included in other nonrent liabilities and $496 is included in deferraddme taxes non-current within the
combined balance sheets. The uncertain tax lisilas of December 31, 2013 (Successor) were $8f82bich $3,688 is included in other
non-current liabilities and $137 is included ineteéd income taxes non-current within the combin&ldnce sheets.

Although the timing of income tax audit resolutiand negotiations with taxing authorities is highfycertain, we do not anticipate a significant
change to the total amount of unrecognized incardénefits as a result of audit developments withé next twelve months.

16. Stock-Based Compensatio

In the quarter ended June 30, 2013, Georgia Haddiimg., adopted the Management Equity Plan whe@sdmyrgia Holdings, Inc., the parent of
our Parent, can issue stock options, restrictezkstestricted stock units, and other equity awafdsof December 31, 2014 , the Board of
Directors of Georgia Holdings, Inc. authorized af{009,186 shares under the plan.

In the years ended December 31, 2014 and Decenib2033 , Georgia Holdings, Inc. issued 98,132 261620 stock options, respectively,
to employees of the Company. The options termiaatthe earliest of the tenth year from the datéhefgrant or other committee action, as
defined in the plan documents. The options wereagbt $68.83 and $53.66 each as the fair valeadt option at December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively; stock options naybe granted at a price less than the fair masdklee of common stock on the grant date
We use a Black-Scholes closed form option pricimglel to estimate the fair value of options granted.

The options vest over 5 years with 50% vestingumuative financial performance measures in tha plad the remaining 50% vesting
evenly.
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The following table presents a summary of optiotivég and data under the Company's stock incentiem as of December 31, 2014

(Successor):

Outstanding at December 31, 2013
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited and expired

Outstanding, December 31, 2014

Vested and expected to vest, December 31, 2014

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Per Remaining Aggregate Intrinsic
Number of Shares Share Contractual Term Value

364,72: 55.9%
98,13: 120.47
(12,246 33.1¢
(109,11) 36.5¢

341,49 56.5: 8.7 —

341,49 56.5% 8.7 —

Exercisable, December 31, 2014 —
Available for future grant at December 31, 2014 137,46

The Company estimated the fair value of each opiiothe date of grant using the Black-Scholes ddsem option-pricing model applying

the weighted average assumptions in the followatuet

Successor
March 23, 2013
December 31, 2014 to
December 31, 2013
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatility 40.(% 55.(%
Risk-free interest rate 2.3% 1.28%
Expected option term (years) 6.4¢ 6.4¢
Stock-based compensation for the periods presevdasds follows:
Successor Predecessor
March 23, 2013 January 1, 2013
Year Ended to to Year Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 March 22, 2013 December 31, 2012
Stock option expense $ 4738 $ 3,68t | $ 74 $ 1,20«
Restricted stock and unit awards
expense 2,55: 1,19¢ 3,22( 13,96:
Total stock-based compensation
expense 7,28t % 4,88¢ | $ 3292 $ 15,16¢

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 thaseapproximately $14,601 and $15,861 , respdgtivétotal unrecognized
compensation costs related to non-vested stocldiEsployee compensation arrangements granted tmeléfanagement Equity Plan. The
Company expects to recognize those costs overghteei average period of 3.8 years.

In 2014, Georgia Holdings Inc., issued 24,258 shafgerformance-based restricted stock unitsédbmpany that vest on December 31,
2016. The grant date value was $170 . In 2013, g@dtoldings Inc., issued 32,000 shares of perfocasbased restricted stock units to the
Company that vest on December 31, 2015 subjeafoymance achievement. The grant date value wa8 $1
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The Company recognized an income tax benefit farksoptions and restricted stock units of $2,880,892 and $1,275 for the year ended
December 31, 2014 (Successor) and the periods évideth 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successdrjanuary 1, 2013 to March 22,
2013 (Predecessor), respectively.

All outstanding stock options granted by MHC prioithe Founding Acquisition remain under MHC's shlaased compensation plans.

17. Restructuring

In order to contain costs and mitigate the impéciuorent and expected future economic conditiassyell as a continued focus on process
improvements, we have initiated various restruntyplans over the last several years. The chaoyesath restructuring plan are classified as
operating and administration expenses within thelined consolidated statements of operations.

In certain circumstances, reserves are no longsatetbbecause of efficiencies in carrying out tl@gl or because employees previously
identified for separation resigned from the Compang did not receive severance or were reassigmedlodcircumstances not foreseen when
the original plans were initiated. In these casasreverse reserves through the combined consetldaatements of operations when it is
determined they are no longer needed.

During the first quarter of 2013, prior to the Fding Acquisition, MHC continued to identify opponities for cost savings through workforce
reductions and other restructuring activities at @gMHC'’s Growth and Value Plan. For the peri@hdary 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013
(Predecessor), we reduced the reserve by $4,8%haniy relating to cash payments for employeeesance costs. As a result of the Founding
Acquisition, the reserve remained with MHC.

During the fourth quarter of 2013 and in 2014, @wmpany initiated restructuring plans across séwéligs business units to review its
business models and operating methods for oppdtigaro increase efficiencies and/or align costh Wwusiness performance.

During 2012, we recorded a pre-tax restructurirergé of $9,286 , consisting primarily of facilityiecosts and employee severance costs
related to a workforce reduction for the Compangesiic employees and $8,000 of restructuring chaalcated from MHC.
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The following table summarizes restructuring infatian by reporting segment:

MHGE Higher MHGE MHGE
Education Professional International MHGE Other Total

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 15,58¢ $ 262( $ 14,048 $ — 3 32,25¢
January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 Payments:
Employee severance and other personal ben (2,009 (42€) (2,449 — (4,877)
Balance at March 22, 2013 $ 13,58¢ $ 2,19 % 11,60 $ — 9 27,38
March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 Char¢
Effects of purchase accounting (1) (13,58¢) (2,199 (11,609 — (27,389
Employee severance and other personal ben 4,58( — 3,231 — 7,811
Other associated costs — — 69¢ — 9 69¢€
March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013
Payments:
Employee severance and other personal benefits (407) — (637) — (1,039
Other associated costs — — (129 — (129
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 4,17¢ 3 — % 3,16¢ $ — % 7,34¢
Charges:

Employee severance and other personal

benefits 14,32¢ 1,781 5,94¢ — 22,05¢

Other associated costs — — 1,97¢ — 1,97¢

Payments:

Employee severance and other persona

benefits (7,289 (29)) (4,895 — (12,475

Other associated costs — — (32¢) — (32§
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 1121t $ 1,49C 8 586¢ $ — 3 18,57:

(1) In connection with the Founding Transactiorisresstructuring liabilities relating to MHC's Gralwand Value Plan were retained by MHC.
The Company expects to utilize the remaining reseof $12,989 in 2015 and $5,583 in 2016.

18. Guarantor Financial Information

On March 22, 2013, in connection with the Foundioguisition, MHGE Holdings issued $800,000 aggregainciple amount of Notes as
described in Note 2. The Notes and the Senior iEiasikre jointly and severally, fully and unconmaiiially guaranteed on a senior unsecured
basis subject to certain exceptions, by the Compadyeach of the Company’s direct and indirect Whmivned domestic subsidiaries (the
“Guarantors”). Each of the Guarantors is 100 pdroemed, directly or indirectly, by the Company! ather subsidiaries of the Company,
either direct or indirect, do not guarantee thedd@nd Senior Facilities (“Non-Guarantors”).

The following combined consolidated financial stagats are presented for the information of the érsldf the Notes and present the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,(3tdessor) and December 31, 2(83ccessor) and the combined consolidated state

of operations and condensed combined consolidétehsents of cash flows for the year ended DeceBibe2014 (Successor), the periods
March 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successorjamdary 1, 2013 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessdnhenyear ended December 31, 201
(Predecessor) of the Company. The combined cordetidinancial statements present MHGE Intermegeitéch is a Guarantor of the Notes,
the Guarantor subsidiaries of MHGE Intermediate,Nion-
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Guarantor subsidiaries of MHGE Intermediate andelimination entries necessary to combine and datete MHGE Intermediate with the
Guarantor and Non-Guarantor subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for usiagquity method for purposes of the combinedalithated presentation. The principal
elimination entries relate to investments in suilsids and intercompany balances and transactaditionally, substantially all of the assets
of the Guarantor subsidiaries are pledged undeNdies and, consequently, will not be availableatisfy the claims of the Compasygjenera
creditors.

Successor
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
MHGE Guarantor Non-Guarantor MHGE Intermediate
Intermediate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)

Revenue $ — 3 956,71¢ $ 333,76( $ — 3 1,290,47:
Cost of goods sold — 218,17( 140,56: — 358,73:

Gross profit — 738,54¢ 193,19¢ — 931,74
Operating expenses
Operating & administration expenses 3,50(C 493,68t 185,55 502 683,23¢
Depreciation — 12,29: 3,16t — 15,45¢
Amortization of intangibles — 105,01¢ (1,677) — 103,34°
Transaction costs 3,931 — — — 3,931

Total operating expenses 7,431 610,99! 187,04! 50z 805,97¢

Operating (loss) income (7,43)) 127,55! 6,15¢ (502) 125,77:
Interest expense (income), net 146,54( — (41€) — 146,12:
Equity in (income) loss of subsidiaries (146,349 — — 146,34¢ —
Other (income) — (12,429 — — (12,429

Income (Loss) from operations before

taxes on income (7,622 139,98: 6,57(C (146,85) (7,927
Income tax (benefit) provision (11,44 53,00¢ 2,96t (55,979 (11,44

Net (loss) income 3,82t 86,97 3,60t (90,879 3,52¢
Less: Net (income) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — 29¢ — 29¢

Net (loss) income attributable to McGraw-
Hill Global Education Intermediate
Holdings, LLC $ 3,82t % 86,97 $ 3,90¢ % (90,877 $ 3,82t

Comprehensive (loss) income attributable

to McGraw-Hill Global Education § . ; g
Intermediate Holdings, LLC $ 382t % 86,97 $ (12,777 % (90,877 $ (12,85))
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Revenue $
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating & administration expenses
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Transaction costs

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) income
Interest expense (income), net
Equity in (income) loss of subsidiaries
Other (income)

(Loss) income from operations before
taxes on income

Income tax (benefit) provision

Net (loss) income

Less: Net (income) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests

Net (loss) income attributable to McGraw-
Hill Global Education Intermediate
Holdings, LLC $

Comprehensive (loss) income attributable
to McGraw-Hill Global Education
Intermediate Holdings, LLC $

Successor
For the Period from March 23, 2013 to December 32013
MHGE Guarantor Non-Guarantor MHGE Intermediate
Intermediate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)
— % 759,16¢ $ 296,637 $ — 9 1,055,80!
— 300,47: 160,37 — 460,85(
— 458,69! 136,26( — 594,95!
87t 367,32« 129,78 (3,416 494,56!
— 12,57( 3,622 — 16,19:
— 58,73 10,49¢ — 69,23!
26,14( — 1,472 — 27,61:
27,01t 438,62 145,37: (3,416 607,60(
(27,019 20,06¢ (9,119 3,41¢ (12,645
135,92 — (902 — 135,02:
(15,14¢) — — 15,14¢ —
— (2,125 — — (2,12%)
(147,79) 22,19: (8,217 (11,730 (145,549
(61,83)) 8,42( (2,64¢) (5,779 (61,83))
(85,967) 13,77: (5,566€) (5,95€) (83,71)
— — (2,25)) — (2,25))
(85,967 $ 13,770 $ (7,817 % (5,956 $ (85,967)
(85,967 $ 13,770 $ (18,026 $ (5,956 $ (96,17))
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Predecessor
For the Period from January 1, to March 22, 2013

Non-Guarantor

MHGE

MHGE Intermediate Guarantor D Intermediate
Q) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)
Revenue $ — % 132,28 $ 53,95¢ $ — % 186,24
Cost of goods sold — 31,95¢ 24,29: — 56,24¢
Gross profit — 100,32 29,66¢ — 129,99¢
Operating expenses
Operating & administration expenses — 90,94¢ 38,95¢ (567) 129,33t
Depreciation — 2,74 1,12¢ — 3,87¢
Amortization of intangibles — 1,60¢ 94 — 1,69¢
Total operating expenses — 95,29¢ 40,17 (567) 134,90¢
Operating (loss) income — 5,02¢ (20,519 567 (4,916
Interest expense (income), net — — 481 — 481
(Loss) income from operations before
taxes on income — 5,02¢ (20,997 567 (5,399
Income tax (benefit) provision — (22) (1,197 — (1,219
Net (loss) income — 5,04¢ (9,800 567 (4,189
Less: Net (income) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — 631 — 631
Net (loss) income attributable to McGraw-
Hill Global Education Intermediate
Holdings, LLC $ — 3 504¢ $ (9,169 $ 567 $ (3,559
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to
McGraw-Hill Global Education _
Intermediate Holdings, LLC $ — 3 504¢ $ (10,466 $ 567 $ (4,850)

(1) MHGE Intermediate was created to facilitate Hoeinding Acquisition and therefore was not a legdity in periods prior to March 22,

2013.
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Predecessor

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

MHGE Intermediate

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor

MHGE
Intermediate

Revenue $
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating & administration expenses
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) income
Interest expense (income), net
Other (income)

(Loss) income from operations before
taxes on income

Income tax (benefit) provision

Net (loss) income

Less: Net (income) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests

Net (loss) income attributable to McGraw-
Hill Global Education Intermediate
Holdings, LLC $

Comprehensive (loss) income attributable tc
McGraw-Hill Global Education
Intermediate Holdings, LLC $

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)
888,11t $ 370,83( $ — 3 1,258,941
242,31¢ 145,16 — 387,48!
645,79¢ 225,66: — 871,46:
451,71 189,20: (437%) 640,48:

12,45¢ 6,80: — 19,257
6,421 37¢ — 6,79¢
470,58t 196,38! (4373) 666,54(
175,21( 29,27¢ 43z 204,92:
40¢ (1,321) — (919
(7,48¢) — — (7,48¢)
182,29( 30,59¢ 43z 213,32:
65,64: 20,827 — 86,47(
116,64" 9,77 43z 126,85:
— (4,559 = (4,559
116,64 $ 521: $ 43z % 122,29:
116,64 $ 8/42¢ $ 43: $ 125,50:

(1) MHGE Intermediate was created to facilitate Hoeinding Acquisition and therefore was not a leguity in periods prior to March 22,

2013.
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Successor
December 31, 2014

MHGE Guarantor Non-Guarantor MHGE Intermediate
Intermediate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents — 466,617 $ 49,737 $ (284,25¢) 232,09¢
Accounts receivable — 122,04° 82,02t — 204,07:
Related party receivable — 253,07: — (253,07) —
Inventories, net — 50,33( 27,16¢ (502) 76,99:
Deferred income taxes — 22,74* 8,79: — 31,53¢
Prepaid and other current assets 74,57 11,92t 17,03¢ (72,829 30,71(
Total current assets 74,57 926,73! 184,75! (610,65 575,41(
Prepublication costs, net — 63,13( 17,85( — 80,98(
Property, plant and equipment, net — 91,92¢ — — 91,92¢
Goodwill — 423,62¢ 53,69: — 477,32:
Other intangible assets, net — 842,90° 63,75¢ — 906,66!
Investments 1,842,55. 104 9,11¢ (1,842,55) 9,21¢
Deferred income taxes non-current — 42,24: 1,19¢ — 43,44(
Other non-current assets 63,00« 36,68¢ 1,817 — 101,51(
Total assets 1,980,13: $ 2,427,36;. $ 332,18t $ (2,453,20) 2,286,47.
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 284,25t $ 115,59: $ 14,87 $ (284,25¢) 130,46!
Accrued royalties — 89,79¢ 12,03: — 101,82°
Accrued compensation and contributions to
retirement plans — 50,61¢ 15,62¢ — 66,24:
Deferred revenue — 117,21: 7,34( — 124,55:
Current portion of long-term debt 6,88( — — — 6,88(
Related party — 88¢ 253,07: (253,07) 88¢
Other current liabilities 31,18¢ 98,03¢ 32,76¢ (72,82%) 89,16(
Total current liabilities 322,32: 472,14: 335,70° (610,15)) 520,01!
Long-term debt 1,447 ,47. — — — 1,447 ,47.
Deferred income taxes — — 8,28¢ — 8,28¢
Other non-current liabilities — 45,24 3,59t — 48,83¢
Total liabilities 1,769,79! 517,38t 347,59( (610,15%) 2,024,61!
Commitments and contingencies
Equity
Member's equity 292,47: 1,809,233 15,39¢ (1,746,22) 370,88:
Accumulated deficit (82,13)) 100,74t (3,919 (96,837) (82,13))
Accumulated other comprehensive loss — — (26,885 — (26,88%
Total equity 210,33 1,909,97 (15,409 (1,843,05) 261,85¢
Total liabilities and equity 1,980,13. $ 2,427,36. $ 332,18t $ (2,453,20) 2,286,47.
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ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable

Related party

Inventories, net

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets
Prepublication costs, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Investments
Deferred income taxes non-current
Other non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued royalties

Accrued compensation and contributions to

retirement plans
Deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Equity
Member's equity
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total Parent company equity
Total equity - noncontrolling interests
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

Successor
December 31, 2013

MHGE Guarantor Non-Guarantor MHGE Intermediate
Intermediate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)

$ — 3 301,98! $ 67,42¢ $ (116,029 253,39(

— 138,78: 86,67+ — 225,45!

— 277,03¢ — (249,671) 27,36

— 47,54 31,39¢ 1,34¢ 80,28

— 29,51¢ 7,891 — 37,40¢

61,38: 19,64¢ 5,90¢ (61,387 25,55¢

61,38: 814,51! 199,29! (425,73f) 649,45!

— 75,63¢ 20,77 — 96,40¢

— 89,53: 11,157 — 100,68t

— 311,40¢ 2,86¢ — 314,27!

— 930,84 120,86 — 1,051,71

1,696,20: 8,80( 14,80t (1,696,20) 23,60:

— 26,42¢ 85¢ (1,459 25,83

76,36¢ 21,03¢ 7,81¢ — 105,22:

$ 1,833,995 $ 2,278,20 $ 378,43t $ (2,123,39) $ 2,367,19

$ 116,02 $ 120,12¢ $ 11,29¢  $ (116,029 $ 131,42.

— 81,21¢ 12,81« — 94,03(

— 63,81 13,58: — 77,39

— 116,31: 5,46( — 121,77:

8,10( — — — 8,10(

19,50( 86,39: 21,48¢ — 127,38:

143,62: 467,86 64,63¢ (116,029 560,10:

1,483,81! — — — 1,483,81!

— 1,45¢ 34,58¢ (1,459 34,58¢

— 57,94" 7,47¢ — 65,42¢

1,627,43 527,26: 106,70! (117,479 2,143,93

292,47: 1,737,29 266,14: (1,999,95) 295,94¢

(85,969) 13,77 (7,817 (5,956 (85,967)

— (227) (10,089 — (20,209

206,51: 1,750,93 248,24; (2,005,91) 199,77¢

— — 23,49( — 23,49(

206,51: 1,750,93 271,73: (2,005,91) 223,26¢

$ 1,83395 % 2,278,20. $ 378,43t $ (2,123,39) $ 2,367,19:
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Successor
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

MHGE Guarantor Non-Guarantor

MHGE
Intermediate

Intermediate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)

Operating activities

Cash provided by operating activiti€s 41,880 $ 295,30¢ $ 42,16 $ (168,23) $ 211,11
Investing activities
Investment in prepublication costs — (40,21 (10,04¢) — (50,269)
Capital expenditures — (36,93() (2,650 — (39,58()
Acquisitions and investments — — (56,457) — (56,459
Proceeds from sale of investment — 54 3,25( — 3,30«
Proceeds from dispositions — 17 8,86¢ — 8,88t

Cash used for investing activities — (77,07¢ (57,03) — (134,10)
Financing activities
Payment of term loan (41,88() — — — (41,88()
Payment of deferred purchase price — (53,500 — — (53,500
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests — — (169 — (169
Dividends on restricted stock unit — (201 — — (103

Cash provided by (used for)

financing activities (41,88() (53,60 (169 — (95,65()
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — (2,652 — (2,657

Net change in cash and cash

equivalents — 164,63: (17,697 (168,23)) (21,29))
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period — 301,98t 67,42¢ (116,029 253,39
Cash and cash equivalents, ending
balance $ —  $ 466,61 $ 49,737 $ (284,25 $ 232,09t
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Successor
For the Period from March 23, 2013 to December 32013

MHGE

MHGE

Non-Guarantor Intermediate

Guarantor

Intermediate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)

Operating activities

Cash provided by operating activiti€s (1,692,58) $ 2,031,72. % 141,96° $ (116,029 $ 365,08
Investing activities
Investment in prepublication costs — (43,659 (8,802 — (52,455
Capital expenditures — (6,289 (465) — (6,749
Acquisitions and investments — (1,650,06) (114,587 — (1,764,641
Proceeds from dispositions — 13 33 — 46

Cash used for investing activities — (1,699,98) (123,81¢) — (1,823,80)
Financing activities
Borrowings on long-term debt 1,609,79: — — — 1,609,79:
Payment of term loan (87,07Y — — — (87,07Y
Payment of revolving facility (35,000 — — — (35,000
Equity contribution 950,00( — — — 950,00(
Payment of acquisition costs on behalf of
Parent (28,67 — — — (28,679
Distribution to Parent (628,85, — — — (628,85,
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests — — (52€) — (52€)
Dividends on restricted stock unit — (1,307 (1049) — (1,417
Payment of deferred loan acquisition costs (87,619 3,24(C — — (84,379

Cash provided by (used for)

financing activities 1,692,58! 1,93¢ (630) — 1,693,88:
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — (1,409 — (1,409

Net change in cash and cash

equivalents — 333,66¢ 16,11: (116,029 233,75
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period — (31,689 51,31; — 19,63:
Cash and cash equivalents, ending
balance $ — 3 301,98 $ 67,42¢ $ (116,029 $ 253,39
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Predecessor
For the Period from January 1, 2013 to March 22, 203

MHGE Intermediate Guarantor Ngﬁ’;?;;?{ggr Intg/lrrwgollz_iate
) Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)

Operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities$ —  $ 34,29: $ 956,71t $ (961,26) $ 29,747
Investing activities
Investment in prepublication costs — (12,319 (2,81)) — (14,12%
Capital expenditures — (1,819 (93 — (2,917
Acquisitions and investments — (8,049 (25,04¢) — (33,089

Cash used for investing activities — (21,17%) (27,95() — (49,129
Financing activities
Net transfers (to) from Parent — (50,674 (966,50() 961,26:¢ (55,910
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests — — (1,819 — (1,814

Cash provided by (used for) financin(

activities — (50,674 (968,319 961,26 (57,729
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — (1,450 — (1,450

Net change in cash and cash

equivalents — (37,559 (40,99¢ — (78,555
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period — 5,87¢ 92,31 — 98,18¢
Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance$ —  § (31,68) $ 51317 § — 8 19,63¢

(1) MHGE Intermediate was created to facilitate Hoeinding Acquisition and therefore was not a legdity in periods prior to March 22,
2013.
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Predecessor
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

MHGE Intermediate Guarantor Ngﬁ’;?;::{ggr Intg/lrrwgcliz_iate
) Subsidiaries Eliminations (Consolidated)

Operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities$ —  $ 151,24 % 62,01: $ (3,787 % 209,47:
Investing activities
Investment in prepublication costs — (64,702 (13,589 — (78,287
Capital expenditures — (17,127 — — (17,127
Proceeds from dispositions — 692 — — 692

Cash used for investing activities — (81,139 (13,589 — (94,716
Financing activities
Net transfers (to) from Parent — (65,419 (55,379 3,78¢ (117,00
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests — — (12,627 — (12,627

Cash provided by (used for) financin(

activities — (65,417 (68,00¢€) 3,78t (129,639)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — 2,797 — 2,791

Net change in cash and cash

equivalents — 4,701 (16,780 — (12,079
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period — 1,174 109,09: — 110,26
Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance$ — 3 587t § 92,31 § — 3 98,18t

(1) MHGE Intermediate was created to facilitate Hoeinding Acquisition and therefore was not a legdity in periods prior to March 22,
2013.

19. Transactions with Sponsor

In connection with the Founding Transactions, MH&&dings, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered iatmanagement fee agreement with
Apollo Management VII, L. P. (the “Advisor”), anféifate of our Sponsor pursuant to which the Adviadll provide management consulting
services to Parent and its direct and indirectsilivis and subsidiaries, including the Company aktf3 Holdings. In exchange for these
services, the Advisor will receive an aggregateuahmanagement fee of $3,500 and reimbursementtedfepocket expenses incurred in
connection with the provision of such services. theryear ended December 31, 2014 and the periodhV&8, 2013 to December 31, 2013,
the Successor recorded an expense of $3,500 add@8&mnanagement fees, respectively. In connectidgh thie Founding Transactions, Apc
Global Securities, LLC, an affiliate of our Spongtre “Affiliate”), entered into a transaction fee agreement with Pagéating to the provisic
of certain structuring, financial, investment bartkand other similar advisory services in connectiith the Founding Transactions and future
transactions. We paid the Affiliate a one-time saction fee of $25,000 in exchange for servicederd in connection with the structuring of
the Founding Transactions, arranging financing @erdorming other services with the Founding Tratieas. Also, subject to the terms and
conditions of the agreement, an additional transadee equal to 1% of the aggregate enterpriseevaill be payable to Affiliate for
investment banking, financing and other financalisory services related to any merger, acquisititisposition, financing or any similar
transaction in the future.
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20. Commitments and Contingencie
Rental Expense and Lease Obligations

We are committed under lease arrangements coveramerty, computer systems and office equipmerdsebold improvements are amortizec
on a straightine basis over the shorter of their economic ligetheir lease term. Certain lease arrangememisicoescalation clauses covel
increased costs for various defined real estastard operating services and the associatedrieescgnized on a straight-line basis over th
minimum lease period.

Rental expense for property and equipment undepaiating lease agreements was $26,033 , $1882823 and $24,665or the year ende
December 31, 2014 (Successor), periods March 23 fg9December 31, 2013 (Successor) and Janu2@138,to March 22, 2013
(Predecessor) and the year ended December 31 (P8ddecessor), respectively.

Cash amounts for future minimum rental commitmentder existing non-cancelable leases with a remgitérm of more than one year are
shown in the following table.

Rent commitment Sublease Income Net Rent

2015 21,69¢ (469) 21,23(
2016 20,677 477 20,20¢
2017 18,23¢ (279 17,96(
2018 15,35¢ 9) 15,347
2019 10,50: 9) 10,49:
2020 and beyond 41,02% 2 41,02¢

Total $ 127,49¢ $ (1,239 $ 126,26(

Legal Matters

In the normal course of business both in the Un8des and abroad, the Company is a defendaarious lawsuits and legal proceedings
which may result in adverse judgments, damagess fim penalties and is subject to inquiries andstigations by various governmental and
regulatory agencies concerning compliance withiagple laws and regulations. In view of the inhedifficulty of predicting the outcome of
legal matters, we cannot state with confidence whetiming, eventual outcome, or eventual judgmeamages, fines, penalties or other
impact of these pending matters will be. We belidased on our current knowledge, that the outoointiee legal actions, proceedings and
investigations currently pending should not haveaderial adverse effect on the Company’s combiireahtial condition.

21. Related Party Transaction:
Other Transactions and Arrangements

On July 17, 2014 the Company'’s parent company, MH@Eent, LLC (“MHGE Parent” and, together withstgbsidiaries, “McGraw-Hill
Global Education”) and MHGE Parent Finance, InBIIGE Parent Finance” and, together with MHGE Partma “Issuers”), issue®400,00(
aggregate principle amount of Senior PIK Toggledsatue 2019 (the “Notes”) in a private placemehe fotes were issued at a discount of
1% . The proceeds from this private offering wesedito make a return of capital to the equity hsldé MHGE Parent and pay certain related
transaction costs and expenses.

The Notes bear interest at 8.5% for interest paithsh and 9.25% for in-kind interest, “PIK”, bgiaasing the principle amount of the Notes

by issuing new notes. Interest is payable semi-alhynan February 1 and August 1 of each year, conuing February 1, 2015. The first semi-
annual interest payment due must be paid in caglwas paid on February 2, 2015. The determinatsaio avhether interest is paid in cash or

PIK is determined based on
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restrictions in the Company’s borrowing agreeméntpayments to the Comparsyparent. Interest paid in cash will be fundedisy@ompan
via a distribution to MHGE Parent. PIK may be paitther 0% , 50% or 100% of the amount of interest, dlependent on the amount of any
restriction. The Notes are junior to the debt bbathe Company's subsidiaries, are not guararigezhy of the parent company’s subsidiaries
and are a contractual obligation of MHGE Parent.

Employee Loans

During the second quarter of 2013, the Company madecured loans to two employees in the amoudl 85 for the employees to invest in
the Company’s parent common stock. Interest isipaya the federal short-term rate under the IateRevenue Code, and the loans and
accrued interest are repayable in cash in full feomy after tax long-term incentive award paymenisito no case later than February 15, 2015
The loans can be prepaid at any time. As of Dece®bg2014 , the balance outstanding was $31 amtlisded in prepaid and other current
assets.

MHC Service Charges and Allocations & Transition Services

Historically, MHC has provided services to and faddertain expenses for Predecessor and its sabe&liThese services and expenses
included global technology operations and infradtice, global real estate and occupancy, emplogaeflis and shared services such as tax,
legal, treasury, and finance as well as an allonatf MHC’s corporate management costs. The exgeanstuded in the combined consolidatec
financial statements were $3,011 , $17,811 , $7a8@&11$246,730 for the year ended December 31, @decessor), the periods March 23,
2013 to December 31, 2013 (Successor) and JanudB13 to March 22, 2013 (Predecessor) and thegrebed December 31, 2012 ,
respectively. As of December 31, 2014 , no furttfearges and allocations are being made, excepefoices provided under the Transition
Services Agreement as described below, because Mi#@Established its own management structure fibptens and other functions.

Effective January 1, 2013, in connection with tlankactions, MHGE Holdings, our wholly owned sulzsig entered into transition services
agreement with MHC, pursuant to which MHC providdHGE Holdings and us with certain corporate servidecluding corporate
accounting, treasury, global procurement and matwfimg, facilities, human resources and infornmratiechnology during 2013. The transition
services agreement with MHC ended during 2014.

Payment of Acquisition Costs on Behalf of Parent
At the closing of the Founding Transactions MHGHdittgs paid $28,672 for costs related to the Foupdicquisition on behalf of Parent.
Reseller Agreement with MHSE Holdings

As disclosed in Note 4, the Company entered inmesaller agreement with MHSE Holdings, which ieparate wholly owned subsidiary of
our Parent, granting MHSE Holdings exclusive rigbtsell ALEKS products in the K-12 market. MHSEI#iags paid $25,500 to the
Company for the exclusivity provision, which is hgirecognized over five years and renewable faxdditional fee after five yearsand paid
royalty advance of $12,500 . The royalty rate i%1dn net sales.

Quest Agreement

Leader’s Quest Ltd (“Quest”) is a UK-based non-pirerfiterprise at which Lindsay Levin is the foundaed managing partner. Ms. Levin is the
spouse of David Levin, who serves as our PresigietitChief Executive Officer. In 2014, the Companteeed into an agreement with Quest
pursuant to which Quest provided leadership worgshand other leadership training for twelve membéthe Company’s executive
leadership team. The Company paid Quest totalde®$33 in connection with the Quest agreemen20h5, the Company entered into an
agreement which Quest will provide additional leatigp workshops and other leadership training éatitonal members of the Company’s
leadership team. The Company will pay Quest taasfof $248 in connection with the
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agreement. As Quest is a non-profit enterprise,lMsgin does not stand to benefit financially frome transaction with the Company.

22. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Year ended December 31, 2014

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Allowance for returns

Inventory

Other

Year ended December 31, 2013

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Allowance for returns

Inventory

Other

Year ended December 31, 2012

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Allowance for returns

Inventory

Other

23. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited

2014:

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating income (loss)
Net income (loss)

B_alqnce at - . Balance at end of
beginning of the Additions Deductions
year year
$ 16,217 $ 491¢ $ (7,175 $ 13,957
168,38: 318,53 (304,98t 181,92
45,54¢ 16,43: (23,087 38,89
784 — — 5,30¢
$ 10,728  $ 6,36z $ 874 $ 16,21
163,73! 388,71 (384,069 168,38:
54,95¢ 13,38( (22,790 45,54¢
1,057 — — 784
$ 15,81 $ 5400 $ (10,487 $ 10,72¢
177,22. 334,47( (347,95) 163,73!
62,07" 15,27¢ (22,399 54,95¢
17¢ — — 1,057
Three Months Ended
Successor
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
$ 204,57. % 251,74 % 462,12¢ % 372,03
150,75: 180,56: 335,50¢ 264,92t
(50,664 (9,039 144,57( 40,907
(57,169 (53,567) 97,19: 17,36¢
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2013:

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating income (loss)
Net income (loss)

McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries
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Predecessor

Successor

January 1
to
March 22

Three Months Ended

$ 186,24:
129,99:

(4,916)

(3,559

September 30, December 31,

220,05: $ 464,20 $ 358,66¢
94,08¢ 256,72 241,50(
(74,079 70,757 19,597
(76,57)) 26,50: (14,74()
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Iltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, and has roggimnizational arrangements to ensure that alkimétion required to be disclosed is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported withitime periods specified, and that informatieguired to be filed in the reports that we
file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated communicated to our management, includingpdocipal executive and principal
financial officers, to allow timely decisions redarg required disclosure.

This annual report does not include a report ofagament's assessment regarding internal controffioacial reporting or an attestation

report of the Company's registered public accogrfirm due to a transition period established Hgswof the Securities and Exchange
Commission for newly public companies.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE
Management

The following table provides information regardithg executive officers and the members of the boadirectors (the “Board”) of Georgia
Holdings, Inc. (“Georgia Holdings”), the direct pat of AcquisitionCo, as of the date of the prospecThe Board manages the general cours
of our affairs and businesses and has delegatéaircauthority to the respective board of managéiscquisitionCo, Parent, Holdings and
MHGE Holdings to supervise our operations and &uti/

Name Age Position
David Levin 53 President and Chief Executive Officer and Director
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Offic€hief Administrative Officer
Patrick Milano 54 and Assistant Secretary
David Stafford 52 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar
Teresa Martin-Retortillo 47  Senior Vice President, Strategy and Business
Thomas Kilkenny 56 Senior Vice President and Controller
Larry Berg 48 Chairman and Director
Lloyd G. Waterhouse 63 Director
Antoine Munfakh 32 Director
Evan Bayh 58 Director
Mark Wolsey-Paige 53 Director
Ronald Schlosser 6€ Director
Antonio Villaraigosa 5¢ Director

David Levin became the President and Chief Executive OfficdraaBirector of Georgia Holdings on April 9, 20Mk. Levin previously

served as the chief executive of UBM plc (“UBM”)paultinational media company headquartered in Londrior to his tenure at UBM, Mr.
Levin was chief executive of Symbian Software, K based software group that built the operatingesysto power the first generation of
smartphones. He has also served as chief exeaftReion PLC, a London-based consumer and busiaelsaology company, and as chief
operating officer and finance director of Euromonstitutional Investor PLC. Mr. Levin also servied seven years as a hon-executive on the
Finance Committee of the Oxford University Press. Mvin received his bachelsrdegree in politics, philosophy and economics ftaxford
University and his MBA from Stanford University. @lBoard believes that Mr. Levin provides valuabkight and perspective on general and
strategic business matters stemming from his exterexecutive and management experience at UBM htagmSoftware and Psion PLC.

Patrick Milano is the Executive Vice President, Chief Financidicaf, Chief Administrative Officer and Assistaré@etary of Georgia
Holdings. He was previously the Chief Financiali@#f and Chief Administrative Officer of the McGrawill Education segment of MHC
since May 2012. Prior to becoming an officer of Ma@-Hill Education, LLC, between 2000 and 2012, Milano held several Standard &
Poor’s leadership and financial roles includingrhisst recent role as Executive Vice President, &mrs. Prior to that, Mr. Milano held a
number of positions at McGraw-Hill Education, LLi@¢cluding Senior Vice President of Finance and @fens of Macmillan/McGraw-Hill.
Mr. Milano is a graduate of Rutgers University,d@hn MBA from Monmouth University and is a Ce&dfiPublic Accountant.
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David Stafford is the Senior Vice President, General Counsel autlefary of Georgia Holdings. Prior to becomingéfiter of Georgia
Holdings in 2012, Mr. Stafford was vice presidemd associate general counsel at MHC. From 2000@9 2he served as senior vice presic
corporate affairs, and assistant to the chairmanchief executive officer. Before joining MHC in9®, he was an associate at the New York
City law firms of Battle Fowler and Rosenman & @dliLP. Mr. Stafford is a graduate of Columbia Cg#eand received his J.D. degree from
Cornell Law School. He serves on the Board of Eestof YAl Network, a not-for-profit that providesrvices to people who are
developmentally disabled.

Teresa Martin-Retortillo became Senior Vice President of Strategy & Busibesalopment of Georgia Holdings in on May 5, 20Rdor to
joining McGraw-Hill Education, Ms. Martin-Retortillo was a parmeith Bain & Company for 18 years. Ms. Martin-Reiito began her
professional career at Goldman Sachs as a corpgoratee analyst. Ms. Martin-Retortillo serves e board of directors of NYPACE. She
holds a bachelor’s degree in business administréteon CUNEF (Colegio Universitario de Estudios&hgieros) in Madrid, and a MBA
degree from Harvard Business School.

Thomas Kilkenny is the Senior Vice President and Controller of @&oHoldings. Prior to becoming an officer of Gdarbloldings, he was
Senior Vice President and Controller of Core Madiaup (renamed from CKX Entertainment, Inc.) fro03 to 2012. From 2003 to 2004, he
was Chief Financial Officer of Perseus Book Gradp.previously held a number of positions at MHG{r&#991 to 2003. Mr. Kilkenny is a
magna cum laude graduate of Seton Hall Univerbityds an MBA from New York University and is a Gied Public Accountant.

Larry Berg is the Chairman and a Director of Georgia Holdids.Berg is a Senior Partner at Apollo having girin 1992 and oversees the
Firm’s efforts in manufacturing and industrialsidPtto that time, Mr. Berg was a member of the Mesgand Acquisitions group of Drexel
Burnham Lambert Incorporated. Mr. Berg serves enbibard of directors of Rexnord Industries, JacBath,Panolam, Do Something and
Crisis Text Line. Mr. Berg graduated magna cum éawith a BS in Economics from the University of Rgylvania’s Wharton School of
Business and received an MBA from the Harvard ScabBusiness. The Board believes that Mr. Bergtensive experience in making and
managing private equity investments on behalf obligpand his experience in financing, analyzing anesting in public and private
companies enables him to provide meaningful inpdtguidance to the Board and the Company.

Lloyd G. Waterhouse is a Director of Georgia Holdings and was the Riersi and Chief Executive Officer of Georgia Holdingntil his
retirement on April 8, 2014. He was previously Bresident and Chief Executive Officer of the McGH#dill Education segment of MHC sint
June 2012. Mr. Waterhouse began his career widhiriational Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”)1i&73 in the firm’s data processing
division. He later became General Manager of Mamkedand Services for IBM Asia Pacific. In 1992, Was appointed President of IBMAsia
Pacific Services Corporation and later became fireaf Global Strategy at IBM. In 1996, Mr. Watetls® was named General Manager
Marketing and Business Development, IBM Global 8=w, before being promoted to General Manageru&irgss Services, a division
focused on consulting, education and training fetamers. In 1999, Mr. Waterhouse became Pres@eh€Chief Operating Officer, and later
Chief Executive Officer, of Reynolds & Reynolds Ca.company primarily focused on software for tbhemotive industry. In 2006, he was
appointed Chief Executive Officer of Harcourt Edtima, a leader in the United States School Edunatéctor. The parent company of
Harcourt Education decided to sell the busine20Dv and it merged with Houghton Mifflin Harcouttthe end of that year. Mr. Waterhouse
has since served as a director of Solarwinds, Ih€. Educational Services, Ascend Learning LLC, iBigrc Corporation, i2 Technologies,
Inc. and Atlantic Mutual Insurance Companies. Miatérhouse is a graduate of Pennsylvania State tsitiy@nd holds an MBA from
Youngstown State University. The Board believes kia Waterhouse provides valuable insight and pectve on general strategic and
business matters, stemming from his extensive ¢xecand management experience with IBM and HougMdflin Harcourt.

Antoine Munfakh is a Director of Georgia Holdings. Mr. Munfakh i$&ncipal at Apollo having joined in 2008. Priorthat time, Mr.
Munfakh spent two years as an Associate at thafgriequity firm Court Square Capital Partners. Bresty, Mr. Munfakh was an Analyst in
the Financial Sponsor Investment Banking grougPdrgan. Mr. Munfakh graduated summa cum laude fidarke University with a BS in
Economics, where he was elected to
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Phi Beta Kappa. The Board believes that Mr. Munfafdvides valuable insight to the Board on strategid business matters, stemming from
his experience analyzing, making and managing invessts in public and private companies.

Evan Bayh is a Director of Georgia Holdings. Mr. Bayh is atRar at McGuire Woods LLP having joined the firm2011. Prior to that time,
Mr. Bayh was a two-term U.S. Senator from 1999-284d a former two-term governor of Indiana from @9®897. In addition to his law
practice, Mr. Bayh is a senior advisor at Apolloriddgement in New York. He is a graduate of Indian& &rsity and received his J.D. degree
from the University of Virginia Law School. Mr. Bhyserves as a director of Marathon Petroleum,Hiftind Bank, Berry Plastics, and RLJ
Trust. Mr. Bayh serves as a director because ofxtensive leadership skills, significant executgx@erience and his legal and policy
knowledge which makes him a valuable asset to theed®

Mark Wolsey-Paige is a Director of Georgia Holdings. From 2010-2044 Wolsey-Paige served as an advisor to the Spolegely on
healthcare-related deals. Prior to becoming ansadwt Apollo Global Managementyir. Wolsey-Paige served as Executive Vice Presjdent
Product Development & Supply at Siemens HealthBaagnostics from 2007-2009. In 2007, he was appdi@thief Strategy and Technology
Officer for Dade Behring Inc. prior to its acquigit by Siemens. Previously, Mr. Wolsey-Paige worke8axter Diagnostics, which became a
part of Dade Behring, and became Vice Presiderdte®fy and Business Development in 2000; he rerdaméhis role until the company was
acquired, while also becoming head of ResearcDmwvetlopment, Instrument Manufacturing and Supplgi@iManagement. Prior to joining
Dade Behring, he was a consultant at Bain & Compamoston. Before that, Mr. Wolsey-Paige servad fgears in the U.S. Army, achieving
the rank of Captain and worked in the Strategin®knd Policy Directorate on the Army staff in Bentagon. Mr. Wolsey-Paige holds an
MBA from Harvard University and is a graduate of $feagton University. Mr. Wolsey-Paige serves agectbr because his product
development, corporate strategy and technologyresqee provides valuable knowledge and to the Board

Ronald Schlosser is a Director of Georgia Holdings and previouslyveel as Executive Chairman of Georgia HoldingsugroMay 1, 2014.
Ron currently advises global leaders in privateitggovesting in information services, includingdithcare, data services and education. Hi
served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer aifgHts Cross Communications, an educational amdriiinformation company, and has
served as a Senior Advisor to Providence Equityneas and Chairman of several education and infilemaervices portfolio companies,
including Jones & Bartlett, Assessment Technologrisitute, Edline and Survey Sampling Internatiova. Schlosser served as Chief
Executive Officer of Thomson Learning Group, akterving as Chief Executive Officer of Thomson Stifenand Healthcare, after joining
Thomson Financial Publishing as its President &€hixecutive Officer in 1995. He is a Board MembECopyright Clearance Center, New
York University POLY and The Peddie School. Mr. BBslser is a graduate of Rider University and hald$/BA from Fairleigh Dickinson
University. Mr. Schlosser serves as a Director beeaf his extensive industry and business experienthe education and information
sectors, which enables him to offer the Board irtgrdrindustry-specific perspectives, and his exgrexeé as CEO of Thomson, which provides
the Board with operational matters expertise.

Antonio Villaraigosa became a Director of Georgia Holdings on June Q342Mr. Villaraigosa was the Mayor of Los Angetesm 2005 until
2013 and he was President of the U.S. Conferenbtagbrs. He was also national co-chairman of Hjll@tinton’s presidential campaign, a
member of President Obama’s Transition Economicigaty Board, and Chairman of the 2012 Democratittiddal Convention. Mr.
Villaraigosa is currently also a fellow at the Hard's Institute of Politics, a consultant for Edalmpublic relations and a part-time professor &
the USC Price School of Public Policy.

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee . The Audit Committee consists of two members: Mesd/olsey-Paige and Munfakh, both of whom quadidyaudit
committee financial experts, as such term is defindtem 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K. Mr. Wols@gige is the chair of the Audit Committ
In light of our status as a privately-held company the absence of a public trading market forcomnmon stock, there are no requirements
that we have an independent audit committee.
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The Audit Committee is directly responsible for #ypointment, compensation, retention (includimghteation) and oversight of the
independent auditors, the granting of appropris¢egpprovals of all auditing services and non-aselivices to be provided by the independen
auditors, meeting and discussing with managemieatinternal audit group and independent audit@satinual audited and quarterly unaudite
financial statements, any legal, regulatory any gitance matters (including tax) that could havégaificant impact on financial statements,
reviewing and discussing with management majomiiie risk exposures and steps taken to monitariroling and managing them and
review the responsibilities and results of therima audit group.

Compensation Committee . The Compensation Committee consists of three reesnMessrs. Berg, Munfakh and Schlosser. The Cosgter
Committee is responsible for formulating, evalugtémd approving the compensation and employmeahgements of the officers of Georgia
Holdings and the Company.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee . The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitbesists of three members:
Messrs. Bayh, Berg and Waterhouse. The NominatidgGorporate Governance Committee is responsiblagsisting Georgia Holdings in
identifying and recommending candidates to the Bo@acommending composition of the Board and cotesstand reviewing and recomm:
revisions to the corporate governance guidelines.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics, referred to e¥Cmde of Business Ethics,” that applies to albaf employees, including our Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and sanfinancial and accounting officers. A copy of @wmde of Business Ethics is available on
our website at www.mheducation.com.

Compensation and Discussion Analysis

The following discussion describes our processetéinining the compensation and benefits provideslt “named executive officers” in
fiscal year 2014.

Our named executive officers for fiscal year 201et a

» David Levin, President and Chief Executive Gdfi¢"“CEQO”) and Directo

» Patrick Milano, Executive Vice President, Chigfiancial Officer (“CFQ”), Chief Administrative Gffer (“CAO”") and Assistant Secret:i
» Dauvid Stafford, Senior Vice President, General Galiland Secreta

» Teresa MartirRetortillo, Senior Vice President, Strategy & Buesia Developme

» Thomas Kilkenny, Senior Vice President and Corgr

Executive Summary

* In 2014, following the 2013 carve-out of our imgss from our prior parent company and sale toufsitionCo, our senior leadership team
has focused on transforming our profile, revenuseland product line to a digital, science-basedni@ogy firm developing leading-edge
learning solutions for the K-12, college / highdueation, and specialized education markets.

» Following Lloyd Waterhouse’s retirement from dmpnent effective April 8, 2014, David Levin sucdeel Mr. Waterhouse as our
President and CEO effective April 9, 2014.

e OnJanuary 13, 2014, we announced that we ehilet@ an employment agreement with David Levinpwlicceeded Mr. Waterhouse as
our President and CEO effective April 9, 2014. Mevin was most recently the Chief Executive Offio€tJBM plc, where he served frc
April 2005 to March 2014. From April 2002 until Ap2005, he was Chief Executive Officer of Symbjao. The compensation and
benefits provided under Mr. Levin's employment agnent were designed to incentivize him to relotathe New York, NY area where
our headquatrters is located, and to provide hirh miarket-competitive compensation and benefits.ldvin’s responsibilities have
included developing and implementing a strategamphat will set MHGE on a
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path for continued growth as a learning sciencepaonyg, fostering international expansion, and stiteeging the leadership team.
Executive Compensation Programs
Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our executive compensation philosophy is focusegdaynfor performance and is designed to reflect@miate governance practices aligned
with the needs of our business. We grant targeidenf compensation that are designed to attrattetain employees who are able to
meaningfully contribute to our success. The Comatms Committee of the board of directors of Geatgbldings (the “Compensation
Committee”) considers several factors in desigménget levels of compensation, including, but mited to, historical levels of pay for each
executive, actual turnover in the executive rankatket data on the compensation of executive offiaésimilar companies, and its judgment
about retention risk with regard to each executilative to his or her importance to the Company.

The Company’s mix of fixed versus variable compénsawithin the target total level of pay, is deivby the Company’s emphasis on pay for
performance. The Company uses variable compensatidading performance equity grants, togethehwitanagement’s accumulated equity
holdings, both vested and unvested, to enhanceraéigt of the interests of our named executive effiand the interests of Georgia Holdings’
stockholders.

Specifically, for fiscal year 2014, the objectivafur executive compensation programs focusedetimating key initiatives and performance
goals for our five-year plan. Our objectives wesdalows:

» Deliver on our strategic imperatives for 2014: Focsimplify, Expan
» Focus on driving scale, leadership and increasetienhahar
«  Simplify by consolidating delivery platforms, tipizing content creation and course lifecycle ngaraent, and redesigning

service and support model

» Expand our business frontiers to gain scale fasteugh enterprise, services and test prepai

« Achieve operational excellence by continuing to lenpent best practices, eliminate redundant or ugssagy practices, and stream
practices in order to achieve best quality results

« Align the interests of our executives with thed&seorgia Holdings’ stockholders, by rewardingrthfor delivering on the key
initiatives that will position MHGE as a leadingée in digital education products and learning radth

» Encourage achievement of EBITDA and free casiv fjoals developed in conjunction with our fiyear plau

» Enable the hiring and retention of higaliber taler

» Provide appropriate incentives for both busineskiadividual performanc

» Encourage prudent, but not excessive, ta4nc

» Build value by linking a significant portion sbmpensation to lonterm company performan

» Develop an entrepreneurial culture that contgbuo our continued growth, by being performangeed, nimble, and costensciou
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Compensation Programs

For fiscal year 2014, the principal elements of exgcutive compensation programs were as follows:

Compensation Element  Brief Description

Objectives

Base Salary Fixed compensation

Provide a competitive, fixed level of cash
compensation to attract and retain the
most talented and skilled employees

Motivate and reward employees to

Variable cash compensation earned based on achipwrestablishedachieve or exceed MHGE's current year

Annual Incentive Plan annual goals

One-time nonqualified option awards made to sele@ders, and

S5t Ens restricted stock units granted in connection wilporate dividend

EBITDA goals

Align performance of our key talent with
Georgia Holdings’ stockholders
Encourage achievement of annual and
cumulative EBITDA and free cash flow
goals

Further, we provide our named executive officehweverance payments and benefits, retiremenfiterienited perquisites and other fringe

benefits, and participation in health and welfdenp available to our employees generally.

The following discussion provides further detaitstbese executive compensation programs.

Base Salaries

Base salaries provide a fixed amount of cash cosgiEm on which our named executive officers céy s of December 31, 2014, the

annual base salaries for our named executive offiwere as follows:

Name / Title Fiscal Year 2014 Base Salary

D. Levin
President and CEO and Director

P. Milano
Executive Vice President, CFO, CAO and Assistacte®ary

T. Martin-Retortillo
Senior Vice President, Strategy & Business Devedopm

D. Stafford
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar

T. Kilkenny
Senior Vice President and Controller

$1,000,000

$550,000

$500,000

$450,000

$340,616

In determining base salaries for fiscal year 20l reviewed relevant market data to obtain a génederstanding of current market practic
so we can design our executive compensation protpdra competitive. Market data is not used exeklgi but rather as a point of reference
to draw comparisons and distinctions. We also bateeaccount an executive officerjob responsibilities, performance, qualificatiamsl skills

in determining individual compensation levels.
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The survey data we primarily used in determinisgdl year 2014 compensation were (i) the Towers@aExecutive Compensation Media
Survey, for which we utilized a sample of firmsdistg on book publishers, business to businessanpedinsumer magazines, newspapers,
information services, and multiple media platforiasd (ii) the Radford Executive Compensation Surweyich focuses on technology firms.
all cases, data for firms with revenues in the fibh to $3 billion range was used.

2014 Annual I ncentive Plan (Al P)

The 2014 Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”) is desigrtedncentivize maximizing EBITDA through revenuengeation, platform growth and
development, and operational efficiencies.

For 2014, the bonus pool was determined basedeoletiel of achievement of our Company-wide anni&IMBA goal as compared to our
annual target EBITDA goal, as follows:

Annual EBITDA achieved

compared to target goal: % of Target Pool Funded:
Less than or equal to $432 million 0%
Greater than $432 million but less than $480 nrillio Linear interpolation between 0% and 100%
$480 million or more, but less than $495 million 100%
$495 million or more, but less than $544.5 million Linear interpolation between 100% and 200%
$544.5 million or greater 200%

In 2014, we achieved annual EBITDA of $502.4 miilievhich represented 101.5% of the top of our targege, after taking into account
certain adjustments for extraordinary items. Untlerterms of the AIP, this achievement would resuét total bonus pool of 115% of the
target bonus pool; however, after all determinatiohallocations to our various business unitsiadt/iduals, only 96.2% of the target bonus
pool was in fact paid. The allocations to our vasidusiness units were based on the business acftisvement of unit-level performance
metrics, considering the unit’s attainment of &gt objectives and the unit’s impact on our odgratformance and success. The allocated
portion of the bonus pool to each business unitthes further allocated to individual participantéie amount of individual bonuses were
determined in each case based on the businesmanéger’'s recommendation of the individual's perfance, taking into account both
guantitative and qualitative criteria, such asitttividual's performance against his or her objezsiand the individual’s contributions to key
strategic initiatives of the business unit or MHGErall.

Individual allocations to our named executive af& other than our CEO are based on the recomnienslatf the CEO and are subject to the
review and approval of the Compensation Committéigh respect to our named executive officers othan our CEO, our CEO
recommended, and the Compensation Committee regiawe approved, bonus payments under the 2014 tAHPget, above target or below
target, in each case taking into account MHGE@mgmperformance for 2014, as well as evaluatiorth®@hamed executive’s officer's
contributions and leadership in achieving our g@ath respect to the transition of the CEO, buitdur senior leadership team, and
completing business acquisitions.

With respect to our CEO, our Compensation Committeemmended, and the board of directors of Gedtgldings approved, a bonus
payment under the 2014 AIP at 100% of target perémce. This determination was made based on MEGHEONg performance, as well as
CEO'’s achievement of IMO savings objectives, hisrgithening of the leadership team, addressindkeiness challenges in a timely mannet
and accelerating the Company’s digital transforarathrough acquisitions and new product releases.




The following table sets forth each of our nameeceitive officers’ target bonus under the 2014 AdRvaell as his or her actual bonus payment

Executive 2014 AIP Target Bonus 2014 AIP Payment
David Levin $1,000,000 $1,000,000
President and CEO and Director

Patrick Milano $550.000 $605,000
Executive Vice President, CFO, CAO and Assistact&ary

David Stafford $225,000 $202,050
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar

Teresa Martin-Retortillo $325,000 $325,000
Senior Vice President, Strategy & Planning

Thomas Kilkenny $136,246 $135,000
Senior Vice President and Controller

Georgia Holdings Nonqualified Stock Option Program

We established th&eorgia Holdings, Inc. Management Equity P(dme “Management Equity Plan”) in fiscal year 2Gi3a platform to award
equity awards to our key employees, including amad executive officers. The Management Equity Rlas designed to align the interest
our most senior leaders with those of Georgia Hgsli stockholders. For our named executive officerd other senior leadership team, we
have historically used ortéme (not annual) awards of options to acquire camistock of Georgia Holdings, with a per share eserprice no
less than the fair market value of a share of Gadfigldings’ common stock as of the date of grdussrs. Milano, Stafford and Kilkenny
each received option grants at the time the Managemquity Plan was established in fiscal year 2@h8 Mr. Levin and Ms. Martin-
Retortillo each received options upon their hiréisoal year 2014.

The option awards are tied to service and perfoomgoals which contribute to our five-year econoplén, and were generally designed to
encourage appreciation of the business, retentidraahievement of our performance goals for the filex years.

The vesting terms of the options were as follov@¥s%5f each option vests in equal installments éb2Wer five years, provided that the
executive remains continuously employed by MHGBtigh the applicable vesting date. The remaining 50%e option vests in equal
installments of 20% on each of the same five anaasges, provided that the executive remains cantisly employed by MHGE through the
applicable vesting date and certain performander@iare met with respect to each fiscal yeamdutiie vesting period. For Mr. Levin and I
Martin-Retortillo, performance is measured begignivith fiscal year 2014 and ending with fiscal y2ad.8, and for Messrs. Milano, Stafford
and Kilkenny, performance is measured beginning) fisgtcal year 2013 and ending with fiscal year 2017

With respect to the portion of the option whichtedsased on achievement of performance criteri# 60Dsuch portion is based on
achievement of annual EBITDA targets and the remgiB0% of such portion is based on the achievemfahnual free cash flow targets. ~
applicable performance targets were designed t@ dignificant growth of our business yet stilldmhievable, and to focus on long-term value
creation. If any installment of the performancetirgsoption does not vest as of the vesting datéhfe applicable year because either of the
performance criteria are not met, that installnrentains eligible for vesting on any future vestitage, if MHGE's cumulative EBITDA or
cumulative free cash flow, as applicable, for tharys) prior to that vesting date equals or excealarget cumulative EBITDA or target
cumulative free cash flow. Excess performance ingiven year may not be applied to cumulative rssialr subsequent years.
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The option award agreements granted under the Mamagt Equity Plan generally defines “EBITDA” as solidated net income before
interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, exttimary items (including Other Income and Expensms as well as LIFO Income and Expenst
items) and management or similar fees payable to

Apollo Management or any of its affiliates, aseefkd on the audited consolidated financial statésnaf Georgia Holdings for the applicable
measurement period. Consolidated net income isrdeted in accordance with generally accepted adiogiprinciples except that gains or
losses from extraordinary, unusual or non-recuriti@igis may be excluded in the discretion of the @ensation Committee. “Free cash flow”
is generally defined as operating cash flow mirysital expenditures.

For 2014, after taking into account certain adjusite for extraordinary items, we achieved annudlBR\ of $497.1 million, which
represented 107.1% of our target goal of $464 omjland annual free cash flow of $497.9 millionjahirepresented 116.1% of our target goa
of $429 million. Accordingly, (i) an additional 20&6 the options held by Mr. Milano, Mr. Stafforch@Mr. Kilkenny became vested as of the
second anniversary of the closing date of the Fimgnécquisition, because each such named execaffieer satisfied both the serviaesting
and performance-vesting conditions relating to umhion of his option, and (ii) 20% of the optiomsld by Mr. Levin and Ms. Martin-
Retortillo will vest on April 9, 2015 and May 5, PB respectively, provided the executive is activatyployed as of the applicable date.

The option award agreements under the ManagemeiittyHjan also contain noncompetition, nonsoliéiat confidentiality, nondisclosure
and other restrictive covenants. These restrictigmdy to all of the named executive officers. Tueation of the noncompetition and
nonsolicitation covenants for all named executiffeers extend for one year following terminatiohemployment.

Adjustments to Options; Restricted Stock Unit Grants

Options granted under the Management Equity Plae eguitably adjusted in fiscal year 2014 in lightwo extraordinary dividends made on
July 18, 2014 and December 16, 2014. These divilemde delivered to option holders either throuyhe@ucing the exercise price by the full
amount of the per share dividend, where possibl&i)adhrough a combination of reducing the exsecprice and granting restricted stock units

For Mr. Levin and Ms. Martin-Retortillo, their optis were adjusted by reducing the exercise priaghdyull amount of the per share dividend.
The exercise price of their options was adjustethf$170 to $132.58 on July 18, 2014, and from $8® $122.97 on December 16, 2014.

For Messrs. Milano, Stafford, and Kilkenny, thefitions were adjusted through a combination of reduthe exercise price and granting
restricted stock units. The exercise price of tbptions was adjusted from $55.93 to $33.15 on 18[y2014, and from $33.15 to $30.75 on
December 16, 2014. To adjust the option for theaiaing value of the dividend, Milano, Stafford, aditkenny were each granted restricted
stock units which vest on the same vesting scheathudeon the same conditions as the adjusted opfldressnumber of shares covered by the
restricted stock units was determined by dividixigtile per share dividend amount less the valubeéxercise price adjustment by (y) the
then-current value of a share of common stock.

See “-Potential Payments upon Termination or Cham@®»ntrol” for a description of the treatmentagtions and restricted stock units upon
certain events. Following any termination of emph@nt, any vested portion of an option and any shacquired upon exercise of an optior
subject to the repurchase rights of Georgia Hokliangd Apollo Management.

Severance Benefits

We are obligated to pay severance or other enhareefits to our named executive officers uponateiterminations of their employment.
Our severance programs are designed to promottypgad to provide executives with security ands@nable compensation upon an
involuntary termination of employment. Messrs. lewlilano and Stafford and Ms. Martin-Retortillorfaipate in theGeorgia Holdings, Inc.
Executive Severan:
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Plan (the “Executive Severance Planijhich was established in fiscal year 2013 to beceffextive as of the first anniversary of the ahgsof
the Founding Acquisition. Mr. Kilkenny’s severartmenefits are payable under the terms of his offiéell entered into in connection with his
hire in fiscal year 2012. Under certain circumsemavir. Levin is entitled to enhanced severancetitsrif he incurs an involuntary terminat
within the first three years of his hire. Thesea@amnted severance benefits were negotiated at aem¢gH in connection with his employment
agreement, to encourage Mr. Levin’s relocation &N ork City, where our headquarters are located.

Further details regarding the severance benefitgighed to our named executive officers can be faumder “-Potential Payments upon
Termination or Change in Control.”

Retirement Benefits

Each named executive officer participates in odr(KPpplan, which is a qualified defined contributiplan available to our employees
generally.

In addition, accounts held by certain of our narereicutive officers under a nonqualified definedtdbation plan sponsored by our prior
parent company, callethe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. 401(k) Savings &ndfit Sharing Supplement Plartransferred to us in connection
with the Founding Acquisition. These accounts lettbunts that our named executive officers were o defer in 2012 in excess of the
tax code limitations imposed on the 401(k) plane Blacounts will be payable upon the named execaffieer’'s retirement or termination. We
will continue to credit these accounts until payimanthe rate equal to 120% of the annual applcdéferred long-term rate for December of
the prior year. For the fiscal year 2014 portionntérest credited by MHGE, the December 2013 wats 3.99%.

Perquisites and Fringe Benefits

We provide a limited number of perquisites andderenefits to our named executive officers, sschealth club memberships and annual
physical exams, to be competitive with the marlatel We also provide Mr. Levin with certain bersefilated to the travel of his spouse
between their residence in the United Kingdom #ued residence in New York City. See “-Fiscal Y@fd4 Summary Compensation Table”
for a discussion of these benefits.

Health and Welfare Benefits

Our named executive officers participate in ourtheand welfare benefit plans, which are availableur employees generally. Our health anc
welfare benefit plans include medical insurancetadnsurance, life insurance, accidental deathdismemberment insurance, and short-terr
and long-term disability insurance. We also provade named executive officers supplemental benefitker the Executive AD&D Insurance
and Management Supplemental Death & Disability Biep&ans. We provide these benefits in order tovide our workforce with a reasonable
level of financial support in the event of illnemsinjury, to enhance productivity and job satisiae, and to remain competitive.

Prior Company Performance Awards

In fiscal year 2012, our prior parent company gedrtash-based performance awards to Messrs. Miatiprd and Kilkenny. The value of
these awards was determined based on our priontpemmpany’s achievement of its earnings per spaads for 2012, and as a result of our
prior parent company exceeding the applicable maxirperformance goal, these awards were valued86 135 target level. To encourage
retention, the awards were conditioned on contirsgrdice with MHGE until December 31, 2014, andhesicMessrs. Milano, Stafford and
Kilkenny satisfied this service requirement. 508A0. Milano’s award was paid in fiscal year 201Brecognition of his service towards
closing the Founding Acquisition and transitionoef§. The remaining 50% of Mr. Milano’s award &% of Messrs. Stafford’s and
Kilkenny’s award will be paid in 2015.
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Lloyd G. Waterhouse Employment and Option Agreement

As discussed above, Mr. Waterhouse retired fromleyngent effective April 8, 2014. Following Mr. Wateuse’s announcement of his intent
to retire, we made certain modifications to his Evpment agreement (which was originally entered intconnection with his hire in fiscal
year 2012) and his option agreement in order toerage Mr. Waterhouse to continue employment thrauguccessful transitio

The term of Mr. Waterhouse’'s amended employmergeagent was scheduled to continue until the eafiépril 30, 2014 or the
commencement of employment of his successor a ekeeutive officer. Mr. Waterhouse agreed to pdevadvisory assistance and remain or
the board of directors of Georgia Holdings follogitine term, which we so requested. Upon his regrgimMr. Waterhouse became entitled to
the cash severance payable under the employmesgragnt, in an amount equal to two times his bdaeysa

In addition, under his amended employment agreenMmiVaterhouse’s annual bonus for fiscal year22@as subject to certain individual
performance goals to encourage his assistanceidimg a transition for his successor, providiegdership for the senior management team
and promoting us in the industry. The board ofades of Georgia Holdings determined that Mr. Wladerse succeeded in achieving his
performance goals for 2014, and thereforgrarata portion of his annual bonus for 2014 (calculatesdobon the number of days that he was
employed by us for 2014) was paid to him on Margh2D15.

Mr. Waterhouse’s option award agreement was matlthepermit him to vest in 40% of his award effeetupon his retirement, and we have
agreed not to exercise any repurchase rights oogtisn or the shares he purchased in connectitmthé Founding Acquisition. Mr.
Waterhouse continues to serve as a member of #irel lod directors of the Company.

David Levin Employment and Option Agreement

As discussed above, on January 13, 2014, we anaduhat we had entered into an employment agreewignDavid Levin, who succeeded
to Mr. Waterhouse as our President and CEO effedjwil 9, 2014. Mr. Levin will also serve as a maen of the board of directors of the
Company.

Mr. Levin's employment agreement was negotiatearai’s-length, and the compensation and benefitgigeed under the employment
agreement were designed to incentivize Mr. Leviretocate to the New York, NY area where our headgus are located, and to provide him
with market-competitive compensation and benefits.

Additionally, Mr. Levin received an option to puade 129,585 shares of Georgia Holdings common sémeckwas also given an equity grant

of $200,000.
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Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Fiscal Year 2014 Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the compensatiordpaiawarded to our named executive officers by NB-HBd its affiliates for services
rendered in all capacities to MHGE and its affémtn fiscal year 2014:

Change in Pension

Value and
Name and Principal ) @ Option Awards Non-Equity Incentive Nonqualified All Other
Position Year Salary Bonus Stock Awards @ Plan Compensation® Deferred Compensation® Total

Compensation

Earnings
David Levin 2014 $ 753,78t $ 100,00 $ 435,78 $  9,595,76! $ 1,000,000 $ — $ 921,54. $ 12,806,88
President and CEO and
Director 2013 — — — — — — — —
Lloyd G. Waterhouse 2014 291,66 2,000,001 928,31( — 334,00( — — 3,653,97
Former President and CEO 2013 1,000,001 — — 5,683,51. 2,000,001 — 292,42 8,975,93
Patrick Milano 2014 550,00( — 1,160,38! — 605,00( — — 2,315,38
Executive Vice President,
CFO, CAO and Assistant
Secretary 2013 504,16 250,00( — 2,851,31! 1,662,501 — — 5,267,98
David Stafford 2014 450,00( — 464,15¢ — 202,05( — 4,66: 1,120,87
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Secretary 2013 450,00( 132,50( — 1,140,53 450,00( — — 2,173,03
Teresa Martin-Retortillo 2014 329,54! — — 1,573,04 325,00( — — 2,227,58
Senior Vice President,
Strategy & Planning 2013 — — — — — — — —
Thomas Kilkenny 2014 336,05 — 232,06¢ — 135,00( — — 703,121
Senior Vice President and
Controller 2013 328,25( — — 570,21 260,00( — 9,61 1,168,07

(1) Compensation reported under this column for Mwin represents a signing bonus upon hire iM2@bmpensation reported for Mr.
Waterhouse represents a severance payment. Theagtditts reported in this column for Messrs. Miland Stafford represent (i)
the payment of special one-time cash retention $amards related to the Founding Acquisition, i admounts of $250,000 for Mr.
Milano and $125,000 for Mr. Stafford, which wereden September 2013, and (ii) for Mr. Staffordsggecial cash bonus equal to
$7,500, which was paid in April 2013.

(2) For Messrs. Waterhouse, Milano, Stafford, Kilkenny, compensation reported in this column esgnts the RSUs granted as
dividends on July 18, 2014 and December 16, 20X4LEBVin received an equity grant of $200,000. Vakie reported includes a
gross-up payment for taxes on the imputed incontespect to Mr. Levin's equity grant.

(3) Options awards reported in 2014 represenatfggegate grant date fair value of awards granteidgl the applicable period
determined in accordance with the applicable acimogiguidance for equity-based awards. See Notet®e combined consolidated
financial statements for an explanation of the rétiogy and assumptions used in the FASB ASC Tep&valuations. The per
share exercise price for each option award outsigras of December 16, 2014 reflects the adjustmmeamte to account for the
extraordinary cash dividend declared on Georgialidgs’ common stock on such date. For purposesSE Aopic 718, no
incremental fair value resulted from such adjustmen

(4) The amounts reported in this column includgnpents of cash incentive awards paid under the AWards reported in 2014 were
paid in 2015 in respect of fiscal year 2014, asdeesd above in
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“Compensation Programs - 2014 Annual Incentive RAR)”. In addition, for Mr. Milano, this colummcludes the accelerated
payment of 50% of his 2012 Cash-Based Performanard ($562,500).

(5) "All Other Compensation" is reflected in the beltakle and note

Tax and Legal Health Club
Name Moving Expense®  Housing® Expenses® Airfare @ Parking Reimbursement Total
David Levin $ 307,86¢ $ 180,000 $ 390,95! $ 42,17. $ — $ 55C $ 921,54

Lloyd G. Waterhouse — — — — — _ _
Patrick Milano — — — - — _ _
David Stafford — — — — 4,66 — 4,662
Teresa Martin-Retortillo — — — = — _ —
Thomas Kilkenny — — — — — — —

(&) Mr. Levin was provided with temporary housing iniN¥ork City for up to four months and reimbursemfartmoving costs
realtor fees, and other moving expenses. The vel@rted includes a gross-up payment for taxeseimntputed income in
respect to these items.

(b) Mr. Levin was provided with a monthly housing allamce equal to $20,000 payable over the first seeenmonths followin
the end of the temporary housing period refereatexe.

(c) Mr. Levin was provided reimbursement for taddegal advice in 2014. The value reported inchualgross-up payment for
taxes on the imputed income in respect to thesesite

(d) This amount contains reimbursement for Mr.ih&/spouse for roundtrip business-class travehftmndon to New York.
The value reported includes a gross-up paymerngakas on the imputed income in respect to thesesite
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Fiscal Year 2014 Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

The following table includes each grant of an awaetle to the named executive officers in fiscal @84 4 under any equity-based and non-
equity incentive plan:

Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Estimated Future Payouts Under
Incentive Plan Awards® Equity Incentive Plan Awards ®
All Other Stock All Other Option Exercise or Grant Date
Max Awards:  Awards: Number Base Price ?g:o\éi";ﬁd
Name Grant Date Threshold ($) Target ($) Max ($) Threshold (#) Target (#) ) Sh,;Lrle:gbc‘)afr Sotfock OJ nSdeecrllJr_mes o; Opt:jon © Option
ying wards
or Units (#)©®  Options(#)® @/sn@  Awards (3)
D. Levin $ — $ 1,000,000 $ —
4/29/2014 — — — 64,79: $ 122.97 $ 4,797,88
4/29/2014 — 64,79 — 122.97  4,797,88
L. Waterhouse — 1,000,00t —
7/18/2014 — — — 4,691 621,99(
12/16/201¢ — — — 2,491 306,32;
P. Milano — 550,00( —
7/18/2014 — 2,93 — 2,93 777,48
12/16/201¢ — 1,551 — 1,551 382,90(
D. Stafford — 225,00( — —
7/18/2014 — 1,17 — 1,17 310,99
12/16/201¢ — 62° — 628 153,16:
T. Martin-
Retortillo — 325,00( —
5/5/2014 — — — 10,62: 122.97 786,52:
5/5/2014 — 10,62 — 122.9] 786,52
T. Kilkenny — 130,00( —
7/18/2014 — 58¢ — 58¢ 155,49
12/16/201¢ — 311 — 311 76,57

(1) Represents annual cash incentive targets uhdeXIP for fiscal year 2014. Actual awards untier AIP were finalized and approved
by the Compensation Committee in February 2015 vesr@ paid by March 15, 2015. Pursuant to the terittise AIP, participants are
given a target award amount, but are not providagimum or threshold amounts on an individual badis.Waterhouse participated
on the basis of a partial year worked.

(2) Represents performance-vesting stock optiar@ded to Mr. Levin and Ms. Martin-Retortillo an&B performance restricted stock
dividends awarded to Messrs. Milano, Stafford, Eilkenny during fiscal year 2014. Further infornaation the performance-vesting
stock option and dividend RSU awards can be foartie “-Compensation Discussion & Analysis” sectidiove.

(3) Represents time-based RSUs granted as dividdumihg fiscal year 2014. Further information ba tividend RSU awards can be
found in the “-Compensation Discussion & Analysigttion above.

(4) Represents service-vesting stock options aseata Mr. Levin and Ms. Martin-Retortillo duringsial year 2014 and service-vesting

restricted stock dividends awarded to Messrs. Mil&@tafford, and Kilkenny under the Management BgRlan. Further information
on the service-vesting stock option awards carobed in the “~-Compensation Discussion & Analysistton above.
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(5) The per share exercise price of the namedutixecofficers’ options was determined based onféfiremarket value per share of
Georgia Holdings common stock as of grant date @ Ilthe per share exercise price for each opticar@was been adjusted to
account for extraordinary cash dividends declareeorgia Holdings’ common stock on July 18, 20837(42) and December 16,
2014 ($9.61 per share). Pursuant to ASC Topic @@8cremental fair value resulted from such adjiesit.

(6) Represents the aggregate grant date fair wdlawards granted during the applicable perioémeined in accordance with the
applicable accounting guidance for equity-basedrdsvé&See Note 9 to the combined consolidated fiahstatements for an
explanation of the methodology and assumptions sttt FASB ASC Topic 718.

Employment Agreement with David Levin

Only one of our named executive officers, Mr. Levimparty to an employment agreement. Mr. Levarigployment agreement is dated
December 14, 2013 and was amended as of March)34, Pescribed below are the details of the comgtemsand benefits terms of Mr.
Levin's employment agreement, as amended.

» Term; Transition David Levin became President and CEO effectivelAp 2014, for an initial period of three yearsrh that date, with
an automatic renewal each year thereafter unlessiatii the Company or Mr. Levin provides writteatite of non-renewal to the other
party at least ninety (90) days before the exmratiate.

+ Base Salar: Mr. Levin is entitled to an annual base salafyo less than $1,000,000, subject to annuakre

» Annual Bonu: For fiscal year 2014 and subsequent years| Blrin's annual incentive opportunity is a target bonus08f% of his bas
salary, and he has the potential to earn lessdhap to 200% of the target bonus based on hisgehient against pre-established
performance goals. For fiscal year 2014, Mr. Leviahnual bonus was subject to certain individudbpmance goals including the
achievement of EBITDA and other financial objecsivthe achievement of IMO savings objectives, astiaken to strengthen of the
leadership team, the identification and resolutiboritical business challenges in a timely manaed the acceleration of the Company’s
digital transformation through acquisitions and mawduct releases.

» Georgia Holdings Equity On April 29, 2014, Mr. Levin was provided an aptigrant. Additionally, on May 1, 2014, Mr. Leviaceived a
grant of $200,000 in additional equity in the fooffRestricted Units, and agreed to invest $55,F44fiooown funds in Georgia Holdings.

» Board Membershi: Mr. Levin will be a member of the board of direxs of the Company during the term of his employn

» Relocation and Housing Allowan: Through December 31, 2014, the Company madeadblaicomprehensive relocation benefits,
including temporary housing for Mr. Levin and hasfily for up to four months; moving costs for haduslel goods; realtor fees in
connection with the lease of a new apartment int#an, and other relocation costs including tadcedrelated his relocation, as well as
tax strategy and business advice for the businggiénigs of Mrs. Levin; and reimbursement for fead aosts in connection with the
transfer of pension investments from the Unitedggliom to the United States. In addition, Mr. Lewaéagives a monthly housing allowal
of $20,000 for the seventeen month period followtimg end of the four-month temporary housing peréang with other relocation costs
or benefits as may be agreed upon between the Gongpal Mr. Levin. Reimbursement is also provideddioe round trip, business-class
trip per month for Mrs. Levin.

« Other Benefits Mr. Levin is eligible for all other benefits nosaity provided to MHE employees, including healthayisgs and retirement
plans, welfare and insurance plans, and other graplbenefit plan practices, policies, programsparduisites applicable generally to
other senior executives of the Company. These p@tesiinclude reimbursement for gym membershipamdnnual health exam fully
paid for by the Company. In addition, the Compaiily neimburse Mr. Levin up to $20,000 for fees el to the preparation
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of the tax returns for him and his spouse; up tO@@3 for an education consultant for the child; apdo $25,000 in attorney fees for the
review of his Employment Agreement.

See “-Potential Payments Upon Termination orrgleain Control” below for a discussion of severapagments payable to
Mr. Waterhouse under the terms of his employmergergent.

Offer Letter for Thomas Kilkenny

In connection with his hire, Mr. Kilkenny received offer letter, dated June 18, 2012, which sehftire terms and conditions of his
employment. Described below are the details otthrapensation and benefits terms of Mr. Kilkennyffeoletter.

Base Salar: Mr. Kilkenny was entitled to an annual base satH#r$325,000, subject to annual review. His badarg has since increased
to $340,616 as part of the annual merit increasegss.

Annual Bonus: Mr. Kilkenny was eligible to participate in ourigr parent company’s annual incentive plan, witloaus opportunity
ranging from $0 to $180,000. For fiscal year 201eljs participating in the AIP, with a bonus targe#0% of his current base salary or
$136,246.

Severance If Mr. Kilkenny’s employment is involuntarily terinated for reasons other than cause within theagsyof his hire datei.g .,
before July 9, 2015), he will be eligible for 12 mtles’ salary continuation. After July 9, 2015, beeligible to participate in the severance
plan applicable to other executives at his levehanCompany.

See “-Potential Payments Upon Termination or Chamg&ontrol” below for a further discussion of seagce payments payable to
Mr. Kilkenny under the terms of his offer letter.

Offer Letter for Teresa Martin-Retortillo

In connection with her hire, Ms. Martin-Retortileceived an offer letter, dated April 11, 2014, ethset forth the terms and conditions of her
employment. Described below are the details otthrapensation and benefits terms of her offer letter

Base Salan: Ms. MartinRetortillo was entitled to an annual base salar$5f0,000, subject to annual revi

Annual Bonus: Ms. Martin-Retortillo was eligible to participaite the 2014 Annual Incentive Plan, with a bonuparfunity of 65% of her
base salary ($325,000 for 2014).

Equity: Ms. Martin-Retortillo received a orténe grant of an option to purchase 21,243 shandenthe Equity Pla

Severance If Ms. Martin-Retortillo’s employment is involuatily terminated for reasons other than causeyslearticipate in the
Executive Severance Plan, which provides for amuimn of 12 months of salary continuation.

See “-Potential Payments Upon Termination or Chamggontrol” below for a further discussion of semgce payments payable to Ms. Martin-
Retortillo under the terms of her offer letter.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year 2014 YearEnd Table

1)

)

®3)

(4)

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity Incentive Equity Incentive

’\éLéTl?liri:Sf héggfﬁtrieosf Pﬁgn':\&?rgf: Number of  Market Value Equity Incentive Plan Awards:
Underlyin Underlyin SEaiiiEs Option Option Sharesor  of Sharesor Plan Awards: Market Value of
Name(® Grant Date Unexer)éisgd Unexer)éisgd Urrry Exercise Price o iraFt]ion Date  Units of Stock Units of Stock  Number of Unearned
Options Options # Unexer)éisgd $® p That Have not That Have not ~ Unearned Shares that
Exercisable Unexercisable  Unearned Options Vested (#)  Vested ($) Shares (#)  Have ”(g;‘) Vested
#
D. Levin 4/29/2014 64,792.5 (4) 122.97 4/29/2024
4/29/2014 12,958.5 (5) 51,834.0 (6) 122.97
P. Milano 3/22/2013 5,310.7(2) 21,2428 (4) 30.75 5/15/2023
3/22/2013 5,310.7(3) 5,310.7 (5) 15,932.1 (6) 30.75 5/15/2023
7/18/2014 2,932 $360,565 1,759.30 $216,339
12/16/2014 1,557 191,450 934.10 114,870
L. Waterhouse 3/22/2013 42,486 (2) 30.75 5/15/2023
D. Stafford 3/22/2013 2,124.3 (2) 8,497.2 (4) 30.75 5/15/2023
3/22/2013 2,124.3 (3) 2,124.3 (5) 6,372.9 (6) 30.75 5/15/2023
7/18/2014 1,173 144,227 703.70 86,536
12/16/2014 623 76,581 373.70 45,948
T. Martin-
Retortillo 5/5/2014 10,621.5 (4) 122.97 5/5/2024
5/5/2014 2,124.3 (5) 8,497.2 (6) 122.97
T. Kilkenny 3/22/2013 1,062.1 (2) 4,248.4 (4) 30.75 5/15/2023
3/22/2013 1,062.1 (3) 1,062.1 (5) 3,186.3 (6) 30.75 5/15/2023
7/18/2014 586 72,110 351.80 43,266
12/16/2014 311 38,289 186.80 22,973

This table does not address any legacy equwird holdings by our named executive officers utlde equity plans and programs of
our prior parent company.

Stock options awarded to our named executive offidering fiscal year 2013, other than those awgtdeMr. Waterhouse, vest 5C
based on time-based vesting and 50% based on perfce-based vesting. Stock options granted to MiteYiiouse were solely
subject to time-based vesting. The stock optiopsnted here represent the time-based vesting siotitns that became exercisable
on March 22, 2014 for Messrs. Milano, Stafford, &iléenny, and March 22, 2014 and April 8, 2014 kér. Waterhouse, under the
terms of his amended Option Agreement.

The stock options reported here represent @Di#te performance-based vesting stock options @edato our named executive
officers during fiscal year 2013 (described furtmefootnote 5 below). The options reported hegresent those that became
exercisable on March 22, 2014.

The stock options reported here representiitiebased vesting stock options awarded durirgafigear 2013 and fiscal year 2014
that have not vested. The stock options award@@13 vest in equal annual installments on March2P24, March 22, 2015, March
22, 2016, March 22, 2017 and March 22, 2018, stibjecontinued service through the applicable westiate. The stock options
awarded in 2014 vest in equal installments on A28il2015, April 29, 2016, April 29, 2017, April 28018, and April 29, 2019 (for
Mr. Levin), and May 5, 2015, May 5, 2016, May 51Z0May 5, 2018 and May 5, 2019 (for Ms. Martin-gtétlo), subject to
continued service through the applicable vesting.




(5) The stock options reported here represent @te performance-based vesting stock options @edato our named executive
officers during fiscal year 2013 and fiscal yeat2@described further in footnote 5 below), whigdstvon March 22, 2015 (for Mr.
Milano, Mr. Stafford and Mr. Kilkenny), April 29,5 (For Mr. Levin) and May 5, 2015 (for Ms. Marfietortillo) respectively
subject to continued service through such date.pEformance conditions with respect to such stgations have been satisfied
based on our fiscal year 2014 achievement of spdcnnual EBITDA and annual free cash flow perfance goals.

(6) The stock options reported here represent 6Dfte performance-based vesting stock optionstgdaim 2013 and 80% of the
performance-based vesting stock options grant@@14. The 2013 performance-based vesting stockmgptiest in equal annual
installments on March 22, 2014, March 22, 2015,d1d&2, 2016, March 22, 2017 and March 22, 2018gestito the achievement of
specified EBITDA and free cash flow performancelggan either an annual or cumulative basis) faheaf fiscal years 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017, as well as continued serkiroaigh the applicable vesting date. The 2014 perdoice-based vesting stock
options vest in equal annual installments on Ap®il 2015, April 29, 2016, April 29, 2017 April 22018, and April 29, 2019 (for M
Levin), and May 5, 2015, May 5, 2016, May 5, 20May 5, 2018 and May 5, 2019 (for Ms. Martin-Retbs}i subject to the
achievement of specified EBITDA and free cash flmmvformance goals (on either an annual or cumudtasis) for each of fiscal
years 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, as webm@tincied service through the applicable vesting.dBihe stock options reported
this column represent the performance-based vestawk options subject to performance goals faaliyears 2015 through 2018.
The performance conditions for the performance-thassting stock options subject to performancegfmalfiscal years 2013 and
2014 have been satisfied, and such stock optiandescribed further in footnotes 3 and 5 above.

(7) The per share exercise price for each optieera outstanding as of December 31, 2014 reflbetatjustment made to account for
the extraordinary cash dividend declared on Gedigiaings' common stock on such a date. For pugpoSASC Topic 718, no
incremental fair value resulted from such adjustmen

(8) The restricted stock reported here repreqamf®rmance-based vesting shares granted as ddsdemJuly 18, 2014 and December
16, 2014.

(9) The restricted stock reported here repredantsbased vesting shares granted as dividends on 8uB014 and December 16, 2C

Fiscal Year 2014 Nonqualified Deferred Compensatiofable

Executive Registrant Aggregate
Contributions in Last Contributions in Last Aggregate Earnings in Withdrawals / Aggregate Balance at
FY ($) FY ($) Last FY ($) Distributions ($) Last FYE ($)
D. Levin $ — 3 — 3 — § — § =
L. Waterhouse — — — — —
P. Milano — — 26,91« — 701,44¢
D. Stafford — — 13,177 — 343,42:
T. Martin-Retortillo — — — — —
T. Kilkenny — — — — —

(1) Prior to the Founding Acquisition, Messrs. afib and Stafford participated in a nonqualifiedrdef contribution plan maintained by
our prior parent companyhe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. 401(k) Savings &ndfit Sharing Supplement Plamwhich was frozen
by our prior parent company prior to the
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Founding Acquisition. The accounts for Messrs. Miland Stafford were spun off from our prior parempany’s plan, and we
currently maintain the accounts under our succgdsor;, theMcGraw-Hill Education Supplemental Savings Plan

The amounts in this column show earnings crediteti¢ executive’s accounts following the closinghef Founding Acquisition, at
the rate equal to 120% of the annual applicablerded long-term rate for December of the priordlgeear. For the fiscal year 2014
portion of interest credited by MHGE, the Decemb@t 3 rate was 3.99%.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change In Cotrol

This section describes potential payments to ooratbexecutive officers upon termination of employtrar change in control, assuming the
termination or change in control occurred on Deoendi, 2014 (in accordance with SEC rules).

For those Executives eligible to participate in En@cutive Severance Plan, as described beloviptioeving definitions generally apply
(except where otherwise noted):

Under the Executive Severance Plan, “cause” isrgdipalefined as (a) the Participant’s gross negyiice or willful misconduct, or willful
failure to attempt in good faith to substantialgrform his or her duties (other than due to physicanental illness or incapacity), (b) the
Participant’s conviction of, or plea of guilty oolo contendere to, or confession to, (i) a misderae@mvolving moral turpitude or (ii) a felony
(or the equivalent of a misdemeanor involving meuapitude or felony in a jurisdiction other thdretUnited States), (c) the Participant’s
knowingly willful violation of the Company’s writtepolicies that the Board determines is detrimetatéhe best interests of the Company, (d)
the Participant’s fraud or misappropriation, emlexment or material misuse of funds or property bgiog to the Company, (e) the
Participant’s use of alcohol or drugs that mat8riaterferes with the performance of his or hetiels or (f) willful or reckless misconduct in
respect of the Participastbbligations to the Company or its Affiliates dher acts of misconduct by the Participant occardaring the cours
of the Participant’s employment, which in eitheseaesults in or could reasonably be expectedstdtrizn material damage to the property,
business or reputation of the Company or its Affés. In no event would unsatisfactory job perfarogealone be deemed to be “cause.”

Under the Executive Severance Plan, “good reasogémnerally defined as an adverse change in fundliaties or responsibilities that cause
the Participant’s position to become one of sultigthy less responsibility, importance or scopenaterial reduction in base salary or annual
target bonus opportunity; a relocation of the egséint's principal place of employment to a locatimore than fifty miles away, if a move to
such location materially increases the Particigaotmmute; or a material breach by the Companyyiarangement with the Participant.

As used in the AIP, “cause” generally means (inahgence of any applicable employment or similae@gent or participation in a Company-
severance plan), a finding by the Company of: (@sg negligence or willful misconduct, or willfidifure to attempt in good faith to
substantially perform duties (other than due tosidat or mental iliness or incapacity), (ii) conwn of, or plea of guilty onolo contender¢o,
or confession to, a misdemeanor involving morgpitude or a felony (or the equivalent of a misdenoeanvolving moral turpitude or felony
in a jurisdiction other than the United Statesj) khowing and willful violation of any written Gopany-policies that the Compensation
Committee determines is detrimental to the bestésts of MHGE, (iv) fraud or misappropriation, emaplement or material misuse of fund:
property belonging to MHGE, (v) use of alcohol ougs that materially interferes with the performand his or her duties, or (vi) willful or
reckless misconduct in respect of obligations to®Hor other acts of misconduct occurring duringdberse of employment, which in either
case results in or could reasonably be expectesstdt in material damage to the property, businessputation of MHGE.
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David Levin

Termination without Cause or for Good Reason

Mr. Levin’s payments upon termination as descrilpetthis section are based on his employment agregmated December 14, 2013 and
amended March 31, 2014. His employment agreemsaotraferences the Executive Severance Plan, imwtagarticipates. Severance ben
under his Agreement and the Executive SeveraneedPéaconditioned upon Mr. Levin signing and deiivg a general release of claims
against the Company and related parties, as walbasompetition, nonsolicitation, nondisclosure attter restrictive covenants substantially
similar to the restrictive covenants containechie hamed executive officers’ stock option awaraeagrents with Georgia Holdings.
Additionally, the definition of “good reason” is panded to include a material change in title oprépg relationship.

In the event of a termination by us without causeesignation by the executive for good reasoryragsg such termination occurred on
December 31, 2014, Mr. Levin would be eligible filoe following:

e For qualifying terminations on or prior to Jul§, 2015, an enhanced cash severance paymenttedhaltotal amount of (a) two times his
annual base salary, and (b) two times his TargeuBg‘the Cash Severance”. The Cash Severanceevihid out in equal installments
over a 24-month period following the terminatioreets The acceleration of severance and benefitsroethe 12-month period described
in Section 2.4 of the Executive Severance Plan evaot apply.

» For terminations occurring after July 15, 2006t on or prior to July 15, 2017, an enhanced saskrance payment equal to the total
amount of (a) two times his annual base salary,(antis Target Bonus, “the Cash Severance”. Theh@Geverance will be paid out in
equal installments over a 24-month period followihg termination event. The acceleration of sevaramd benefits beyond the 12-montt
period described in Section 2.4 of the Executivee&nce Plan would not apply.

» Continued participation in all retirement, lifegdical, dental, accidental death and disabitisurance benefit plans or programs in which
he was participating at the time of his terminatifmm the duration of the severance period, praditteat he would be responsible for any
required premiums or other payments under thesespla

e To the extent not already paid, payment of tkexative’'s bonus for the year prior to the yeawhich termination occurs, paid at the same
time as annual bonuses are paid to other senigutxes of the Company, taking into account sofigncial or other objective and
nonqualitative performance criteria and assumirgylmmdred percent of such bonus was based solelyanfactors.

» Payment of @ro rataaward for the year in which terminated, in such ampif any, as determined by the Company in ite sliscretior

* In addition, Mr. Levin’s Employment Agreementrpets him to terminate without Good Reason uporetyirdays’ prior written notice to
the Company. Upon any termination by the Compankiaut Cause of by Mr. Levin for Good Reason, ifessary for Mr. Levin to
maintain his immigration status, the Company withypde Mr. Levin the opportunity to continue semscas a consulting / part-time
employee until the earlier of the end of the aglile school year in which the termination occurtherdate that Mr. Levin commences
employment with a subsequent employer. Any companrspayable for such services, and the naturbadd continued services, will be
mutually agreed upon at the time of terminatiooyvted that the compensation for such serviced sddice, dollar for dollar, any
severance payments or benefits payable under trex&8ee Plan.

Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement

In the event of termination of employment due tatbedisability or a qualifying retirement, in atidh to payment of any unpaid base salary
through the date of termination and any other artahbenefits required to be paid or
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provided either by law or under any plan, prograoiicy or practice of the Company, Mr. Levin woutkteive the following:

e Under the AIP, upon a termination of employmauné to his death or disability, Mr. Levin would &légible to receive aro rata
award, in such amount, if any, as determined byCtvapany in its sole discretion, subject to singind delivering a general release
of claims against the Company and related parties.

e Upon a termination of employment due to his detite Company would continue to provide his spdqosén the event of a
contemporaneous death of both Mr. Levin and hisispphis youngest child) with the $20,000 montfdyging allowance specified in
the Employment Agreement through the earlier ofrit#ths after his date of hire or 6 months fromdate of Mr. Levin’s death.

Patrick Milano, David Stafford, and Teresa Martin-Retortillo

Termination without Cause or for Good Reason

Each of Messrs. Levin, Milano and Stafford and Msaurtin-Retortillo are eligible to participate ingliExecutive Severance Plan. Severance
benefits under the Executive Severance Plan amditcmmed upon the executive signing and deliveargeneral release of claims against the
Company and related parties, as well as noncorgetitonsolicitation, nondisclosure and other fete covenants substantially similar to

the restrictive covenants contained in the namedtive officers’ stock option award agreementhv@eorgia Holdings.

In the event of a termination by us without causeesignation by the executive for good reasonjragsg such termination occurred on
December 31, 2014, Mr. Levin, Mr. Milano, Mr. Staffl, or Ms. Martin-Retortillo (as applicable) wouié eligible for the following:

* An enhanced cash severance payment equal tottdl@mount of (a) his or her monthly base salamltiplied by 0.9 times the number of
full and partial years of his or her continuousviar with the Company, where this amount wouldlmtess than 12 months’ base salary,
nor would it be greater than 18 months’ base satarg (b) the Participant’'s Target Annual Bonuss fum (a) and (b), “the Cash
Severance”. Such Cash Severance payment wouldallgriee payable in installments over the applica@eerance period, but with
respect to any installments payable for periodsr dffte 12-month anniversary of the termination dbt€% of the value of such remaining
installments would be payable as a lump sum.

» Continued participation in all retirement, lifegdical, dental, accidental death and disabitisurance benefit plans or programs in which
he or she was patrticipating at the time of his teation, for the duration of the severance pertmat ot more than 12 months), provided
that he or she would be responsible for any regyiremiums or other payments under these plans.

e To the extent not already paid, payment of tkexative’'s bonus for the year prior to the yeawhich termination occurs, paid at the same
time as annual bonuses are paid to other senioutxes of the Company, taking into account sofigncial or other objective and
nonqualitative performance criteria and assumirgylmmdred percent of such bonus was based solelyanfactors.

« Payment of @ro rataaward for the year in which terminated, in such ampif any, as determined by the Company in ite sliscretior
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Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement

In the event of termination of employment due tattedisability or a qualifying retirement, in atidh to payment of any unpaid base salary
through the date of termination and any other artmahbenefits required to be paid or providedesithy law or under any plan, program,
policy or practice of the Company, Mr. Milano, MBtafford, or Ms. Martin-Retortillo, or their estgigs the case may be) would receive the
following:

e Under the AIP, upon a termination of employmduné to the executive’'death or disability, the executive would be éligito receive
pro rataaward, in such amount, if any, as determined byCthiapany in its sole discretion, subject to singang delivering a general
release of claims against the Company and relateep.

Thomas Kilkenny

Under the terms of his offer letter, dated June2082, if Mr. Kilkenny's employment is involuntayiterminated for reasons other than cause
within three years of his hire daté€., before July 9, 2015), he would be entitled teiee 12 months’ salary continuation. Mr. Kilkenny
would also be eligible for continued employee b#aefuring his severance period consistent with Gamy practice. After July 9, 2015, he\
be eligible to participate in the severance plgpliagble to other executives of his salary grade.

In addition, upon termination of Mr. Kilkenny’s efogment without cause, or due to death, disabditgualifying retirement, Mr. Kilkenny or
his estate (as the case may be) would be eligilblthé same treatment under the AIP as describexedbr Messrs. Milano and Stafford and
Ms. Martin-Retortillo.

Treatment of Option Award and Dividend Restricted Unit Award upon Potential Termination or Change in Control

Each of our named executive officers was grantstbek option award under the Management Equity.PAdditionally, as part of the
extraordinary dividend distributions that occurne@®014, Messrs. Milano, Stafford and Kilkenny rigee a grant of Dividend Restricted Uni

Under the terms of the stock option award agreeriegrmur named executive officers, if the execusvemployment terminates due to his
death, by us due to his disability, by us othentfma “cause” (as defined in the Management EqRIgn and summarized below), or by the
executive for “good reason” (to the extent suchdgmmason resignation right is set forth in any apble employment or similar agreement or
Company-severance plan)peo rataportion of the next installment of the executive&vice-vesting options scheduled to vest wouldirec
vested as of the date of termination. The portiosuch installment which vests is based on theopezlapsed between the last vesting date an
the date of termination. All unvested performanesting options would be forfeited. If a changeantcol occurs, all outstanding unvested
time-based options would accelerate and the pediooa conditions with respect to the performancéing®ptions would be deemed met with
respect to all future periods.

If any of our named executive officer's employminterminated other than by us for cause or byetteeutive for good reason within the 90-
day period preceding a change in control, there’ezutive’s stock option would vest as if the chaimgcontrol occurred immediately prior to
the termination.

In each of the instances described above, a piopaftportion of the Dividend Restricted Unit awavduld also vest or be forfeited following
the terms of the associated Option grant.

Under the Management Equity Plan, a “change inrobngenerally means the occurrence of either efftillowing:

* Apollo Management and its affiliates cease taheebeneficial owners, directly or indirectly,amajority of the combined voting
power of Georgia Holdings’ outstanding securit&s a person, entity or group
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other than Apollo Management and its affiliatesdrees the direct or indirect beneficial owner ofeagentage of the combined voting
power of Georgia Holdings’ outstanding securitiegttis greater than the percentage of the comhiatidg power of Georgia
Holdings’ outstanding securities beneficially owrdicectly or indirectly by Apollo Management and #ffiliates; or

» A sale of all or substantially all of the asseft$Georgia Holdings to a person, entity or grotipeo than Apollo Management and its
affiliates.

Notwithstanding the above, a mere initial publiteahg or a merger or other acquisition or comhoratransaction after which Apol
Management and its affiliates retain control orretlacontrol of Georgia Holdings, or have otherwisésold or disposed of more than 50% of
its investment in Georgia Holdings in exchangectash or marketable securities, will not result thange in control.

Further, under the Management Equity Plan, “cafisethe absence of any applicable employment oil&iragreement, participation in a
Companyseverance plan, or alternative definition set famtthe applicable award agreement) has substiyngiatilar meaning to the definitic
of “cause” under the AIP (described above), extept (i) the Compensation Committee (rather th@Gbmpany) would determine the
existence of cause under the Management Equityd?idrii) the executive may be provided a limitedipd to cure certain events or
occurrences that may give rise to cause.

The following tables show the incremental paymeamis benefits (that is, payments beyond what wasedaas of December 31, 2014) that
would be owed by MHGE to each of the named exeeudfficers upon certain terminations of their enyph@nt or upon a change in control,
assuming that:

* The named executive officearemployment terminated on December 31, Z
» With respect to payments and benefits triggered blgange in control, such change in control ocdusreDecember 31, 2014; ¢
» The fair market value per share of Georgia Holdieg®mmon stock was $122.97 on December 31, .

The following tables do not include the value of amvested equity.

David Levin
. . . . Continuation of Other
Vesting of Option Vesting of Restricted ) P
Cash Severanc€  Short-Term Bonus® Awards © Stock Awards Benefits a”(ﬂ Perquisites Total
By the Company for
Cause / by
Executive Without
Good Reason $ — $ — % — % — 3 — 3 —
By the Company
Without Cause 4,000,001 1,000,00 — — 74,51: 5,074,51
By the Executive for
Good Reason 4,000,001 1,000,00 — — 74,51: 5,074,51;
Death or Disability — 1,000,00 — — 180,00( 1,180,00t
Retirement — 1,000,00t — — — 1,000,00t
Change in Control
with Termination 4,000,001 1,000,00 — — 74,51: 5,074,51

(1) Under the terms of Mr. Levin’'s Employment Agneent, assuming a termination of Mr. Levin’'s empbeynt by the Company without
cause or by him for good reason as of Decembe2@4, MHGE would have provided him with a cash pagtrequal to two times
base salary and two times his target
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bonus, payable in equal installments over the 2#4tmperiod following the date of termination, sudtj his signing and delivering a
general release of claims against the Companyelatkd parties.

(2) Under the terms of the Executive Severance, M. Levin would be eligible to receive a proagtortion of the AIP award for the
year in which he is terminated. The amount shovileats Mr. Levir's full-year target bonus for fiscal year 2014.

(3) Under the terms of Mr. Levig'option award agreement, if his employment tertemduring the vesting period due to death, didgp}
or termination by the Company other than for caardgy Mr. Levin for good reason, o rataportion of the next installment of the
service-vesting options scheduled to vest wouldbecvested as of the termination date. All unveptrfbrmance-vesting options
would be forfeited. The portion of such installmaertich vests is based on the period elapsed betthedast vesting date and the ¢
of termination.

If a change in control occurs, all outstanding wted timebased options would accelerate and the performemmditions with respe
to the performance-vesting options would be deemetfor the year of the change in control and @isequent years.

As of December 31, 2014, we have assumed thaatheméarket value per share of Georgia Holdings cemistock did not exceed the
exercise price applicable to Mr. Levin’s optionysh the amounts above show no value in respebegbartion of the option which
would become vested and exercisable upon suchrtetimn or change in control event.

(4) Represents the cost of continuing Mr. Levipesefits at the current level of the employer-portdf monthly premium costs for a
period of 24 months following termination. This amédwould be payable in cash to Mr. Levin, assunfiagelects to receive COBRA
continuation coverage for himself and/or his codetependents.

Patrick Milano

Continuation of Other

Cash Severance Short-Term Vesting of Option ~ Vesting of Restricted ~ Cash Awards®  Benefits and Perquisites Total
o Bonus® Awards @ Stock Awards ®

By the Company
for Cause / by
Executive
Without Good
Reason $ — $ — 3 — $ — $ — 3 — $ =
By the Company
Without Cause 1,420,83. 550,00( 381,06¢ 85,90: 562,50( 12,03¢ 3,012,34.
By the Executive
for Good Reason 1,420,83: 550,00( 381,06¢ 85,90: — 12,03¢ 2,449,84.
Death or
Disability — 550,00( 381,06¢ 85,90 562,50( — 1,579,47
Retirement — 550,00( — — 562,50( — 1,112,501
Change in
Control with
Termination 1,420,83. 550,00( 3,918,02. 883,22! — 12,03¢ 6,784,11

(1) Reflects the cash severance due under the@®eePlan, equal to 18 times his monthly baseysplas the annual AIP target,
(together, the “Cash Severance”), with an addilid0& payment in respect of the
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(@)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

Cash Severance due for periods in excess of 12hwioBtich severance payment is subject to the éxeaigning and delivering a
general release of claims against the Companyelatked parties.

Under the terms of the Executive Severance,Midhe executive’s employment terminates duang year for any reason other than
for cause, the Company has discretion to awaréxbeutive a payment for the portion of the yearrduwhich he was employed by
the Company. Any such payment would be subjedigcekecutive signing and delivering a general sgled claims against the
Company and related parties. The amount includiéette the executive’s full-year bonus target fscél year 2014.

Under the terms of the executive’s stock apwvard agreement, if the executive’s employmemtiteates due to his death, by us due
to his disability, by us other than for cause, pithe executive for good reasompr@ rataportion of the next installment of the
executive’s service-vesting options scheduled &1 weuld become vested as of the termination ddte.portion of such installment
which vests is based on the period elapsed bettiedast vesting date and the date of terminatalditionally, a corresponding pro
rata portion of the Dividend Restricted Stock Uriant would also vest.

If a change in control occurs, all outstanding wted timebased options would accelerate and the performemmditions with respe
to the performance-vesting options would be deemetfor the year of the change in control and alsequent years. Additionally, a
corresponding pro rata portion of the Dividend Retd Stock Unit grant would also vest.

As of December 31, 2014, the fair market valueghare of Georgia Holdings common stock was $122v8ile the exercise price
applicable to Mr. Milano’s options was $30.75; thilee amounts shown above reflect the value ofetlogsions which would become
vested and exercisable upon such termination arggh control, based on a spread of $92.22 ($¥22% $30.75).

Reflects the value of the pro rata portionhaf Dividend Restricted Stock Unit grant referemceote (3) above, based on a per share
fair market value of $122.97 as of December 314201

Under the terms of the 2012 Cash-Based Pediocs Award, if the executive’s employment termieatering the vesting period due
to his death, disability, or retirement, the exe@utvould receive @ro rataportion of the award in respect of full or partyalars
worked during the three-year vesting period. Sthestermination is assumed to have occurred omtterity date of the award, the
executive would receive 100% of the award. The amhebiown reflects the full award less an advance0é6 provided to the
executive in 2013.

Reflects continued participation in Companydd@ealth and welfare benefit plans for a period ®imonths following termination
without cause, under the terms of the ExecutiveeBece Plan.
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David Stafford

, , Vesting of Restricted Continuation of Other

Cash S(gverance Sfé%rrt]js;m VEStA”\:\?a?éggtlon Stock Awards ® Cash Awards®  Benefits an(g Perquisitet  Total
By the Company
for Cause / by
Executive Without
Good Reason $ — % — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 — $ =
By the Company
Without Cause 930,00( 225,00( 152,42 34,36: 600,00( 77z 1,942,56.
By the Executive
for Good Reason 930,00( 225,00( 152,42¢ 34,36: — 77z 1,342,56.
Death or Disability — 225,00( 152,42 34,36 600,00( — 1,011,79
Retirement — 225,00 — — 600,00( — 825,00!
Change in Control
with Termination 930,00( 225,00( 1,567,22. 353,29: — 77z 3,076,28

(1) Reflects the cash severance due under the@®eePlan, equal to 18 times his monthly baseysplas the annual AIP target,
(together, the “Cash Severance”), with an addilid0& payment in respect of the Cash Severancéadyperiods in excess of 12
months. Such severance payment is subject to #@iéixe signing and delivering a general releasgdaims against the Company &
related parties.

(2) Under the terms of the Executive Severance,Miéghe executive’s employment terminates dudmg year for any reason other than
for cause, the Company has discretion to awaréxbeutive a payment for the portion of the yearrduwhich he was employed by
the Company. Any such payment would be subjedigcekecutive signing and delivering a general sgled claims against the
Company and related parties. The amount includiéette the executive’s full-year bonus target fscél year 2014.

(3) Under the terms of the executive’s stock aptiwvard agreement, if the executive’s employmantiteates due to his death, by us due
to his disability, by us other than for cause, pithe executive for good reasompr@ rataportion of the next installment of the
executive’s service-vesting options scheduled &1 weuld become vested as of the termination ddte.portion of such installment
which vests is based on the period elapsed bettiedast vesting date and the date of terminatalditionally, a corresponding pro
rata portion of the Dividend Restricted Stock Uriant would also vest.

If a change in control occurs, all outstanding wted timebased options would accelerate and the performemmditions with respe
to the performance-vesting options would be deemetfor the year of the change in control and alsequent years. Additionally, a
corresponding pro rata portion of the Dividend Retd Stock Unit grant would also vest.

As of December 31, 2014, the fair market valueghare of Georgia Holdings common stock was $122v8ile the exercise price
applicable to Mr. Stafford’s options was $30.7%1ghthe amounts shown above reflect the valueasfetloptions which would become
vested and exercisable upon such termination arggha control, based on a spread of $92.22 ($¥22% $30.75).

(4) Reflects the value of the pro rata portiorthaf Dividend Restricted Stock Unit grant refereimceote (3) above, based on a per share
fair market value of $122.97 as of December 314201
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(6)

Under the terms of the 2012 Cash-Based Pediocs Award, if the executive’s employment termieatering the vesting period due
to his death, disability, or retirement, the exe@utvould receive @ro rataportion of the award in respect of full or partyalars
worked during the three-year vesting period. Siheetermination is assumed to have occurred omtterity date of the award, the
executive would receive 100% of the award.

Reflects continued participation in Companydgd@ealth and welfare benefit plans for a period ®imonths following termination
without cause, under the terms of the ExecutiveeBece Plan.

Teresa Martin-Retortillo

Continuation of Other

Vesting of Option Vesting of Restricted Benefits and Perquisites

Cash Severanc€  Short-Term Bonus® Awards © Stock Awards @ Total
By the Company for
Cause / by
Executive Without
Good Reason $ — $ — % — & — 3 — $ =
By the Company
Without Cause 825,00( 325,00( — — 7,19( 1,157,191
By the Executive for
Good Reason 825,00( 325,00( — — 7,19( 1,157,191
Death or Disability — 325,00( — — — 325,00(
Retirement — 325,00( — — — 325,00(
Change in Control
with Termination 825,00( 325,00( — — 7,19( 1,157,191
(1) Reflects the cash severance due under theuExeSeverance Plan, equal to 12 times her moliqe salary plus the annual AIP

(2)

3)

target, (together, the “Cash Severance”). Suchraaee payment is subject to the executive signimbdelivering a general release of
claims against the Company and related parties.

Under the terms of the Executive Severance,Miahe executive’'s employment terminates duang year for any reason other than
for cause, the Company has discretion to awaréxbeutive a payment for the portion of the yeairdpwhich she was employed by
the Company. Any such payment would be subjediecekecutive signing and delivering a general sgled claims against the
Company and related parties. The amount includiéektte the executive’s full-year bonus target iscél year 2014.

Under the terms of the executive’s stock aptwvard agreement, if the executive’s employmemiteates due to her death, by us due
to her disability, by us other than for cause, pthe executive for good reasorpr@ rataportion of the next installment of the
executive’s service-vesting options scheduled &1 weuld become vested as of the termination ddte.portion of such installment
which vests is based on the period elapsed bettiedast vesting date and the date of termination.

If a change in control occurs, all outstanding eted timebased options would accelerate and the performemuditions with respe
to the performance-vesting options would be deemetfor the year of the change in control and alsequent years.

As of December 31, 2014, we have assumed thaathmérket value per share of Georgia Holdings comistock did not exceed the
exercise price applicable to Ms. Martin-Retortdl@ption; thus, the amounts above show no valuesipect of the portion of the
option which would become vested and exercisabda pich termination or change in control event.




(4) Reflects continued participation in Companyddzealth and welfare benefit plans for a period #imonths following termination
without cause, under the terms of the ExecutiveeBece Plan.

Thomas Kilkenny

Continuation of Other

Short-Term Vesting of Option Vesting of Restricted ) Faite

Cash S(gverance Bonus® Awards © Stock Awards Cash Awards® Benefits a”(é’, Perquisite: Total
By the Company
for Cause / by
Executive Without
Good Reason $ — % — $ — 3 — & — $ — $ =
By the Company
Without Cause 340,61t 136,24t 76,21: 17,18( 187,50( 3,691 761,44
By the Executive
for Good Reason 340,61t 136,24t 76,21 17,18( — 3,691 573,94
Death or Disability — 136,24t 76,21: 17,18( 187,50( — 417,13
Retirement — 136,24t — — 187,50( — 323,741
Change in Control
with Termination 340,61t 136,24t 783,57! 176,63t — 3,691 1,440,76

(1) Reflects the cash severance payable undeKilkenny's offer letter (12 monthddase salary

(2) Under the terms of the AIP, if the executs&zemployment terminates during any year for angarather than for cause, the Comp
has discretion to award the executive a paymerthiportion of the year during which he was emetbpy the Company. Any such
payment would be subject to the executive signimdjdelivering a general release of claims agaimestiompany and related parties.
The amount included here reflects the executivdisyear bonus target for fiscal year 2014.

(3) Under the terms of the executive’s stock aptiwvard agreement, if the executive’s employmemiiteates due to his death, by us due
to his disability, by us other than for cause, pthe executive for good reasompra rataportion of the next installment of the
executive’s service-vesting options scheduled & weuld become automatically vested. The portiosuch installment which vests
is based on the period elapsed between the lastgetate and the date of termination. Additiona#lycorresponding pro rata portion
of the Dividend Restricted Stock Unit grant woulslcavest.

If a change in control occurs, all outstanding eted timebased options would accelerate and the performemmuditions with respe
to the performance-vesting options would be deemetfor the year of the change in control and ahsequent years. Additionally, a
corresponding pro rata portion of the Dividend Retd Stock Unit grant would also vest.

As of December 31, 2014, the fair market valueghare of Georgia Holdings common stock was $122v8ile the exercise price
applicable to Mr. Kilkenny’s options was $30.75ushthe amounts shown above reflect the valueasfeloptions which would
become vested and exercisable upon such terminaticimange in control, based on a spread of $9&222.97 less $30.75).

(4) Reflects the value of the pro rata portiothaf Dividend Restricted Stock Unit grant referentedote (3) above, based on a per share

fair market value of $122.97 as of December 314201
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(5) Under the terms of the 2012 Cash-Based Pediocm Award, if the executive’s employment termisatering the vesting period due
to his death, disability, or retirement, the exe@utvould receive @ro rataportion of the award in respect of full or partyalars
worked during the three-year vesting period. Siheetermination is assumed to have occurred omtterity date of the award, the
executive would receive 100% of the award.

(6) Reflects continued participation in Companyddzealth and welfare benefit plans for a period #imonths following termination
without cause, in accordance with the Company’ss®ewe practice as of December 31, 2014 for exexsutit the same level as Mr.
Kilkenny.

Fiscal Year 2014 Director Compensation

Four members of the board of directors of Georgidhigs and its subsidiaries served in fiscal y&¥r4, and received compensation for their
services as directors. All other members of thadodirectors of Georgia Holdings and its subssiigis who served in fiscal year 2014 were
either employees of MHGE or Apollo Management, ditdnot receive any additional compensation foirteervice as directors.

Mr. Wolsey-Paige received an annual cash retaiqealeo $60,000 for his service as a director, plusinnual cash retainer equal to $15,000
for his service as the chairperson of the Audit @ottee of the board of directors of Georgia Holding

Mr. Waterhouse and Mr. Schlosser each receivedhana cash retainer equal to $60,000 for theirisesvdirectors.
Mr. Villaraigosa received an annual cash retaifé6®,000 for his services as director, pro-ratadhiis start date of July 1, 2014. In addition,

upon joining the board of directors of Georgia Hoi$, he received a one-time award under the ManageEquity Plan of an option to
acquire 625 shares of Georgia Holdings common stock

Name Fees Earned or Paid in Cash Option Awards @ All Other Compensation ® Total
Lloyd G. Waterhouse $ 60,00 $ — $ — $ 60,00(
Mark Wolsey-Paige 75,00( — — 75,00(
Antonio Villaraigosa 30,00( 46,28: — 76,28:
Ronald Schlosser 60,00( — — 60,00(

(1) Represents the aggregate grant date fair yvd&termined in accordance with the applicable aectiog guidance for equity-based
awards, of a one-time award to Mr. Villaraigosanfoption to acquire 625 shares of Georgia Holdemgsmon stock. See Note 9 to
the combined consolidated financial statementsifioexplanation of the methodology and assumptised in the FASB ASC Topic
718 valuations.

The vesting schedule of Mr. Villaraigosa'’s optiamaad follows the vesting schedule of the stockamigranted to our named
executive officers: 50% of the option vests in dduostallments of 20% on each of the first five ar@msaries of the date of grant,
subject to continued service, and the remaining 50%e option vests in equal installments of 208each of the first five
anniversaries of the date of grant, subject toinaat service and the achievement of EBITDA and &rash flow performance goals
with respect to each fiscal year beginning witledisyear 2014 and ending with fiscal year 2018oABecember 31, 2014, no porti
of Mr. Villaraigosa’s option was vested or exerbiga

The per share exercise price for Mr. Villaraigosaision award is $122.97. Like the stock optiorsnged to our named executive
officers, the per share exercise price was adjustetuly 18, 2014 and again on December 16, 20h4dount for extraordinary cash
dividends declared on Georgia Holdings’ common
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stock on such dates. For purposes of ASC Topic Md&)cremental fair value resulted from such adpest.

Iltem 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

All of our issued and outstanding limited liabilitpmpany units are held indirectly by Parent. Talkowing table sets forth information
regarding the beneficial ownership of our equitgiasts as of March 27, 2015 by (i) each persomvkrio beneficially own more than 5% of
our equity interest, (ii) each of our named exaeutfficers, (iii) each member of the board of @@mpany, (iv) each member of the board of
Georgia Holdings and (v) all of our executive offis and members of the boards of the Company antyaeHoldings as a group. At March
27, 2015, there were approximately 100 limitedilisbcompany units outstanding.

The amounts and percentages of equity interesefioeally owned are reported on the basis of refjutes of the SEC governing the
determination of beneficial ownership of securitidader the rules of the SEC, a person is deembd t“beneficial owner” of a security if
that person has or shares “voting power,” whicluides the power to vote or to direct the votingwch security, or “investment powewhich
includes the power to dispose of or to direct tispakition of such security. A person is also dedtoebe a beneficial owner of any securities
of which that person has a right to acquire berafmvnership within 60 days. Under these rulestartban one person may be deemed a
beneficial owner of the same securities and a persay be deemed a beneficial owner of securitiee adich he has no economic interest.

Except as indicated by footnote, the persons namge: table below have sole voting and investnpemter with respect to all equity interests
shown as beneficially owned by them.

Amount and Nature of
Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Percentage of Class
(units)

Parent (1) 10C 100%
Lloyd G. Waterhouse (2) — —
David Levin (3) — —
Patrick Milano (4) — _
David Stafford(5) — —
Thomas Kilkenny (6) — _
Ronald Schlosser (7) — —
Larry Berg (8) — —
Antoine Munfakh (8) — _
Evan Bayh (9) — —
Mark Wosley-Paige (10) — _
Antonio Villaraigosa (9) — _
Teresa Martin-Retortillo (11) — —

Directors and executive officers as a group (12
persons) — —

(1) All of our outstanding limited liability compa units are held by Parent. All of Parent’s outdiag limited liability company units are
held by AcquisitionCo, and all of AcquisitionGooutstanding limited liability company intereste aeld by Georgia Holdings. Apol
Co-Investors (MHE), L.P. (“Co-Investors LP") and Afeorgia Holdings, L.P. (“AP Georgia,” and togethéth Co-Investors LP, the
“Apollo Funds”) hold of record over 99% of the igsbiand outstanding common stock of Georgia HoldiAgsllo Management
(MHE), LLC (“Management (MHE)") is the investmentamager for Co-Investors LP. AP
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)
(9)

Georgia Holdings GP, LLC (“AP Georgia GP”) is thengral partner of AP Georgia. Apollo Management YIP. (“Management
VII") is the sole member and manager of Management (Mid&)he manager of AP Georgia GP. The generalgransfiManagemer
VIl is AIF VII Management, LLC (“AlF VII LLC"). Apollo Management, L.P. (“Apollo Management”) is thdesmembemanager ¢
AIF VII LLC. Apollo Management GP, LLC (“Manageme@”) is the general partner of Apollo Managem@émqiollo Management
Holdings, L.P. (“Management Holdings”) is the soilember and manager of Management GP. Apollo Manageholdings GP,
LLC (“Management Holdings GP”) is the general partof Management Holdings. Leon Black, Joshua damid Marc Rowan are
the managers, as well as principal executive afficef Management Holdings GP, and as such magémdd to have voting and
dispositive control of our equity interests that held by Parent and indirectly beneficially owgdGeorgia Holdings. The principal
address for each of Parent, AcquisitionCo and Gadtgldings is 2 Penn Plaza, New York, NY 10121e Phincipal address of each
of the Apollo Funds and for AP Georgia GP is OnenNttanville Road, Suite 201, Purchase, New Yoi7X0 The principal address
of Management (MHE), Management VII, AIF VII LLC pallo Management, Management GP, Management Hading
Management Holdings GP, and Messrs. Black, HamisRowan, is 9 W. 57 Street, 43'Floor, New York, NY 10019.

Mr. Waterhouse holds 54,668.05 shares of comstack of Georgia Holdings, which accounts foslésan 1% of the issued and
outstanding equity interests of Georgia Holdingsludes 42,485.6 shares of common stock issualole thye exercise of options
within 60 days. Mr. Waterhouse was our Presidedt@EBO until his retirement on April 8, 2014. Thalegks of Mr. Waterhouse is «
McGraw-Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC, 2 PeRtaza, New York, NY 10121.

Mr. Levin holds 28,594.91 shares of common stocebrgia Holdings, which accounts for less thandf%e issued and outstand
equity interests of Georgia Holdings. Includes 23,8hares of common stock issuable upon the exes€isptions within 60 days. T
address of Mr. Levin is c/o McGraw-Hill Global Eatimn Holdings, LLC, 2 Penn Plaza, New York, NY 201

Mr. Milano holds 27,334.02 shares of commantktof Georgia Holdings, which accounts for lesnti% of the issued and
outstanding equity interests of Georgia Holdingsludes 21,242.8 shares of common stock issualole thie exercise of options
within 60 days. The address of Mr. Milano is c/o®taw-Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC, 2 PenraPa, New York, NY 10121.

Mr. Stafford holds 11,933.7 shares of commiokls of Georgia Holdings, which accounts for ldsat 1% of the issued and
outstanding equity interests of Georgia Holdingsludes 8,497.2 shares of common stock issuable tygoexercise of options with
60 days. The address of Mr. Stafford is c/o McGHilGlobal Education Holdings, LLC, 2 Penn Plakiew York, NY 10121.

Mr. Kilkenny holds 5,466.61 shares of commtotk of Georgia Holdings, which accounts for ldsat 1% of the issued and
outstanding equity interests of Georgia Holdingsludes 4,248.4 shares of common stock issuable tygoexercise of options with
60 days. The address of Mr. Kilkenny is c/o McGrdil-Global Education Holdings, LLC, 2 Penn Plakiew York, NY 10121.

Mr. Schlosser holds 65,957.05 shares of comstack of Georgia Holdings, which accounts for s 1% of the issued and
outstanding equity interests of Georgia Holdingsludes 37,174.9 shares of common stock issualole thig exercise of options
within 60 days. The address of Mr. Schlosser isvéGraw-Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC, 2 Pemtaza, New York, NY
10121.

The address of Mr. Berg and Mr. Munfakh is c/o Ap&lobal Management, LLC, 9 West 57th Street, Newk, NY 10019

The address of Mr. Bayh and Mr. Villaraigosaio McGraw-Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC P2nn Plaza, New York, NY
10121.
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(10)Mr. Wolsey-Paige holds 2,996.62 shares of commockstf Georgia Holdings, which accounts for lesnti % of the issued and
outstanding equity interests of Georgia Holdingsludes 424.8 shares of common stock issuable tin@oexercise of options within
60 days. The address of Mr. Wolsey-Paige is c/o MeEHill Global Education Holdings, LLC, 2 Penn BdaNew York, NY 10121.

(11)Ms. Martin-Retortillo holds 4,836.84 shares of coomstock of Georgia Holdings, which accounts fesléhan 1% of the issued and
outstanding equity interests of Georgia Holdingsludes 4,248.6 shares of common stock issuable tygoexercise of options with
60 days. The address of Ms. Martin-Retortillo i3 ®IcGraw-Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC, 2 ReRlaza, New York, NY
10121.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

We or one of our subsidiaries may occasionallyreinte transactions with certain “related partiéR€lated parties include its executive
officers, directors, nominees for directors, a lfiersd owner of 5% or more of its common stock aminediate family members of these
parties. We refer to transactions in which theteglgarty has a direct or indirect material inteeess“related party transactions.”

Founding Transactions Fee Agreement

In connection with the Founding Transactions, Ap@llobal Securities, LLC (the “Service Providerfitered into a transaction fee agreement
with Georgia Holdings and AcquisitionCo (the “Foingl Transactions Fee Agreement”) relating to thavimion of certain structuring,
financial, investment banking and other similariadxy services by the Service Providers to Acqwisito, its direct and indirect divisions and
subsidiaries, parent entities or controlled affd&(collectively, the “Company Groupf) connection with the Founding Transactions aridri
transactions. AcquisitionCo paid the Service Prera one-time transaction fee of $25 million in #ggregate in exchange for services
rendered in connection with structuring the Fougdinansactions, arranging the financing and periiogrother services in connection with the
Founding Transactions. Subject to the terms anditions of the Founding Transactions Fee AgreemiequisitionCo will pay to the Service
Provider an additional transaction fee equal todf%he aggregate enterprise value paid or providednnection with any merger, acquisition,
disposition, recapitalization, divestiture, saleas$ets, joint venture, issuance of securities tfvelnequity, equity-linked, debt or otherwise),
financing or any similar transaction effected bywember of the Company Group. As a result of exagutie Founding Transactions Fee
Agreement, we are able to retain the serviceseoB#rvice Provider. In exchange, we have agrepdytdhe fees as described above.
Ultimately, we believe that the benefit of thosevgres outweighs the cost of such fees.

Management Fee Agreement

In connection with the Founding Transactions, Apdllanagement VII, L.P. (the “Management ServicevRigr") entered into a management
fee agreement with Georgia Holdings and Acquisfliorfthe “Management Fee Agreement”) relating togiwvision of certain management
consulting and advisory services to the membetseCompany Group. In exchange for the provisiosuah services, AcquisitionCo will pay
the Management Service Provider a non-refundablealmanagement fee of $3.5 million in the aggregatibject to the terms and conditions
of the Management Fee Agreement, upon a changentrfot or an initial public offering (“IPO”) of a ember of the Company Group, the
Management Service Provider may elect to receiuen@ sum payment in lieu of future management feg@ble to them under the
Management Fee Agreement. As a result of exectitim@lanagement Fee Agreement, we are able to ritaiexpertise of the Management
Service Provider. In exchange, we have agreedytdhmafees as described above. Ultimately, we belikat the benefit of that expertise
outweighs the cost of such fees.

Services Agreements

In connection with the Founding Transactions, weersd into agreements with MHSE, Parent and/or AitipnCo relating to shared services,
systems, operations and assets (collectively, $eevices Agreements”).

132




Pursuant to the Services Agreements, we providH8E certain services at cost, which include, atret limited to, finance, accounting,
payroll processing, audit, financial reporting, ltasanagement, legal, tax, information technologpytight management, digital technology,
risk management, security, sourcing and procuremesgarch and development, logistics, inventorgagament, investor relations,
communications, marketing, customer support, rei@te, human resources and operational improveseevices as well as distribution,
republishing and cross-selling services. Unlegsiteated in accordance with the Services Agreemémspngoing services shall be provided
for a term of one year, with automatic annual esit@ms subject to written notice of termination tsyar MHSE at least ninety days prior to s
automatic extension. From time to time, we and MH$dy provide certain services at cost to ParentoardtquisitionCo.

In addition, we provide to MHSE certain serviceduding payroll and benefits processing servicasramn-compensation disbursement
functions. The payroll processing services thaipaogided are administrative in nature and do equire the payment of compensation to any
MHSE employees using our funds, unless we are pitgmgimbursed by MHSE. Pursuant to the remmpensation disbursement functions
we provide, we make disbursements of any costgmereses identified to us by MHSE, which are requteebe promptly reimbursed by
MHSE upon receipt of our invoice relating to suésbdrsements.

The cost of the provision of services pursuanh&Services Agreements generally will be allochienlveen us and MHSE on the basis of
revenue contribution or, where possible, direatetative consumption of the applicable service egtavhere an item is demonstrably
attributable in its entirety to us or MHSE, in whicase it will be allocated accordingly to suchitgnAny capital expenditure, which consists
any expenditure pre-approved in the annual budgeth@rwise approved by the steering committeerthagt be capitalized, that relates to a
shared service under the Services Agreements githbde by us and its cost will be allocated betweseand MHSE based on the allocation
methodology for the shared service for which theetanderlying such capital expenditure was intdridesupport. MHSE will reimburse us
25% of the aggregate cost of the capital experalituat is allocated to MHSE pursuant to the pregedentence, as well as 25% of any relate
costs for our processing of such reimbursemeng guarterly basis so that MHSE will have reimbursgdh full for its allocable share of the
capital expenditure within a year of us having imed it.

The allocation of the cost of the provision of seeg pursuant to the Service Agreements betwee@dngpany and MHSE is $197.6 million
and $218.7 million, respectively, of which, MHSEslraade payments of $234.8 million to the Compamnduthe year ended December 31,
2014.

The Services Agreements also provide us and MHSIE thv limited use of certain of the other pariytgllectual property on a royalty-free
basis. In addition, AcquisitionCo and Parent map gdrovide us with certain services and the cedétad to these services will be allocated to
us and MHSE in the same manner as detailed above.

Employment Agreement for Ronald Schlosser

Mr. Schlosser served as the Executive Chairmaneaf@a Holdings through May 1, 2014. In connectigth his appointment as Executive
Chairman, he entered into an employment agreemiémtMiHGE Holdings, under which he was entitled toamnual base salary of $500,000
and was eligible to receive an annual cash perfocm&onus based on the achievement of performaitedacdetermined annually by the
Board in its sole discretion, following consultatiavith Mr. Schlosser. His target bonus opportunigs equal to 200% of his base salary. In
connection with entering into the employment agreetnMr. Schlosser invested $1,000,000 in Georgilliigs common stock pursuant to
terms of a subscription agreement, and Georgiairigddyranted Mr. Schlosser an option to purchask0&3shares of common stock of
Georgia Holdings pursuant to its management eqgpléry.

Upon termination of Mr. Schlosser’'s employment asdutive Chairman, he is entitled to receive a saskerance payment equal to four times
his base salary payable over two years, pliaatabonus for the 2014 fiscal year based on actuabpmdnce, subject to his timely
execution of an irrevocable waiver and releasdaifis against MHGE Holdings, its affiliates and leaf their respective directors, officers,
employees and agents. Pursuant to Mr. Schlosseptogment agreement and option award agreemeiis, $ubject to noncompetition,
nonsolicitation
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covenants which extend for two years following teisnination of employment for any reason. He ig alsbject to nondisparagement,
nondisclosure and intellectual property covenants.

Quest Agreement

Leader’s Quest Ltd (“Quest”) is a UK-based non-pirerfiterprise at which Lindsay Levin is the foundaed managing partner. Ms. Levin is the
spouse of David Levin, who serves as our PresigietitChief Executive Officer. In 2014 the Companieesd into an agreement with Quest
pursuant to which Quest provided leadership worgshand other leadership training for twelve membéthe Company’s executive
leadership team. The Company paid Quest totalde®$33,000 in connection with the Quest agreenlar015, the Company entered into an
agreement which Quest will provide additional leatig workshops and other leadership training éatitonal members of the Company’s
leadership team. The Company will pay Quest t&asfof $248,000 in connection with the agreemesnQAest is a non-profit enterprise, Ms.
Levin does not stand to benefit financially frone tihansaction with the Company.

Iltem 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Fees for professional services provided by ourpeddent auditors for fiscal year 2014 and 2018aich of the following categories, including
related expenses, are:

2014 2013
Audit Fees (1) $ 3,026,000 $ 3,425,001
Audit Related Fees (2) 78,00( —
Tax Fees (3) 1,118,001 252,00(
$ 4,222,000 $ 3,677,001

(1) Audit Fees include fees associated with thataiur financial statements, review of our gedst financial statements and statutory audit
of certain international subsidiaries.

(2) Audit-Related Fees consisted of fees for sewvibat are reasonably related to the performainttee @udit and the review of our financial
statements.

(3) Tax Fees consisted of fees for federal, stat@) and international tax compliance and tax swohyi services.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of the report.
(1) Combined Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accogniiirm 49

Combined Consolidated Statements of Operationthé Year Ended December 31, 2014
(Successor), for the Periods March 23, 2013dodber 31, 2013 (Successor), January 1, 2013 to
March 22, 2013 (Predecessor), and Year Endedrbeer 31, 2012 (Predecessor) 50

Combined Consolidated Statements of Comprehersoome (Loss) for the Year Ended

December 31, 2014 (Successor), for the Pericateivi23, 2013 to December 31, 2013

(Successor), January 1, 2013 to March 22, 2Bi&dgcessor), and Year Ended December 31,

2012 (Predecessor) 51

Combined Consolidated Balance Sheets at DeceBih@014 (Successor) and December 31,
2013 (Successor) 52

Combined Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowthé Year Ended December 31, 2014
(Successor), for the Periods March 23, 2013dodmber 31, 2013 (Successor), January 1, 2013 to
March 22, 2013 (Predecessor), and Year Endedrbeer 31, 2012 (Predecessor) 53

Combined Consolidated Statements of Changesguiityefor the Periods December 31, 2012 to
March 22, 2013 (Predecessor), March 23, 20T3ettember 31, 2013 (Successor), and December
31, 2013 to December 31, 2014 (Successor) 55

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 57

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule [I—"Valuation and Qualifying Accounis”included herein as Note 22 in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. 98
(3) Exhibits.

See the Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdéport to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 30, 2015

McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC

(Registrant)

/s/ David Levin

David Levin

President and Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed &ydhowing persons on behalf of McGraw-
Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLCdaim the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature
/s/ David Levin

David Levin

[s/ Patrick Milano

Patrick Milano

/sl Thomas Kilkenny

Thomas Kilkenny

Title

President

Chief Executive Officer
Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Administration Officer
Assistant Secretary
(Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President
Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date

March 30, 2015

March 30, 2015

March 30, 2015
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number

Description

2.1*

2.2*

3.1*

3.2*

4.1*

4.2*

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Nover6b2022, by and among The McGraw-
Hill Companies, Inc., McGraw-Hill Education LLC,glother sellers named therein and
MHE Acquisition, LLC (incorporated by referenceHEghibit 2.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-e (Ro. 333-193697-01))

Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement, datfd\darch 4, 2013, by and among The
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., McGraw-Hill Educatidth.C, the other sellers named therein
and MHE Acquisition, LLC (incorporated by referertoeExhibit 2.2 to Amendment No. 1
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form(Bi& No. 333-193697-01))

Certificate of Formation, as amended, of McGraw-8ibbal Education Intermediate
Holdings, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhih to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agnent of McGraw-Hill Global
Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC (incorporalgdreference to Exhibit 3.6 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-e (Ro. 333-193697-01))

Indenture, dated as of March 22, 2013, by and anve@raw-Hill Global Education
Holdings, LLC, McGraw-Hill Global Education Finandac., McGraw-Hill Global
Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC, MHE US Holglé LLC, the Subsidiary Guarantors
party thereto from time to time and Wilmington Trusational Association (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 1 toRwegjistrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Marc?23, by and among McGraw-Hill
Global Education Holdings, LLC, McGraw-Hill GlobRducation Finance, Inc., McGraw-
Hill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC H&E US Holdings, LLC, the Guarantors
party thereto, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LB&|O Capital Markets Corp., Jefferies
LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, Nomura Securitiesdmational, Inc., and UBS Securities
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 te fRegistrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of MarchZ®, 3, among McGraw-Hill Global
Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC, as holdingsGraw-Hill Global Education
Holdings, LLC, as borrower, the lenders party theer€redit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands
Branch, as administrative agent and the othergsattiereto (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the RegistraRégyistration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-193697-01))

Collateral Agreement (First Lien), dated as of Ma2@, 2013, among McGraw-Hill Global
Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC, as holdingsGraw-Hill Global Education
Holdings, LLC, as borrower, each subsidiary loartypparty thereto and Credit Suisse AG,
Cayman Islands Branch, as collateral agent (ingatpd by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s RegistraticateShent on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
193697-01))

Guarantee Agreement (First Lien), dated as of Ma@&;i2013, among McGraw-Hill Global
Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC, as holdinyg, subsidiaries of McGraw-Hill Global
Education Holdings, LLC named therein and Credis§2AG, Cayman Islands Branch, as
collateral agent (incorporated by reference to EixHi0.3 to Amendment No. 1 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-e (Ro. 333-193697-01))

Transaction Fee Agreement, dated as of March 2123,28mong McGraw-Hill Global
Education Holdings, LLC and Apollo Securities, LIi@corporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statemerffamm S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

Management Fee Agreement, dated as of March 23, 20iong McGraw-Hill Global
Education Holdings, LLC and Apollo Management \UIP (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Registration Stag¢at on Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-
01))

Employment Agreement, dated June 6, 2012, betwesarMv-Hill Global Education, Inc.
and Lloyd G. Waterhouse (incorporated by refereéndexhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3336B7-01))




10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated W&y2013, between McGraw-Hill
Global Education Holdings, LLC and Lloyd G. Wateunke (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Registration Stag¢at on Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-
01))

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, date@mber 5, 2013, between McGraw-
Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC and Lloyd G. \t¢eahouse (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Registratioat8iment on Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-
01))

Offer Letter, dated June 18, 2012, between McGralwBducation and Thomas Kilkenny
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to tlegRtrant’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

Employment Agreement, dated May 31, 2013, betweeGidw-Hill Education Holdings,
LLC and Ronald Schlosser (incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.10 to Amendment No. 1
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on F&¢in(File No. 333-193697-01))

Retention Agreement, dated August 1, 2012, betwda@Braw-Hill Education, Inc. and
Patrick Milano (incorporated by reference to Exhilf).11 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

Retention Agreement, dated August 1, 2012, betwdea@Braw-Hill Education, Inc. and
David Stafford (incorporated by reference to Exhilfl.12 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

Form of 2012 Cash-Based Performance Award unde2@b2 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 toRegyistrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))

Form of Amendment to 2012 Cash-Based Performancard@ncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant’s Registration &ta¢nt on Form S-1 (File No. 333-193697-
01))

Georgia Holdings, Inc. Management Equity Plan (ipooated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on F&¢fn(File No. 333-193697-01))

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Certificateder the Georgia Holdings, Inc.
Management Equity Plan for Tier | Management (ipooated by reference to Exhibit 10.16
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on F&¢in(File No. 333-193697-01))

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Certificateder the Georgia Holdings, Inc.
Management Equity Plan for Tier Il Management (hpooated by reference to Exhibit 10.17
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on F&¢in(File No. 333-193697-01))

Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Certificate, daddy 15, 2013, between Georgia
Holdings, Inc. and Lloyd G. Waterhouse (incorpodatg reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-fe (Ro. 333-193697-01))

Amendment, dated December 5, 2013, to the Nondel8tock Option Grant Certificate,
dated May 15, 2013, between Georgia Holdings,dnd. Lloyd G. Waterhouse (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the RegistrantgRtration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-193697-01))

Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Certificate, daddy 31, 2013, between Georgia
Holdings, Inc. and Ronald Schlosser (incorporatedeifierence to Exhibit 10.20 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-e (Ro. 333-193697-01))

Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Certificate, dadeshe 28, 2013, between Georgia
Holdings, Inc. and Mark Wolsey-Paige (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.21 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-e (Ro. 333-193697-01))

McGraw-Hill Education Annual Incentive Plan (incorporategreference to Exhibit 10.22
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form(Bi& No. 333-193697-01))

McGraw-Hill Education Annual Incentive Plan-201&®lYear Addendum (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrant’s Regtion Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-193697-01))

First Amendment to Georgia Holdings, Inc. Managentaquity Plan, effective as of
February 4, 2014 (incorporated by reference to kikfhD.24 to Amendment No. 1 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-fe (Ro. 333-193697-01))
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* Previously filed.
T Filed herewith.

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*
21.1t

31.1%t

31.2t

32.1t

32.2t
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Georgia Holdings, Inc. Executive Severance Placofiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on F&¢in(File No. 333-193697-01))

Incremental Assumption Agreement and AmendmentiNdated as of March 24, 2014,
among McGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate #iabs, LLC, as holdings, McGraw-
Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC, as borrowengtlenders party thereto, Credit Suisse
AG, Cayman Islands Branch, as administrative agedtthe other parties thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Aai@ent No. 1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3336B7-01))

Services Agreement, dated as of March 22, 201anbyamong MHE Acquisition, LLC,
MHE US Holdings, LLC, McGraw-Hill School Educatidtoldings, LLC and McGraw-Hill
Global Education Holdings, LLC (incorporated byemreice to Exhibit 10.27 to Amendment
No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statemenffomm S-1 (File No. 333-193697-01))
Employment Agreement, dated December 14, 2013, dstWicGraw-Hill Education
Holdings, LLC and David Levin, as amended by theeddment, dated March 31, 2014,
between McGraw-Hill Education Holdings, LLC and [hlzevin (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.28 to Amendment No. 1 to the RegisfsaRegistration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-193697-01))

Stockholder's Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2at®ng Georgia Holdings, Inc., AP
Georgia Holdings, LP, Apollo Overseas Co-Inves{MBIE), LP and certain other
Stockholders of Georgia Holdings, Inc. (incorpodaby reference to Exhibit 10.29 to
Amendment No. 3 to the Registrant’s RegistraticateShent on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
193697-01))

List of Subsidiaries of McGraw-Hill Global Educatidntermediate Holdings, LLC.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act, as amended

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act, as amended

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@dt of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@ydt of 2002

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document
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List of Subsidiaries of McGrawill Global Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC

Jurisdiction of

Exhibit 21.1

Incorporation
or Percent
Name of Subsidiary Organization Registered Owner Ownership
ALEKS Holdco. LLC Delaware McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
' Holdings, LLC

Grupo McGraw-Hill, S.A. de C.V. Mexico McGraw-Hill Interamericana 99.998%
Editores, S.A. de C.V.
McGraw-Hill International 0.002%
Enterprises, LLC

Lands End Publishing New Zealand  McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Australia Holdco Pty Ltd

McGraw-Hill Book Company New Zealand Limited New Zealand =~ McGraw-Hill Education 100%
(Australia) Pty Ltd
Australia Holdco Pty Ltd

McGraw-Hill Education (Denmark) ApS Denmark McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Education (Germany) GmbH Germany McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
UK Holdco Il Limited

McGraw Hill Education (India) Private Limited India McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
UK Holdco II Limited

McGraw-Hill Education (Israel) Ltd. Israel McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
UK Holdco Il Limited
UK Holdco Il Limited

McGraw-Hill Education (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia McGraw-Hill Education 100%

(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.




Jurisdiction of

Incorporation
or Percent
Name of Subsidiary Organization Registered Owner Ownership

McGraw-Hill Education (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Singapore Holdings Pte. Ltd.
UK Holdco Il Limited

McGraw-Hill Education (UK) Ltd. United McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%

Kingdom UK Holdco Il Limited

McGraw-Hill Education Korea Limited Korea McGraw-Hill International 100%
Enterprises, LLC

McGraw-Hill Education Publications Overseas LLC Delaware McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Education Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd China McGraw-Hill Hong Kong Limited 100%
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Educational Services India Pvt. Ltd. India McGraw-Hill Education 100%
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

McGraw-Hill Global Education Australia Holdco Ptyd Australia McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Global Education Finance, Inc. Delaware McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Global Education Holdings, LLC Delaware McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Intermediate Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Global Education Mexico Holdings, LLC Delaware McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Global Education Singapore Holdings Rté. Singapore McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%

Holdings, LLC




Jurisdiction of

Incorporation
or Percent
Name of Subsidiary Organization Registered Owner Ownership
McGraw-Hill Global Education UK Holdco Limited United McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Kingdom Holdings, LLC
McGraw-Hill Global Education UK Holdco I Limited United McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Kingdom UK Holdco Limited

McGraw-Hill Global Education, LLC Delaware McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong McGraw-Hill Education 100%
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

McGraw-Hill Interamericana de Espaifia, S.L. Spain McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
UK Holdco Il Limited

McGraw-Hill Interamericana Editores, S.A. de C.V. Mexico MHE Mexico Holdco S. de 99.988%
R.L.de C.V.
McGraw-Hill International 0.012%
Enterprises, LLC
Holdings, LLC
Holdings, LLC

McGraw-Hill Ryerson Limited Canada McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
UK Holdco II Limited

McGraw-Hill/Interamericana de Chile Limitada Chile McGraw-Hill Global Education 99.9922%
Holdings, LLC
McGraw-Hill International .0088%
Enterprises, LLC

McGraw-Hill/Interamericana, S.A. Panama McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC

MHE DK Il ApS Denmark McGraw-Hill Education (Denmark)  100%
ApS

MHE Mexico Holdco, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico McGraw-Hill Global Education 99.9%
Holdings, LLC
McGraw-Hill Global Education 0.1%

Mexico Holdings, LLC




Jurisdiction of

Incorporation
or Percent
Name of Subsidiary Organization Registered Owner Ownership
Mimosa Publications Pty Ltd Australia McGraw-Hill Education 100%
(Australia) Pty Ltd
Kingdom UK Holdco Il Limited
Platypus Media Pty Ltd Australia Mimosa Publications Pty Ltd 100%
Ryerson US Holdings, LLC Delaware McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
UK Holdco Il Limited
Tegrity, Inc. California McGraw-Hill Global Education 100%
Holdings, LLC
Australia Mimosa Publications Pty Ltd 100%

Yarra Pty Ltd



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULESD-14(D)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT, AS AMENDED

I, David Levin, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKicGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Haidis, LLC (the “registran};

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dalnare responsible for establishing and maintgjmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisa@mifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2015 By: /s/ David Levin

David Levin
Chief Executive Officer and President



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULESD-14(D)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT, AS AMENDED

I, Patrick Milano, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKicGraw-Hill Global Education Intermediate Haidis, LLC (the “registran};

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dalnare responsible for establishing and maintgjmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisa@mifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2015 By: /s/ Patrick Milano

Patrick Milano

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of McGraw-HBlobal Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC (tl@&mpany”) on Form 10-K for the
period ending December 31, 2014 as filed with teeusities and Exchange Commission on the date héten“Report”), I, David Levin,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpsetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxepf 2002, in my capacity as an officer
of the Company that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaft$Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of theusiies Exchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ David Levin
David Levin
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 30, 2015

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pl® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.€35D, and is not being filed for purposes
of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of43% amended, and is not to be incorporated leyene€e into any filing of the Company,
whether made before or after the date hereof, déggs of any general incorporation language in $iliok.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to McGraw-Hitilial Education Intermediate Holdings,
LLC and will be retained by McGraw-Hill Global Edation Intermediate Holdings, LLC and furnishedhe Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of McGraw-HBlobal Education Intermediate Holdings, LLC (tl@&mpany”) on Form 10-K for the
period ending December 31, 2014 as filed with teeusities and Exchange Commission on the date héten“Report”), I, Patrick Milano,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpsetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxepf 2002, in my capacity as an officer
of the Company that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaft$Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of theusiies Exchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl Patrick Milano
Patrick Milano
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Date: March 30, 2015

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pl® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.€35D, and is not being filed for purposes
of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of43% amended, and is not to be incorporated leyene€e into any filing of the Company,
whether made before or after the date hereof, déggs of any general incorporation language in $iliok.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®ey Section 906 has been provided to McGraw-Hitlial Education Intermediate Holdings,
LLC and will be retained by McGraw-Hill Global Edation Intermediate Holdings, LLC and furnishedhe Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.



